Stock Code: 6244

LM@®TZCr]

Motech Industries Inc.

2023 Annual Report

Issue date: April 22, 2024
Corporate website: https://www.motech.com.tw/



Motech Industries Inc.
Table of Contents

Letter to SharehOlders. ... .. ..o e 1
Company Profile. ... e 4
Corporate Governance

1.
2.

N o O b

10.

Organization... 6
Directors, Independent Directors, Pre5|dente\me5|dents Assistant Vice
Presidents and Managers of Departments and Branches............................ 8
Remuneration Paid to Directors, Independent diors, President and Vice
Presidents in the Most Recent Year ..........ccooiiii i i eeeeee e, 15
Corporate Governance Implementation.............ccouvieieieiie s e e 20
Audit FEes Tor CPA . ... e e, B2
Change Of CP A . .. e e e e e e 63

Details of the Company’s Chairman, PresideniManagers in Charge of Finance or
Accounting Who Held a Position in the CPAs Firm ltg Affiliates in the Most

R N Y Al . ot e e e e e e e e 63
Changes in Shareholding and Shares Pledged regtbis, Independent Directors,
Managers and Shareholders with 10% Shareholdingdase in the Most Recent

Year and as of the Date of this Annual Report... 63
Top 10 Shareholders Who are Related Partlesusﬁpoor within Second- Degree of
Kinship to Each Other.........oo i e 64

Number of Shares Held and Shareholding Pemgentaf the Company, the
Company’s Directors, Independent Directors, Managerd Directly or Indirectly
Controlled Entities on the Same INVeStee..........ccuiviieiii it i e 65

Capital Overview

1. Capital and Shares....... ..o i e e OB
2. Corporate BONAS.......ocuiiiiiiii e s eeneenes 10
3. Preferred Shares. .. ... 71
4. Global Depositary Shares..........coviii it e e 71
5. EMPIoyee StOCK OPtiONS. .. ....uue it et it ei et et e e e et e e e 71
6. Employee ReStricted StOCK.........ivuiiiii et i e 71
7. New Share Issuance in Connection with MergedsAaguisitions....................... 71
8. Execution of Financing Plans.............ccocoiiii i e 71
Operational Highlights

L BUSINESS . ..ttt et e e et e e e e e e e 73
2. Market and SaleS OVEIVIEW. .......cuuiie it e e e e e memen 78
3. Human Resources in the Past Two Fiscal Yearsaanof the Date of this Annual

=010 PP < %4



N o g b

Expenditure Related to Environmental Protection................coooviiiviinnnns 83

Employment RelatioNns. .. ... 83
Cyber Security Management..........cccovviiiiie i i iei e ee e e eeeaeene. 80
Material Contracts.. TP . 1o

VI. Financial Highlights

1.

Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Coemsiga Income from 2019 to

Financial AnaIyS|s from 201910 2023.... oo 95
Audit Committee’s Review Report for 2023..........o i, 99
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements ferYears Ended December 31, 2023
AN 2022, .. ettt et e e e 100
Audited Parent Company Only Financial Statemftthe Years Ended December
31,2023 @NA 2022, . et e e 168

Financial Difficulties Experienced by the Compaand Its Affiliates in the Most
Recent Year and as of the Date of this Annual Reord Their Impact on the

Company’s Financial POSITION..........ouuie i e e e 235
VII. Review and Analysis of Financial Position andPerformance and Associated Risks
1. FInancCial POSIION. .. ...t e e e e e e e e e e 236
2. Financial Performance............cooiiiiiiii i e 237
3. CaASN FIOWS ... e e 238
4. Major Capital Expenditures in the Most Recemtaryand Their Impacts on the
Company’s Finance and Operation...........c.ocooviiiieiei e e venaen e 238
5. Reinvestment Policies in the Most Recent Y®kin Reasons for Investment Gains
or Losses, Improvement Plans, and Investment Piatine Next Year.................. 238
6. Risk Items to be Analyzed and Assessed in thetRecent Year and as of the Date
of this ANNUAl REPOIt.......oieiiiiii e 240
7. Other Significant Matters. ... ..o e e 244
VIII. Special Notes
N 111> = 245
2. Private Placement of Securities in the Most Redear and as of the Date of this
N 0T F= T = Lo 248
3. The Company’s Shares Held or Disposed of by ifligsges in the Most Recent Year
and as of the Date of this Annual Report..........cc.o.oiiiiiii e, 248
4. Other Necessary Supplement... . ... 248
5. Any Events in the Most Recent Year and as of0hee of this Annual Report that

had Significant Impacts on Shareholders’ RightsSecurity Prices as Stated in
Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the ifeiand Exchange Act......... 248



|. Letter to Shareholders

To all shareholders:

Thank you all for your long-term support and eneg@ment to Motech Industries Inc.

In 2023, multiple factors including worldwide inflan and interest rate hikes, the U.S.-China trade
dispute, the Russia-Ukraine war, and the econonaiwdown in China posed challenges to the
macroeconomic environment. Impacted by the marketnturn, the Company delivered a less than
satisfactory operating performance. However, tmengt economic performance of Taiwan coupled
with the pressing need for energy transition alldwlee Company to remain profitable in 2023 with

efforts from all employees. The outcome was alsmditation that our long-term involvement in the

development of high-efficiency modules had earneditive feedback from the market. Taiwan

accomplished a record-high grid capacity of 2.7GVM2023, and is channeling efforts toward the goal
of reaching 20GW by 2025. Furthermore, the “12 Istgategies” announced by Executive Yuan at
the end of 2022 clearly pointed out that the cumindanstalled capacity of PV shall rise to 31GW by

2030. We therefore expect the market to exhibteady growth and we would strive for improvement
on the basis of stability.

1. 2023 Operating Results
(1) Outcome of operating plans
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ltems 2023 2022
Consolidated operating revenug 4,065,981 100.0% | 5,359,978 100.0%
Consolidated gross profit (loss) 677,424  16.7% 693,907 12.9%
Consolidated operating income 323,417 8.0% 336,695 6.3%

(loss)
Consolidated income (loss) 229585 5 6% 275,934 5 1%
before tax
Consolidated net income (loss) 224,317 5.5% 272,317 5.1%
Consolidated net income (loss)
attributable to shareholders of 218,168 5.4% 267,882 5.0%
the parent company
Earnings per share (NT$) 0.56 0.73

In 2023, module sale was a key component of caai@d revenue. The Company
completed production upgrade by the end of 2022rggg a leading position in the M6 cell
technology competition. Large-sized TOPCon moddiase been VPC-certified with a
winning conversion efficiency. The benefits of puotd portfolio optimization emerged in
2023, contributing to gross margin improvement. 8o persistently seek breakthroughs in
power station construction. By the end of 2023,ghd capacity was approximately 40MW,
and as construction progresses, a significant &aseren capacity is expected at the end of
2024.

(2) Implementation status of budget

The Company did not release financial forecas0@B3; thus, it was not required to disclose
the implementation status of budget.



(3) Financial position and profitability analysis

The Company generated consolidated operating regenfiNT$4,066 million in 2023, a
decrease of 24.1% from NT$5,360 million in 2022n€alidated gross profit amounted to
NT$677 million, a decrease of 2.4% from NT$694 iwoill in the previous year. Gross
margin equaled 16.7%, up from 12.9% in 2022. Cadat#dd net income was NT$224
million with net income attributable to sharehoklasf the parent company of NT$218
million and an earnings per share of NT$0.56.

(4) Research and development:

The shift towards large-size solar modules in tleba market prompts the Company to
draw upon its industry-leading experience in TOPG®&th development to have a full-scale
upgrade to large-size M10 production in order tmralwith the international market.
Moreover, the Company would accelerate its factoide switch to TOPCon capacity,
which is projected to be an important driver offgadility. The materials and components
of TOPCon cell allow it to generate higher powetpot than other products in dim light or
under scorching sun. Its excellent power generagfficiency and low degradation rate
make it a perfect solution for Taiwan’s climatess AOPCon improves the return of
investment on solar power stations, it is gainindeapopularity in the market.

2. Overview of 2024 Business Plan
(1) Business policy

® Channel efforts on the mass production of next-gdim N-type TOPCon modules,
improve the conversion efficiency and enhance ixggbroduction lines. Upgrade to a
larger size to meet market demand.

® Continue to initiate solar power system projectexpand our stable revenue streams.

® Continuously increase our green energy trading mélanand electricity sales revenue,
and seize business opportunities from major et@ttrconsumers.

® Extend the field of fishery and electricity symhgsseeking cross-industry alliances to
expand PV applications.

(2) Sales forecast and basis

In terms of the global market, boosted by strorgpgrenergy demand, the market research
institution PV InfoLink predicts the worldwide PVadule demand to maintain a growth
rate above 15% in 2024. However, uncertaintieshen rharket, including the digestion of
accumulated inventory, the need to expand the dgpat power grids, the increase in
global production capacity and the promotion ofrggdocalization by various countries,
have pushed the market to turn cautious, testiagldyers’ resilience in areas of costs, sales
and research and development.

As for Taiwan, statistics of the Energy Adminisimat Ministry of Economic Affairs showed
that the cumulative installed solar PV capacitycheal 12.4GW in 2023. The election at
year end had delayed the development and revielargé-scale facilities in the fourth
quarter. The gap to be bridged between currentoiigpand the goal of 20GW by 2025 is
favorable to the Company’s module and power businesthe face of recent competitions
due to large imports of modules from Southeast Asii® Company plans to attract
customers with high-efficiency products such ag/petTOPCon, increase the proportion of
exports, and implement product upgrades in response

(3) Key production and sales policies

® Continue to maintain long-term cooperation with toosers and provide quality
products and services aligned with demand of custerand markets.
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® Boost our market share in Taiwan, continuously exlpaur export markets, and
actively explore emerging regions to initiate dsesales mix.

® Focus on the development and application of higietehcy products.
® Emphasize quality improvement and production cedtiction.
3. Strategies for Future Developments
Enhance the technical level of solar cells and rfeodroducts.
Improve product quality and yield.
Offer diverse product mixes to satisfy customer deth
Improve product marketing and sales potential aygtessively explore new markets.
Streamline management to enhance business manageeniemmance.

Fulfill our corporate social responsibility and pue sustainability.

Proactively explore new businesses on our ownroutih strategic joint ventures, and adopt
diversification to mitigate operating risks.

4. Impacts from External Competitions, Regulatory Compiance and Macro-environment

In terms of industrial policy, the Taiwan governmemnounced the “Taiwan’s Pathway to
Net-Zero Emissions in 2050” in March 2022 as thgoacpathway and released the “12 Key
Strategies” in December of the same year as aptams. In February 2023, the Climate Change
Response Act was amended to impose a carbon fetndofirst time; and in May 2023, the
Renewable Energy Development Act was amended palate that buildings meeting certain
conditions shall have solar power generation fieediwith a certain installation capacity or above
installed on the roofs. The Act also requires majectricity consumers to have their installed
renewable energy capacity accounted for 10% of tmitract capacity by 2025 (i.e., within five
years). Through the government’s policies and amemds to laws and regulations, as well as
the cooperation of the private sector, Taiwan edgally moving toward energy transition that
will also prompt industry growth.

ESG has gained significant attention in the capitatket in recent years and has been a long-stgndin
goal of the Company. The Company measures itsiop&dtip with environmental protection, social
responsibility and corporate governance througmtijadive metrics. We have long been devoted to
the green energy industry, and serve consumers auitb technology and long-term warranty. In
recent years, we have been actively constructingr gmower plants to create a steady source of
profitability. We value corporate governance anstcitline, and aim to expand our investment in the
green energy industry, setting the stage for fusuieeess.

Sincerely yours,

Chairman Yung-Hui Tseng



II. Company Profile

1. Date of Incorporation

Motech Industries Inc.: June 3, 1981

Motech Industries Inc., Science Park Branch: Juhel 299
2. Company History

1981

1990

1999

2003
2005
2006

2007

2009

2010

2011

2014

2015

2016

Officially established in June with an authorizegpital of NT$2,000,000. Main
engaged in the production and selling of digitaltimeters (DMM).

Acquired factories and equipment and moved fromyXRoad in Taipei City t
ShenKeng in New Taipei City.

The Science Park Branch obtained company licermeeds by the MOEA ar
became the first solar cell manufacturer in Taiwan.

Officially listed on TPEX.
Ranked among the top ten solar cell manufacturerdwide.

The second factory of the Science Park Branch was cetegbland in operation
the second half of the year.

The first solar cell manufacturer in Taiwan to obea certifications of bot
ISO-14001 Environmental Management System and OHE2(®1 Occupatnal
Health and Safety Management System in Taiwan.

The full range of our solar cells passed the TU\¢iRland REACHSVHC testing
and obtained the certification.

The world’s first solar cell to complete the carldontprint verification.

Xingda Power Plant of Taipower under constructomtract won the Excellen
Award of MOEA.

Xingda Power Plant of Taipower under constructiontract won the Gold Quali
Award of Executive Yuan.

Won the 14th Outstanding PV Product AwardPdiotonics Industry & Technolor
Development Association with the multicrystallireas cells, IM156 B3.

The first PV inverter manufacturer in Asia to ohtaihe certification fo
VDE-AR-N 4105 guideline with the PV inverters, PVMate 3BE>4600M<S
models.

Won the “Outstanding Market Value aR&venue Award” in the 1st Golden Lat
Award for TPEx-listed Companie of the Taipei Excgan

The first enterprise in the world to obtain the ifiedtion from British Standarc
Institution (BSI) for the corporate social respdilgly report.

Won the Golden Award for Large Technology and Etedits Manufacturin
Enterprises of the Taiwan TOP 50 Corporate SudtdityaReport Award.

Merged with Topcell Solar International Co., Ltditek the merger, theapital wa:
raised NT$456,720,000 to NT$4,869,054,080.

Established Motech (Maanshan) Renewable EnergylL@h.with a focus on sol
cell and module business.

Established the joint venture, Tebwotech Co., Ltd., with Teco Group to engag
the generation and selling of solar power of PMays.



2017 - Established Motech Power One Co., Ltd., which spiged in the generation a
selling of solar power.

- Won Bronze Award inthe 26th Annual Enterprises Environmental Protex
Award, the first solar cell manufacturer in Taiwtarreceive the award.

Established Motech Power Gamma Co., Ltd. and MoRmher Beta Co., Ltd. "
engage in the generation and selling of solar p@i/&V systems.
2019 - Completed the "tunnel oxide passivated contachigh efficiency Ntype silicor
solar cells" project in cooperation with the Indigt Technology Resear:
Institute (ITRI).
- Completed the green energy flagship industry-aczeesearch alliance proje
in collaboration with the Ministry of Science anechinology.
- Completed the certification of high-power 330W mamgstalline modules, ar
the development of high-power 340W maorrystalline modules and 335
double-glass modules.
- Completed the shoform merger with Taiwan Solar Module Manufactur
Corporation to enhance operational efficiency.
- Established Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd. to engagelle generation and selli
of solar power of PV systems.

- Received the Taiwan Excellent PV Module Award ofé&au of Energy, MOEA.

Entered a thregear syndicated loan agreement with a consortiunafoamour
equivalent to NT$1.68 billion.

- Completed the shoform merger with Motech Energy System Co., Ltd
enhance operational efficiency.

2018

2020

- Carried out capital reduction for loss compensatiBreduced capital to N1
3,550,418,750.

- Completed the development of ultra-high efficierdytype TOPCon cells wit
ITRI. The MoPower-360 PV module had an efficienggeeeding 21%.

- Completed the certification of high-power 360W mamgstalline modules ar
passed the tests of Taiwan Excellent PV Award.

2021 Completed the development of ultra-high efficiedytype TOPCon cells wit
ITRI. The conversion efficiency of MoPower-400 PVodule could reach

maximum of 22%.
2022 - Raised capital to NT$3,870,418,750 through a casipital increase of

NT$320,000,000.

- Completed the development of ultra-high efficierdytype TOPCon cells wit
ITRI. The conversion efficiency of MoPowdt0 PV module could reach
maximum of 22.5%.

- Our solar modules and cells received the Taiwareleat PV ProducAward of
Bureau of Energy, MOEA.

- Won the "Excellence Award for Cooperation in Em@eySalary Survey" of
Directorate General of Budget, Accounting and Stias of Executive Yuan.

2023 Completed the development of ultra-high efficiedstype TOPCon cells with
ITRI. The conversion efficiency of MoPower-485 PVodule could reach a

maximum of 24.5%.

- Completed the development of agro-photovoltaics utesdwith ITRI. The light
transmission rate exceeded 40-50%.
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1.

Organization

lIl. Corporate Governance

(1) Organizational Structure

Internal
Audit Office

Shareholders’

Meeting

As of December 31, 2023

Finance & Accounting
Division

Legal Department

Technology
Development &
Production Division

General Administration
Management Division

Board of Directors President
Chairman Office Office
Compensation Audit
Committee Committee

Commerce Division

Power System Division

—

Aquaculture Departmer

Taiwan Procurement
Department

Energy Technical
Service Department

Industrial Safety
Department




(2) Functions of each department

Departments Functions

- Establish the directions of corporate business ldpweent,
operating objectives and corporate governance

- Supervise the strategy planning and major opergting
decision-making

Chairman Office

- Formulate and execute business strategies andtiobfec

Integrate products and services to develop conmeet
business models

- Drive and coordinate annual production and busip&sss

it

President Office

- Perform audits and exception analyses on compadgiwi
Internal Audit Office business, finance and operation and make recommensia
for improvement

Finance & Accounting Responsible for operations associated with fingnce,
Division accounting, tax and investor relations

Legal Department - Legal affairs and management of intellectual propeghts

-  Work management, production yield improvement, R&D
project promotion, technology enhancement and itrgiof
technology department; formulation of operationnpiag
and quality strategies, and quality assurancewfmaterials
and finished goods; manufacturing of solar celld srodules
in Taiwan and China, and cross-departmental intiegraf
resources for continuous improvement on manufacgdiri
processes

Technology
Development &
Production Division

- Responsible for the human resource and organization
General Administrationl  developments, and public affair management in Taiwa
Management Division Integrated planning, maintenance and management of
information, network and communication systems

Commerce Division | - Responsible for the sales of solar cells and madule

- Responsible for solar power station investmentstésy

development and relationship strengthening; devetoy of
Power System Divisior]  fishery and electricity symbiosis and collection rofrket
intelligence; installation, troubleshooting and manance of
solar panel project)

- Management of aquaculture projects related to mslaad|

electricity symbiosis (including regulatory anak/siand
Aquaculture Departmer]  scheme evaluation, permit application and proghesking,
and communication with farming operations and paftn
firms).

Taiwan Procurement

Department - Management of procurement and import and export

Energ%gggl’r]tnnl]ceeﬂtServmg Responsible for the after-sale service of inverters

Industrial Safety Integration management over safety, environmgntal
Department protection and health of each factory
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2. Directors, Independent Directors, President, Vice Residents, Assistant Vice Presidents and Manager$ Departments and Branches
(1) Directors and Independent Directors
A. Directors and Independent Directors

As of April 20, 2024 (In Shares,%)

Managers, Directo
or Supervisors Whp
Nationality Gendel D Date Fi Shareholding Current Spouse and Nominee Education and Selected Present| ¢ v%ﬁr?iﬁses or Remark
Title or Place of Name ate | rorm| DA ISt when Elected | Shareholding | Minor Children | Arrangement|  Selected Past | Positions at MotecH
ace Age | Elected Elected " .| Second-Degree of (Note 4)
Registratiof Positions and Other Compani¢s Kinship to Each
Other
Shares | % Shares % Share§ % [ Shares % Title[Namg Relation
Male Master of Electronid| ~, _.
: . Yung-Hui | (61-70 3 Engineering, China Chairman of Cheng
Chairman| Taiwan T 2022.06.21 2001.06.2610,582,71] 2.98%10,972,71[ 2.84% 1,394,898 0.369 0 0.009 hnsti Fu-Tien Culture & - - - -
seng years years nstitute of Education Foundati
old) Technology ucation Foundation
President of
Consumer Product
Resources
Chih-Kaou Male . _|International Corp.
Director | Taiwan Lee | (7180|2020 0621 3 [2001.06.24 4,022,716 1.13% 4,312,77p 1.11% 1,690,99p 0.449 0 0.009 LEr‘aChe'Or In PhySICS\yiro ctor of Motech | - | - - -
years years| amkang Universit ) \
(Note 1) d Industries Inc.'s
old) subsidiaries
Director of C-Tech.
United Corp.
Supervisor of Motec
Department of Industries Inc.'s
Ming-Shiaw] Male Mechanical subsidiaries
Director | Taiwan Lu | (71-80|5022.06.21 3 |2007.06.13 2,579,82] 0.73% 2,679,82} 0.69% 2,160,818 0.569 of 0.0004E"9Ineering, Vice Presidentof | | ] ]
years years| INational Taipe 'Yung Loong
(Note 2) old) Institute of Engineering Corp.
Technology Director of Mildef
Crete Inc.
) Director of Apacer
George | Male Eachelor_m . Technology Inc.
ommunication .
Director | Taiwan | Huang | (7180120220621 3 |2007.06.13 0 0.009 q 0.009 q 0.009 0| 0.004Engineering, Director of Les - - - -
years years f - enphants Co., Ltd.
(Note 3) NationalChiao Tung )
old) University Independent Directo
of Bionet Corp.




Managers, Directo
or Supervisors Whp
are Spouses or

Nationalit ! Shareholding Current Spouse and Nominee Education and Selected Present e
Title or Place ())/f Name Genderl  Date Term| P2t FIrStl \when Elected |  Shareholding | Minor Children | Arrangement|  Selected Past | Positions at MotecH Wlt_hm Remark
Redistrati Age | Elected Elected > .| Second-Degree of (Note 4)
egistratio Positions and Other Companigs Kinship to Each
Other
Shares | % Shares % Shares % | Shares % Title|Namd Relation
Male Ph.D. in Material |Supervisor of the
Independe ‘ (71-80 3 Scie_nce E_And Alumni Associati(_)n [o
Director Taiwan | San-Boh Lge 2022.06.21 ears 2002.06.1Q 135,328 0.049 144,328 0.049 Q 0.009 0 0.00%Engineering, the Dep. of Physics ¢f - - - -
years Y University of Fu Jen Catholic
old) Rochester, USA  |University
Independent Directo
. _lof Ingentec Corp.
Male Master of Science wL )
Independer 3 Management Studi€ ndependent Directo
ep Taiwan |Kin-Tsau Lee(’1:80|2022.06.21 2016.06.13 0o 0.009 d 0.009 g 0.009 0 0.009 9 of Duratek, Inc. - - - -
Director years years| MIT Sloan School o )
old) Management Represgntatwe of
Tzu-Wei Investment
Limited
Independent Directo
of Getac Holdings
Corporation
Male Master of Independent Directo
independetl taiwan | CRAHSIN| (61701 502 06.21 3 12022.06.21 o 0.009 d 0.009 0 000% 0 0.00%Accounting, of APAC Opto - - -
g years years Soochow UniversityElectromcs Inc.
old) Independent Directo
of Solar Applied
Materials Technology
Corp.

Note 1: Director, Chih-Kaou Lee, was appointed @se®visor of the Company on June 26, 2001, andiafgubas Director of the Company since June 136201
Note 2: Director, Ming-Shiaw Lu, was appointed ap&visor of the Company from June 13, 2007 to ®&y2010, and appointed as Director of the Companjune 17, 2019.
Note 3: Director, George Huang, was appointed gesisor of the Company on June 13, 2007, and apgubas Director of the Company since June 13,.2016
Note 4: Where the Company’s Chairman and Presigiepérsonnel with equivalent position (chief marragee the same person, spouses or relatives vatieérdegree of kinship, please state the reasemsomability,

necessity and measures to be taken (e.g., inctieaseimber of Independent Directors and have ntgjofiDirectors not serving as employees or manabefficers).

B. Major Shareholders of Corporate Shareholders: None.

C. Major Shareholders of the “Major Shareholders offfocate Shareholders”: None.



D. Professional Qualifications of Directors and Indegence Status of Independent Directors

As of April 20, 2024

Conditions

Name

Professional Qualifications and Experiences
(Note 1)

Independence Status
(Note 2)

Number of Other Publi
Companies in Which
the Individual is
Concurrently Serving 4
an Independent Direct

Yung-Hui Tseng

With more than five years of work experience inag
necessary for the business of the Company, hevisthe
Chairman of the Company and is rmtperson of an
conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Act

Chih-Kaou Lee

With more than five years of work experience inag
necessary for the business of the Company, hevsa
director in several TPEx-listed companies and i$ a
person of any conditions defined in Article 30 d&fe
Company Act.

George Huang

With more than five years of work experience inag
necessary for the business of the Company, hevisa
director in several TWSE-listed companies and it a]
person of any conditions defined in Article 30 dfe
Company Act.

Ming-Shiaw Lu

With more than five years of work experience inag
necessary for the business of the Company, hevisa
director in several TPEx-listed companies and it a
person of any conditions defined in Article 30 dfe
Company Act.

San-Boh Lee

He has more than five years of work experiencegoair
instructor or a higher position in an academi@partmen
related to the business needs of the Company inbéc
junior college, college or university. He is reoperson o
any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Compa&wmy.

He is deemed independent as he satisfies requiterae
out in Articles 2, 3, and 4 of the “Regulations ®ming
Appointment of Independent Directors and Complia
Matters for Public Companies” and is not a persbany|
conditions defined in Article 28-of the Securities ar

Exchange Act.
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Name

Conditions

Professional Qualifications and Experiences
(Note 1)

Independence Status
(Note 2)

Number of Other Publi
Companies in Which
the Individual is
Concurrently Serving g
an Independent Direct

Kin-Tsau Lee

He has more than five years of work experiencs
commerce and areas necessary for the businesse
Company. While being the executive vice presidef
China Steel Corporation, a TWSE-listed compdreywag
also in charge of the finance unit. He is agierson of an
conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Act

He is deemed independent as he satisfies requiterase
out in Articles 2, 3, and 4 of the “Regulations ®mving
Appointment of Independent Directors and Complig
Matters for Public Companies” and is not a persbany|
conditions defined in Article 28-of the Securities ar
Exchange Act.

Chia-Hsin Chang

He has passed the senior professional agchnica
examination for certified public accountairsTaiwan ang
was a certified public accountant and partner oMKH
Taiwan for more than five years. He is not a persioany
conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Act

He isdeemed independent as he satisfies requiremer
out in Articles 2, 3, and 4 of the “Regulations ®ming
Appointment of Independent Directors and Complig
Matters for Public Companies” and is not a persbany|
conditions defined in Article 26-3fahe Securities an

Exchange Act.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Professional qualifications and experiené@sscribe the professional qualifications and e@epees of individual Director and Supervisor. Fardit

Committee members with accounting or finance eigertelevant background and work experience $igaitated. Also, clarify if conditions defined in
Article 30 of the Company Act exist.

The independence of Independent Directioadl e described. Relevant criteria including bat limited to whether the Independent Directos/Ier

spouse, and relatives within the second degre@sehip are directors, supervisors or employeesi®iGompany or any of its affiliates; the numbethaf
Company’s shares held by the Independent Direlstgfher spouse, and relatives within the secondegegf kinship (or by nominee arrangement) and the
percentages, whether they are directors, supesvisoremployees of companies having specific radatipp with the Company (please refer to
Subparagraphs 5 to 8, Paragraph 1, Article 3 ofRgulations Governing Appointment of Independemme®ors and Compliance Matters for Public
Companies) and the amount of compensation for gi@mviof commerce, law, finance, accounting or eslagervices to the Company or its affiliates in the

past two fiscal years.
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E. Board diversity and independence

(a) Board diversity

The Company adopts the candidate nomination sy&iethe nomination and
election of Directors pursuant to the Articles afcdrporation. Besides
assessing the academic and work experience ofdzatedi candidates shall be
approved by the Board of Directors prior to beingbmitted to the
shareholders’ meeting for the election as stipdlatehe Company’s “Director
Election Procedures” and “Corporate Governance-Besttice Principles”, to
ensure the diversity and independence of Board raesnb

According to the Company’s “Corporate GovernancstBactice Principles”,
Board members shall generally possess knowledgls sind competence
required to perform their duties. To achieve thealdgoal of corporate
governance, the Board as a whole is advised toepssshe following
capabilities:

i.  Business judgement

ii.  Accounting and financial analysis

iii. Operation management

iv. Crisis management

V. Industry knowledge

vi. Global market perspective

vii. Leadership

viii. Decision-making

Diversity policy is stipulated in Chapter 11l “Enheement of Board Functions”
of the Company’s “Corporate Governance Best-Prad®ignciples”. Diversity
shall be considered with respect to Board commosiéind appropriate policy
shall be established based on the Company’s operatiusiness type and

development needs. Such policy shall include butlindted to standards of
the following two aspects:

i.  Basic conditions and values: including gender, agépnality and culture.
Among which, it is advised to have female Directoomstitute at least
one-third of the Board.

ii. Professional knowledge and skills: including prefesal background (e.g.,
legal, accounting, industry, finance, marketingemhnology), professional
skills and industry experience.

Board members of the Company have diverse backdsoumterms of industry,
finance and accounting, academia and knowledgey Tae offer professional
opinions from different angles to enhance the Cargjsa management
efficiency and operation performance. Moreover, Hilee Independent
Directors have the knowledge, skills and competeaqaired to perform their
duties, which further enrich the diversity policydaimplementation guideline
concerning Board members to align with the spiritarporate governance and
business development needs. Management objectnesngplementation of
the diversity policy for Board members are disctbseseparate tables below:

() Management objectives

Management Objectives Achievement Status

The number of Directors who are also managerseoCiimpany shall
not exceed one-third of the total number of Direxto

The number of Independent Directors shall be &t free and shall
not be less than one-third of the total number ioé®ors.

Achieved

Achieved
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(i) Implementation of diversity policy

Basics Diverse Industry Experience and Professional Coemnuet
Seniority o
Age| Age |Independent Industry Experience Professional Competence
Motech Director
Name Title Gendey, Leadership -
Employeq 61 | 71 1~9 Over Finance & Steel |Optoelectronii Compute| Academiq and Operation Finance Material| Legal Risk
- - |yearg o Accounting Industry| Technology |Peripheral Research Decision- [Managemer and Science|Knowledgg Managemeny
70 | 80 ¥ yearg b Yl 9y P making 9 }\ccounting 9 9
Y“Tf‘sgeﬁg“' Chairman | Male v v v v v N v
Chlt-eKGaou Director | Male \ \ v \ \
Mlngljhlaw Director | Male \ 3 \
George Huang Director | Male \ 3 v \ \ V \
San-Boh Led'MdePender) o V V v \/
Director
Kin-Tsau Led""dePender) ;e V| v v v v N \
Director
Chia-Hsin [Independe
Chang Director Male v Y Y v v

(b) Board independence

The Board of the Company has been composed of tsxgpecializing in
different fields. The current term of the Board asen Directors and none of
them is an employee of the Company. The Board hasigsider Directors
(86%) and three Independent Directors (43%). Therte of two Independent
Directors is under nine years while the other anewver nine years. None of
the Board members is a person of any conditionsel@in Paragraphs 3 and 4,
Article 26-3 of the Securities and Exchange Actd dahere is no spousal
relationship nor second-degree kinship between ciirse. The Board is
independent from the Company.
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(2) President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice Pressdamd Managers of Departments and Branches

As of April 20, 2024 (In Shares)
Managers Who are

on-Board| Shareholding Sp'\c/JILiJnsgrand Nominee Educati q Selected P t Positi tSpouses or within R )
Title Nationality| Name | Gender nls oar chig Arrangement ucation and elected Present Positions at gecond-Degree of | RéMar
ate liaren Selected Past Positions Other Companies Kinship to Each Othe (Note 1
Share % |[Shares % [Shares % Title | Name| Relation
Director of Motech's subsidiarips
. Director of Inergy Technology
President| Taiwan | Fred Yeh| Male |2009.11.09448,048 0.1294 2,0710.00% 0| 0. 00o4=BA China Europe Inc. - . ;
International Business School | )
Vice Chairman of TECO Sun
Energy Co., Ltd.
Vice Ting-Chao|
President| Taiwan V?Ian Male |2019.12.16 55,000 0.01% 0[ 0.00% 0| 0.009%9MBA, University of Maryland Director of Motech's ssidiaries - - - -
& CFO 9
Vice Taiwan |HU3MSNUN \ote 12020.11.05 60,000 0.029 0] 0.00% 0| 0.0094MasSter of Resources Engineeri| _ o ; -
President Lin National Cheng Kung Universit
Chief Chien-Tun MBA, National Taiwan
Governanc{ Taiwan Male [2021.08.0% 94,147 0.02% 0] 0.00% 0l 0.00%,, . ' . - - - - -
i g Chen University
Officer
M:ne;gig: of Supervisor of Motech Industrigs
. . i Inc.'s subsidiaries
Accounting] Taiwan | AlanWu| Male [2021.01.01 28,000 0.01%  0{0.00% 0| 0.00% MB.A' National Chung Cheng . -] - - -
and Tax niversity Supervisor of TECO Sun Ener
Departmen Co., Ltd.

Note 1: Where the Company’s President or persowitbl equivalent position (chief manager) and Chainnare the same person, spouses or relatives vaittérdegree of kinship, please state the
reasons, reasonability, necessity and measuresttikbn (e.g., increase the number of Independieettdrs and have majority of Directors not serv@isgemployees or managerial officers).
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3.

(1) General Directors and Independent Directors

A. Remuneration to Directors

Remuneration Paid to Directors, Independent Directos, President and Vice Presidents in the Most ReceNear

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; ThousandShures, %)

Remuneration to Directors

Total of A, B, C, and

Compensation Earned by Being an Employee of Motech

or Motech’s Consolidated Entities

Total of A, B, C, D,

- Compensatiqg
0,
Base Compensatioh Severance Pay and Compensation to Allowances and as a % of Base Compensatiof, Severance Pay Employee E’OF’ and G and from Non-
(A) Pensions (B) Directors (C) (D) Net Income Bonus, and and Pensions (F) Compensation (G) as a % of Net Incone lidat
Title Name Allowances, etc. (E P ?lesigt:asa;c
From From All From From All From From All From From All From From All From From All From From All From CoFrzgmidAellltec From From All Parent
Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate Consolidate Consolidateq Motech - Consolidate| Company
Motech| " Moteclt " Motech " Motech - Motech " Motech " Motech - Entities | Motech -
Entities Entities Entities Entities Entities Entities Entities Entities
Cash|Stock Cash| Stock
Yung-Hui Tseng
Chih-Kaou Lee
Director 12777 12777 | - - |1e12| 1612 |08 | 408 | GHIOT| 4797 | . - - o e R e 23
George Huang 18% 6.78% 6.78%( 6.78%
Ming-Shiaw Lu
San-Boh Lee
Independen . 3,315 3,315 3,315 3,315
¥ Kin-Tsau Lee 1,800 1,800 - - 1,209 1,209 306 306 ! ! - - - - - - - - ! ! 0
Director nsad 152% | 1.52% 1.52%| 1.52%
Chia-Hsin Chang
1. Please state the policy, system, standard andusteusf remuneration paid to Independent Direcéord the correlation between factors such as regphitiss and risks assumed as well as time conteld and the amount of payment:

Remuneration to Independent Director is determiveezbd on their involvement in and contributionthis Company’s operation and takes into accountdutisks of the Company and the renumeration stanolathe industry. It includes both the fixg
compensation and allowance. In addition, remur@mai Directors would be made if the Company getesrarofits for the year, as stipulated in the @es of Incorporation. The said remuneration teefrehdent Directors would be reviewed by

Compensation Committee and then submitted to tterdBof Directors for resolution.

Except for information disclosed above, remuneragiaid for services rendered by Directors of thenBany (e.g., being a non-employee consultant tpénent company/all consolidated entities/invegteethe most recent year: None.
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B.

Range of remuneration paid to Directors

Ranges

Names of Directors

Total of (A+B+C+D)

Total of (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

From Motech

From All Consolidated Entitieq

From Ect

From All Consolidated Entities

Under NT$1,000,000

NT$1,000,000 ~ NT$1,999,999

San-Boh Lee, Kin-Tsau Lee,
Chia-Hsin Chang, Chih-Kaou Le
George Huang, Ming-Shiaw Lu

San-Boh Lee, Kin-Tsau Lee,
eChia-Hsin Chang, Chih-Kaou Le
George Huang, Ming-Shiaw Lu

San-Boh Lee, Kin-Tsau Lee,
eChia-Hsin Chang, Chih-Kaou Le
George Huang, Ming-Shiaw Lu

San-Boh Lee, Kin-Tsau Lee,
eChia-Hsin Chang, Chih-Kaou Le
George Huang, Ming-Shiaw Lu

11%

NT$2,000,000~- NT$3,499,999

NT$3,500,000- NT$4,999,999

NT$5,000,000~ NT$9,999,999

NT$10,000,000- NT$14,999,999

Yung-Hui Tseng

Yung-Hui Tseng

Yung-Hui Tseng

YungiHiseng

NT$15,000,006- NT$29,999,999

NT$30,000,006- NT$49,999,999

NT$50,000,006- NT$99,999,999

NT$100,000,000 and above

Total

(2) Remuneration paid to Supervisors: The Company siabkshed an Audit Committee; thus, there is mouneeration to Supervisors.
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(3) President and Vice Presidents
A. Compensation paid to President and Vice Presidents

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Salary Severance Pay and | Bonus and Allowancs Employee Compensation TOtaL‘?‘fdAgsBé g g][]d D )
(A) Pensions (B) (C) (D) Net | 0 Compensation
5 Al et Income from Non-
Title Name From rom Consolidated
From |c.onoidate] O™ | consolidated O |consoidate|  Moteeh | Cpapen® | From | o il iaieq. Affiates or
Motech " Motech " Motech " Motech " Parent Compar]
Entities Entities Entities Entities
Cash | Stock| Cash | Stock
President Fred Yeh
Vice President & CFO Ting-Chao Wanp 12,906 12,906 324 324 2,414 2,414 1,655| 0O 1,655 0 17,298 17,298
7.93% 7.93%
Vice President Huan-Shun Lin

Note 1: Compensation to employees has yet to eldited as of the date of this annual report, nemsilin the table above are the proposed figures.

B. Range of compensation paid to President and ViesitRent

Ranges

Names of President and Vice President

From Motech

From All Consolidated Entities

Under NT$1,000,000

NT$1,000,000 ~ NT$1,999,999

NT$2,000,000- NT$3,499,999

NT$3,500,000- NT$4,999,999

Ting-Chao Wang, Huan-Shun Lin

Ting-€Wang, Huan-Shun Lin

NT$5,000,000- NT$9,999,999

Fred Yeh

Fred Yeh

NT$10,000,006- NT$14,999,999

NT$15,000,006- NT$29,999,999

NT$30,000,006- NT$49,999,999

NT$50,000,006- NT$99,999,999

NT$100,000,000 and above

Total

3

3

Note 1: Compensation to employees has yet to Iebdited as of the date of this annual report, nersin the table above are the proposed figures.
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(4) Employee compensation to Managers
As of December 31, 2023 (In Thousands of New @aiollars)

Title Name Stock Cash Total Total as a % of Nebme
President Fred Yeh
Vice President & CFO Ting-Chao Wang
Managers Vice President Huan-Shun Lin 0 2,091 2,091 0.96%
Senior Manager Alan Wu
Director Chien-Tung Chen

Note 1: Compensation to employees has yet to ebdited as of the date of this annual report, nemsilin the table above are the proposed figures.
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(5) Analysis of remuneration and compensation paiditedfors, President and Vice Presidents
by the Company and all consolidated entities ingast two fiscal years as a percentage of
net income in the parent company only financiaesteents and explanation on remuneration
policy, standards and composition, procedures ame ¢orrelation with operation
performance and future risks are as follows:

A. Remuneration and compensation as a percentage ofaoene in the parent company
only financial statements:

Remuneration and Compensation as a Percentage @iddéenein
the Parent Company Only Financial Statements
Title/Item 2022 2023
From From All From From All
Consolidated Consolidated
Motech " Motech "
Entities Entities
Directors 6.52% 6.41% 8.30% 8.30%
President and Vice | ¢ gg94 6.87% 7.93% 7.93%
Presidents

B. Remuneration policy, standards and composition¢gatores and the correlation with
operation performance and future risks:

(@) Remuneration policy, standards and composition

Remuneration to Directors is determined basedhenAtrticles of Incorporation
and includes remuneration and compensation to Dire@s well as allowances.
Compensation to the President and Vice Presidestides salaries, bonus and
employee compensation. The amount is recommendedh&yCompensation
Committee and submitted to the Board for discusarmh resolution in accordance
with the Articles of Incorporation and relevantasil

(b) Procedures

Based on the Articles of Incorporation, when thenpany makes a profit for the
year, the compensation to employees shall not Wwerlédhan one percent of the
balance and the remuneration to Directors shalbedbigher than five percent of
the balance. However, if the Company has an acatedildeficit, the profit shall
cover the deficit before it can be used for compgos. The aforementioned
compensation can be made in the form of stock sh daased on the Board
resolution. Parties eligible to receive the saidmpensation shall include
employees in affiliated companies who met certainditions set by the Board.
The distribution plan of compensation to employeesl remuneration to the
Directors shall be submitted to the shareholdeegtimg.

(c) Correlation with operation performance and futusks

Salaries and remuneration to Directors and managerdetermined by evaluating
the degree of participation in the Company's opanat quality of decision making,
execution of objectives, personal contribution artdrnal control. Scoring criteria
are amended and adjusted based on the needs©@bthgany and weightings may
be assigned to different aspects of the evaluation.

In order to implement corporate governance, redyeational risks and enhance
the functions of the Company's functional commgteesults of the annual Board
performance evaluation are used as a referendldoselection or nomination of
Directors. The results are provided by the perforceaevaluation unit to the
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4. Corporate Governance Implementation

Compensation Committee for timely review and recandation and serve as a
reference for determining the remuneration of irdials.

(1) Operations of the Board of Directors

There were six (A) Board meetings convened in 202 attendance status of the Directors
and Independent Directors is as follows:

Attendancse Attendance Attendancse
Title Name in Person by Prox Rate (%) Remark
® | Y| @A
Chairman Yung-Hui Tseng 6 0 100% Re-elected on 2an2022
Director Chih-Kaou Lee 0 100% Re-elected on Rine2022
Director Ming-Shiaw Lu 6 0 100% Re-elected on Jahe2022
Director George Huang 6 0 100% Re-elected on Jun2@22
Independent| o Boh Lee 6 0 100% | Re-elected on June 21, 2042
Director
Independent| i rsau Lee 6 0 100% | Re-elected on June 21, 202p
Director
Ing(iar;;i?grent Chia-Hsin Chang 6 0 100% Newly-elected on Jun@22

Annotations:

1.

The Board meeting’s date, session, and contentsotibns, opinions of all Independent Directors, §nd

actions taken by the Company regarding the opiniginsll be specified if one of the followir]
circumstances occurs:

g

(1) Matters specified in Article 14-3 of the Securiteesd Exchange Act: Not applicable. The Company

has established the Audit Committee and is sulbjeétticle 14-5 of the Securities and Exchalrf
Act.

ge

(2) Except for items specified above, other resolutionswhich an Independent Director expregses

objection or reservation, either by recorded statdror in writing: None.

For situations where Directors recuse themselves fany motion due to conflict of interest, the

Directors’ names, contents of motions, causes Her recusal, and participation in voting shall
specified:
(1) Second Board meeting on March 9, 2023:

be

A. Contents of motion: Submission of recommendatioms amnual compensation of the

Chairman and President.
i. Director recused: Chairman, Yung-Hui Tseng
ii. Cause for the recusal: Personal interest.
ii. Participation in voting: Not participated in voting
(2) Third Board meeting on May 4, 2023:
A. Contents of motion: Recommendations on 2022 empla@@mpensation to managers &
remuneration to Directors.
i. Director recused: Chairman, Yung-Hui Tseng
ii. Cause for the recusal: Personal interest.
iii. Participation in voting: Not participated in voting
(3) Sixth Board meeting on November 2, 2023:
A. Contents of motion: Recommendations on 2023 sadajystments of the Chairman a
managers.
i. Director recused: Chairman, Yung-Hui Tseng

nd

ii. Cause for the recusal: Personal interest.
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iii. Participation in voting: Not participated in voting
TWSE-listed and TPEx-listed companies shall distlite frequency, scope, method, and details o
self (or peer) performance evaluations of the Beaudl the implementation status:
The Company amended the Methods for Performancli&ii@n of the Board of Directors in 202&d
completed the performance evaluation before theMat, 2024 as required. Details are as follows:

Frequency Period Scope Method Details

Performance assessment on the Board:
Internal 1. Level of participation in corporate operations

Directors | assessment on3. Composition and structure of the Board.

the Board |4. Election and continuing education of Directo

5. Internal control.

Performance assessment on individual Board
members

1. Command over corporate goals and mission

Individual | Self-assessmen2. Understanding of Directors’ duties.

J;g;grilol, Board among Board| 3. Level of participation in corporate operations
Annually members members |4. Internal relationship management and
December 31, communication
2023 '

5. Specialty and education of Directors.
6. Internal control.

1. Level of participation in corporate operations

election of members.
5. Internal control.

(1) The average self-assessment scores of the Boarthdivlual Board members were both 4.
(out of 5), indicating an excellent Board operation

(2) The average self-assessment scores of the Comjpen€aammittee and the Audit Committ
were 4.97 and 5 (out of 5), respectively, with aarall average performance score of 4.98 (ou

the

Board of | performance [2. Enhancement on the quality of Board decisigns.

S.

Performance assessment on functional commiflees

e':;;?::::]ce 2. Understanding of functional committees’ dutigs.
Functional| P 3. Enhancement on the quality of functional
. assessment on . ) -
committees : committees’ decisions.
functional L . .
) 4. Composition of the functional committees arjfl
committees

03

be
t of

5) for the functional committees. Every committeember was satisfied with the assessnment

criteria.
Objectives of strengthening the functionality ot tBoard of Directors (e.g., to establish an a
committee, to enhance information transparency) e&idhe current year and the most recent year
evaluation of the execution thereof:

(1) The Company had drawn up the “Rules of Procedurghe Board of Directors’ Meeting” in
accordance with “Regulations Governing ProcedureBioard of Directors Meetings of Publjc
Companies” and established Independent Directaitipos to strengthen the functionality of the

Board and prompt enhancement on the quality of @akecisions. Directors’ attendance of {

idit
and

he

Board meetings and major resolutions were disclagethe Market Observation Post System

(MOPS) website on a timely basis to improve infatioyatransparency.

(2) Compensation Committee and Audit Committee werabdished on January 19, 2009 and June

13, 2016, respectively. These Committees assigBdlaed with the implementation and evaluat

on

of the Company’s entire compensation and welfarstesys and regularly review t

e

appropriateness of compensation to the Directord emanagement team. Charters of these
Committees are updated to reflect changes in laadsregulations, thereby facilitating membdrs’
execution of duties stipulated in the Securitied &xchange Act, the Company Act, and other

applicable laws and regulations.

(3) The Company has spokesperson and deputy spokespetsoh can serve as communicatjon
channels for stakeholders. Shareholders’ prop@salaccepted in accordance with the schedule of
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(4)

()

the
nd

shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders with the rightsnake proposals may do so during

acceptance period and the proposals will be revetye the Board as required by laws &
regulations.

The Board resolved to create the position of Ciie¥ernance Officer on January 21, 2021. The
officer would be responsible to handle matters @ased with corporate governance and agsist
Directors with business execution to fulfill thepsuvisory function. The Company also amengled
the “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principdes! “Methods for Performance Evaluation| of

the Board of Directors” for compliance.

Directors shall meet the threshold set by the caempeauthority regarding the training hours

continuing education. Board members are encourtmearticipate in professional courses w
related laws and regulations promoted during Boaeétings for regulatory compliance.

or
ith

(2)

Operations of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee convened five (A) meetings 022, The attendance status of
Independent Directors are as follows:

Title

Attendancs
Rate (%)
(B/A)

Attendance
in Person

(B)

’Attendance

by Proxy Remark

Name

Independent
Director

Kin-Tsau Lee 5 0 100% Re-elected on June 21, 202

Independent
Director

San-Boh Lee 5 0 100% Re-elected on June 21, 2042

Independent
Director

Chia-Hsin Chang 5 0 100% | Newly-elected on Jun€@22

Annotations:

1. The

Company’s Audit Committee comprises three ledeent Directors.Their professiond

qualifications and experience are set out in llbrgbrate Governance / 2.irBctors, Independe
Directors, President, Vice Presidents, AssistardeViPresidents and Managers of Department
Branches / (1) Directors and Independent Directdds Professional Qualifications of Directors 4
Independence Status of Independent Directors (page 13). Major tasks and items reviewsdthe
Committee are listed as follows:

(1) Fair presentation of financial statements

(2) Appointment and discharge of CPAs and assessmernitglependence and performance

(3) Effective implementation of internal control system

(4) Regulatory compliance

(5) Controls over existing or potential risks

(6) Reviews on mergers and acquisitions

When one of the followingituations occurs, the date and session of theimge&ontents of motion
objections, reservations or joa recommendations of Independent Directors; rdggmis of the
Committee and actions taken by the Company regauttim Committee’s opinions shall be specified

(1) Matters specified in Article 14-5 of the Securitegsd Exchange Act:

Meeting
(Session)

Opinions or Majo

Recommendatior]

of Independent
Directors

Resolution
of Audit
Committes

Date of Actions

Contents of Motions
Taken

2023.01.19
(1st meeting
in 2023)

(1) Proposed to approve the formulation of the Comps
general principles for the pre-approval of rassurang
service policy

Proposed to approve the Company’s engageme
CPAs and the audit fee for 2023

Proposed to apply for a financing facility not eeding

NT$2 billion to the bank syndicate

Submitted
to the
Board for
resolutiond
and
proceeded

)
®3)

N/A Approved

(4)

Proposed to approve the loans providedhe affiliate
Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd.

accordingl;l
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®)

Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the imftfd
Motech Power Zeta

(6) Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iftd
Motech Power One
(1) Proposed to approve the Company’s parent com
only and consolidated financial statements forytbai
ended December 31, 2022
(2) Proposed to approve the Company’'s 2022 ear Submitted
distribution to the
2oz(g.nod3.09 (3) Proposed toapprove the Company’'s 2022 opera Board for
meeting in report N/A Approved | resolutiond
2023) (4) Proposed to approve the Company’'s “2022 State and
of Internal Control System” proceeded
(5) Proposed to approve the amendments to the Comy accordinghyf
“Internal  Control  System”,  “Internal  Aud
Implementation Rules” and  “Proceduresfor
Self-assessment on Internal Control System”
2023.05.04
(3rd meeting N/A N/A N/A N/A
in 2023)
(1) Propose to approve theductions in capital and to
investment of the Group entityMotech (Suzhoy .
Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (SNE) Sligrmt;ed
2023.08.03 (2) Propose toapprove the amend_ments to some art Board for
. within the Articles of Incorporation of the Grouptity, .
(4fchmeet|ng SNE N/A Approved | resolutiong
in 2023) (3) Power Islands Limited proposed teduce capital i andd
line with the capital reduction of SN&hd repatriate th apcr(?(;:r%ein elc
investment funds 9N
(4) Proposed to approve the loans provided to affgiate
(1) Proposed to approve the Company’s 2024 audit plgn Submitted
(2) Proposed to approve the amendments to the Comy to the
2023.11.02 “Internal  Control  System”,  “Internal  Aud Board for
(5th meeting Implementation Rules” and  “Procedures N/A Approved | resolutiong
in 2023) Self-assessment on Internal Control System” and
proceeded
accordinghyf
(1) Proposed to approve the Company’s parent com
only and consolidated financial statements forythai
ended December 31, 2023
(2) Proposed to approve the Company’'s 202&ning
distribution Submitted
(3) Proposed to approve the Company’'s 2a#&ratio to the
2024.03.07| report Board for
(1st meeting(4) Proposed to approvéhe Company’s engagement N/A Approved | resolutiond
in 2024) CPAs and the audit fee for 2024 and
(5) Proposed to approve the Company’s change of CPAs proceeded
(6) Proposed to approve the amendmenthieéoCompany’ accordinglyj

()

general principles for the pre-approval of rassurang
service policy
Proposed to approve the Company’s “20&atemer

of Internal Control System”

(2) Except for above-mentioned items, resolutions whige not approved by the Audit Committee
but was approved by two-thirds or more of all Dices: None.

in voting shall be specified: None.

For situations where Independent Directors rechsenselves from any motion due to conflict
interest, the Independent Directors’ names, contdntsotions, causes for the recusal, and participi

Communications between the Independent Directtrs, imternal audit officer, and CPAs (It sh
include material isues concerning the finance and business of thep@wmyn and the means 3
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outcomes of communication):

(1) The internal audit officer regularly communicatesdia findings with members of the Audit

Committee and presents internal audit reports éngharterly Audit Committee meetings. When

special circumstance arises, the officer would refmthe Audit Committee on a timely basis.
2023, none of the said special circumstance hadrot. The communication channels betw
Audit Committee and internal audit officer have i@ed smoothly.

(2) CPAs report the audit or review outcome on thestatgiarterly financial reports in the quartey
Audit Committee meetings as well as other itemsuireg to be communicated pursuant

In
ben

y
to

appliable laws and regulations. When special cigtance arises, they would report to the Aydit

Committee on a timely basis. In 2023, none of thiel special circumstance had occurred.
communication channels between Audit Committee@Réas have operated smoothly.
Communications betgen Independent Directors, internal audit officed £PAs are summarized

[he

follows:
Meetings Dates Communications with L :
(Session) Internal Audit Officer Communications with CPAs
2023.01.19 |e Review internal audit report
(1st meeting in
2023)
® Review 2022 “Statement |® CPAs discussed and communicated &
2023.03.09 Internal Control System” findings and issues concerning the fina
(2nd meeting in| ® Review internal audit report statements for the year ended Decembe
2023) 2022
® Updates on relevant laws
® Review internal audit report ® CPAs discussed and communicated
findings and issues concerning the fina
2023.05.04 statements for the three months ended Marc
(3rd meeting in 2023
2023) ® Updates on relevant laws
® Assessment on CPAs’ competencan
independence
® Review internal audit report ® CPAs discussed and communicated jl
2023.08.03 findings and issues concerning the fina
(4th meeting in statements for the six months ended Jund
2023) 2023
® Updates on relevant laws
® Review internal audit report ® CPAs discussed and communicated 4§
2023.11.02 |e Review 2024 internal audit plart  findings and issues concerning the finan
(5th meeting in statements for the nine months ended Septe
2023) 30, 2023
® Updates on relevant laws
Outcome: The aforementioned matters were reviewedapproved by the Audit Committge.

Independent Directors did not raise any objections.
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(3) Implementation of Corporate Governance Practiced aon-compliance with “Corporate Governance Besactte Principles for
TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Companies” and reasons

Status Non-compliance
Assessment Item —
Yes| No Description and Reasons
Does the Company follow the Corporate Governancs |Be” The Company has established the “Corporate GomeenaBest

Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Comparnies

establish and disclose its corporate governancsipesa?

Practice Principles” and other corporate governaataed policieg
including Rules and Procedures of Shareholders'tiMigeRules and
Procedures of Board of Directors’ Meeting, Rules Election of
Directors, Rules and Procedures for Finance andnBss between
Affiliates, Code of Ethical Conduct for EmployeeSpmpensation

Committee Charter, Procedures for Handling Materiakide None
Information, Internal Audit System, Internal Corntrdsystem,
Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of AssetspcBdures fof

Lending Funds to Other Parties, Procedures for Eedeent and
Guarantee and Rules Governing the Supervision lo$iSiaries.

The Company has disclosed corporate governancariafmn at the

corporate website (https://www.motech.com.tw/) M@OPS.

Ownership structure and shareholders’ rights

(1) Does the Company have internal operation procedurés (1) Besides engaging a professional share registréiatalle stock
to handle shareholders’ suggestions, concerns,téisp affairs, the Company has spokesperson system @e jgls.well as
and litigations and proceed accordingly? risk management & stock affair sector and legalad@pent to

assist with handling shareholders’ suggestionsdisylites.

(2) Does the Company possess a list of mgjef (2) Through the professional share registrar, the Comgeas full
shareholders and ultimate owners of these major control and understands the structure of majorettrdders and
shareholders? shareholdings of shareholders with 10% or more loé

Company’s shares. The Company files relevant indbion
including changes in shareholdings of Directors arahagers gt None
MOPS monthly.

(3) Does the Company build and execute [isK (3) The Company and its subsidiaries have establistebelvant

management and firewall mechanism between itself systems required by law, including the internal toainsystem

and affiliates?

Rules and Procedures for Finance and Business é&etwe

Affiliates, and Rules Governing the SupervisiorSobsidiaries to
regulate purchase/sales transactions with afffjagcquisition
and disposal of assets, endorsement and guaramteterading
funds to other parties, thereby properly managihg tisks

between the Company and its associates and ehiaflis
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Assessment ltem

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance
and Reasons

(4) Does the Company have internal rules to pre
insiders from using undisclosed information to &
securities?

verit
ad

(4)

appropriate firewalls.
The Company has established the “Procedures fordlihar
Material Inside Information”, stipulating that Dat®rs, manage
and employees of the Company shall not leak méatarsade
information that they are aware of; nor shall teeguire after o
collect non-public material information that aret mrelated ta
their official duties from parties that are awaré such
information; and neither shall they leak non-pubfimaterial
information that they become aware of outside tbarse of
business.
In addition to sending letters reminding of thescliee perioc
before the issuance of financial reports, the Campalso
promotes insider trading prevention laws and rdguia to
current Directors as required. Also, the “Proceddoe Handling
Material Inside Information” are included in theuedtion andg
training program for new employees to ensure dffe
compliance with legal procedures.

=

—

3. Composition and duties of the Board of Directors
(1) Has the Board established a diversity policy
specific management goals and have them
implemented accordingly?

and
been

(1)

Diversity policy is stipulated in Chapter Il “Enheement o
Board Functions” of the Company’s “Corporate Goasice
Best-Practice Principles”. Diversity shall be caesed with
respect to Board composition. Appropriate policyalshbe
established based on the Company’s operation, égsitype an
development needs and the Company is actively hgofdr one
female Director. Such policy shall include but riohited to
standards of the following two aspects:

A. Basic conditions and values

B. Professional knowledge and skills

The current Board members have diverse backgrowritiswork|
experience and expertise in operatiamanagement, indust
know-how, finance and accounting, academia and letye
finance and strategic management. They can offefegsiong
opinions from different angles to enhance the Compa
management efficiency and operation performancaebieer, al
three Independent Directors have thaowledge, skills an

None, except fg
item (2)
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Status Non-compliance
Yes| No Description and Reasons

Assessment ltem

competence required to perform their duties, wificther enricl

the diversity policy and implementation guidelinencerning

Board members talign with the spirit of corporate governa

and business development needs.

Education, work experience, prefonal qualificatior

independence and diversity of Directors are set ioutlll.

Corporate Governance / 2.irBctors, Independent Directo

President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice Pressdeanc

Managers of Departments and Branches / (1) Directou

Independent Directors.

(2) Has the Company voluntarily established functiopnal | v* |(2) Audit Committee was established in 2016: All threembers ar
committees in addition to Compensation and Audit Independent Directors. The Compensation Committegs| w
Committees which are required by laws? established in 2011: All three members are IndepeinDirectors

Except for the Audit Committee and the Compensation

Committee to assist the Board with performing itdieb, the

Company has yet to establish other functional cdtess.

U

(3) Has the Company formulated rules and methods for (3) The Company’s Board of Directors had approved tkethods None, except fg
the performance assessment of the Board and carried for Performance Evaluation of the Board of Direstoy item (2)
out such assessments annually? Is the outcome of Performance evaluations on the Board and functiocoamittees
performance assessment submitted to the Board of (including Compensation Committee and Audit Comaei}tare
Directors and used as reference for the remunaratio conducted at least annually with outcomes repdadetie Board
and re-election nomination of individual Director? The evaluations are carried out by the corporateerg@ance uni

after the end of each year using internal questimas througt
internal evaluations and self-evaluations of thexdomember
and functional committees. The scope of evaluatigiudes the
performance evaluation on the entire Board, indigldBoard
member, Compensation Committee and Audit Committee.

Evaluation criteria include level of participatian corporate
operations, enhancement on the decision qualityposition andl
structure of the Board and functional committels,dlection an
continuing education of member of the Board andctional
committee and internal controls. Outcomes of tha&lwation are
reported to the Board and used as reference faretheneratior
and re-election nomination of individual Directd®articipants
achieved good scores in 2023, and the evaluatitcomes wer

P——=—"F

o

D
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Assessment ltem

Status

Non-compliance

Yes| No Description and Reasons
reported to the Board on March 7, 2024 as a referdar the
continuous enhancement of Board functions, as agltiscloseg
at the corporate website for investors.
(4) Has the Company periodically evaluated |th€ (4) The Company’s Audit Committee assesses the indemersdand

independence of its CPAs?

suitability of CPAs on an annual basis. In additiom the
“Declaration of Independence” provided by CPAs,easment
were conducted on whether there was any violatidr

circumstances set out in No. 10 Bulletin of NormPobfessional

Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Repalof China
and in accordance with the Audit Quality IndicatGkIs).

The Company has confirmed that other than audittardees
there is no financial interests nor business batvike Compan
and the CPAs, and the family members of CPAs dwiaddte the
requirements for independence. The assessmentg ipaist twg
fiscal years were approved by the Audit Committee the Boar(
on May 4, 2023 and May 2, 2024.

Details of CPA independence assessment are aw$ollo

Evaluation

Evaluation ltem Result

None, except fd

The same CPA has continuously provided audit ses|
to a TWSE-listed/TPEksted company for less thi Yes
seven years

item (2)

Close business relationships with the audit client No
Family member or personal relationship No
Employee of the audit client No

Provision of services to directors, supervisor, aggng No
or persons with equivalent positions of the aulikint

Material gifts and preferential treatment No

Non-audit services: Including bookkeeping, appfaisa
tax, internal audits, dispatch of short-term woskand No
recruitment of senior management

Financing and guarantee No
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Assessment ltem

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance
and Reasons

Does the Company have an adequate number of gaalifr’

corporate governance personnel and appoint a [chief
corporate governance officer to handle mattersapeng
to corporate governance (including but not limittx
provide information required for business executhpn
directors and supervisors, assist directors andrsigors
with regulatory compliance, handle matters pertjrio
board meetings and shareholders’ meetings accotding
laws and regulations, produce minutes of board imgs
and shareholders meetings, etc.)?

—

1) To

(2)

3)

(4)

implement corporate governance and strengthea
functionality of the Board, the Company approvede
appointment of Director, Chien-Tung Chen, as thdiaged
Chief Governance Officer in the Board meeting ongéat 5,
2021 pursuant to applicable rules. His qualifiaagiosatisfy
requirements for Chief Governance Officer set nlRaragraph 1
Article 3-1 of the Corporate Governance Best-PcacRrinciples
for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies.
The Chief Governance Officer, staff of the finarsepartment
and conference logistics team are in charge of cratp
governance matters. The main duties of the ChiefeGmnce
Officer are to provide information required for mess executiop
by Directors; assist Directors with regulatory cdianpce,
onboarding and continuing education; handle magersaining
to meetings of the Board, committees and sharef®ldad
produce meeting minutes.
Duties performed in 2023 are as follows:
A. Assist with providing Directors with information ngiged for
business execution and continuing education.
B. Collect and notify Board members of amendmentsuivslan
regulations pertaining to corporate governance.
. Six Board meetings and five Audit Committee meetinwgre
held in 2023.
. One general shareholders’ meeting was held in 2023.
The Company purchased liability insurance for Dimezano
reported the renewal to the Board afterwards.
F. Execute Board performance evaluation.
The Company’s Chief Governance Officer was not isgnhis
first term and had completed 12 hours of contingdgcation a
required by laws and regulations. Courses taketisheel below:

mo O

12

Host Class Duration Date

Taipei Exchange

Seminar on Sustainable
Development Action Plans for
Listed Companies

April
2023

th

th

None
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Status

Assessment ltem

Non-compliance

Yes| No Description and Reasons
Environmental
Protection Seminar of Green Chemistry fof 3 May None
Administration, | Sustainability 2023
Executive Yuan
o Seminar for TPEx anq Emerging August
Taipei Exchange Sto_ck Board Com_pames on 3 2023
Insider Shareholding
Slzl,:gz:]\fig)ry The 14th Taipei Corporate 6 September]
. Governance Forum 2023
Commission
Has the Company established communication chafmels v’ The Company has maintained contact informatiomnits assigned fgr
its stakeholders (including but not limited to steslders each of the stakeholders, including banks, otheeditors,
employees, customers and suppliers) and created a shareholders, employees, customers, consumersugpdiess. Also
stakeholder section at the Company’s website toesdd the contact information of investor relations aetévant departments
their concerns on major corporate social respditgibi is available on the corporate website. A suppliatfprm is established None
issues? for stakeholders to access at any time. Our divénéermation
channels also include investors conferences. Sertignformation is
provided to our counterparties for stakeholdershtve enough
information when making decisions to safeguardrthights.
Has the Company appointed a professional registrar v’ The Company has appointed the stock managementiceser
organize the shareholders’ meetings? department of CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as the sharestemi to handl¢ None
matters related to stock affairs and shareholdeegtings.
Information disclosure 1. The Company
(1) Has the Company established a corporate websjtevto (1) Group-related business status is disclosed atdfporate website has publicly
disclose information regarding the Company’s (http://www.motech.com.tw). In addition, financialsand| announced its
financials, business and corporate governances§tatu business-related information is disclosed at MO®&quired. annual report in
(2) Does the Company have other information disclosure (2) The Company has maintained an English-languageitgebkich| compliance
channels (e.g., maintaining an English-langyage contains corporate, financial and business infalnatThere is with Article 36
website, designating people to handle information one spokesperson and one deputy spokesperson anmvéstor g;ghgisﬁ;;'t'gs
collection and disclosure, appointing spokespelson, relations and stock affairs departments are redplenfor the Act: howeve?
webcasting investor conference on the corpgrate collection and disclosure of relevant informatiomvestor| e’ '
website)? conference materials are disclosed at the corpevabsite on & announcement
timely basis. is not done
(3) Does the Company publicly announce and file| its | v |(3) Pursuant to Article 36 of the Securities and ExgeaAct, thg within two

annual financial report within two months after gred

of financial year, and its financial reports of thest

Company has:

A. publicly announced its annual financial report withhree)

months after th
end of financial
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Status

Assessment ltem

Non-compliance

Yes| No Description and Reasons
three quarters as well as operational status ofi|eac months after the end of financial year; year.
month prior to the prescribed deadlines? B. publicly announced its financial reports of thesffithreg?2. All other items
quarters within 45 days after the end of correspanduarter] have complied
and with the
C. publicly announced and filed its operational stabisthe| ©ractices.
previous month prior to the 10th of each month
Does the Company have other important informatmnp ¢ (1) Rights and welfare of employees: The Company adopts
facilitate better understanding of the Company’'pocate reasonable and humane management practices arigisbes
governance practices (including but not limitedritghts well-functioned communication channels to maintagood
and welfare of employees, investor relations, seppl labor-management relations. Regarding employeetsrigind
relations, rights of stakeholders, continuing ediocaof welfare, it not only establishes measures purst@rthe Labo
directors and supervisors, the implementation ok |ri Standards Act and related laws, but also maintaigood and
management policies and risk evaluation measuhes, t trusting relationship with employees through vasiowelfare
implementation of customer policies, and liability systems and education and training. The Compammplegies an
insurance for directors and supervisors providedthsy Employee Welfare Committee, organizes employee rame
Company) ? coverages, and provides free health check-ups hsagvearious
subsidies and activities. A complaint channel hés éeen
created to protect employees' rights and interests.
(2) Investor relations and stakeholders’ rights: The m@any
discloses financial and business information on M@PS and
corporate website (http://www.motech.com.tw/) parduto laws
and regulations and set up a stakeholder sectidihn gantact None
information. Also, there is spokesperson, deputgksppersomn
and contact information of business units availafllarough
multiple channels of communication, the Companyteuis the
basic rights of investors and fulfill its resporibiles towardg
shareholders.
(3) Supplier relations and implementation of customelicg: The

Company interacts well with suppliers. We have ldisthed the
“Procedures Governing the Supplier Assessment” "&upplier
Management Practice" for prudent selection, and ntagi
effective communication channels with suppliers. ténms of
customer policy, we enter contract and agreemenith
customers to protect their rights. The implemeatathas been
well.
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Assessment ltem

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance
and Reasons

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

Continuing education of Directors: Directors attecmlrses o
finance, business and business management fromntditiree ang
would continue to complete courses required putstanthe
“Directions for the Implementation of Continuing Ugzhtion for
Directors and Supervisors of TWSE Listed and TPEsteld
Companies”. Please refer to A. Continuing educatiobirectors
under 8. Other important information (please rédepage 58 ) t
facilitate better understanding of the Company'srpocate
governance practices for details. The informatgalso availabl
at MOPS (http://mops.twse.com.tw).

Implementation of risk management policy and assess$
standards: Please refer to 6. Risks in the MoseRexear and &
of the Date of this Annual Report and the Assesssntrereof
under VII. Review and Analysis of Financial Pogitiand
Performance and Associated Risks of this annuabrtefor
details.

Liability insurance for Directors and Supervisoféte Company
purchased liability insurance of AIG Taiwan for &stors with ar
insured amount of US$10 million for 2024 and reedrtthe
details in the Board meeting on March 7, 2024 ttegaard
shareholders’ rights.

Corporate governance-related education and trasrattgnded b
managers:

Title and Name Host Class Duratign Date
lAccounting Continuing Educatiofior
Principal  |Research and Principal Accounting

Accounting  |Development Officers of Issuers, 12 August
Officer Foundation of the |Securities Firms, and 2023
Alan Wu Republic of China [Securities Exchanges
The Institute of Mission of Audit Ethics
Internal and Impact of Internal
Audit Officer |Auditors-Chinese [Crimes 6 October
Wan-Ping Li [Taiwan 2023

O

19%

N

None
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Assessment ltem

Status

Non-compliance

Yes| No Description and Reasons
The Institute of Regulations and Case
Internal Study on Loans to
Auditors-Chinese |Others, Endorsement a 6 October
Taiwan Guarantee, and 2023
Acquisition and Dispos:
of Assets None
Chief Governand
Officer Please refer to continuing education set out iml#e(4) abovg|
Chien-Tung, |(Please refer to page 29 to 30)
Chen

(8) Certifications required by competent authority aitained by
personnel associated with information transparemy the
Company and its subsidiaries:

Certified Public Accountants of R.O.C. (CPA): 1
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA): 2

Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA): 1
Certification in Control Self-Assessment (CCSA): 1
Certification in Risk Management Assurance (CRMA):

The improvement status for the outcome of Corpo@eernance Evaluation announced by the Corporatei@ance Center of Taiwan Stock Exchange ir

most recent year and the priority of pending issues

(1) The Company ranked in the top 36~50% in th® @6rporate Governance Evaluation of SecuritiesFaridres Institute.

(2) Based on the result of 2023 Corporate Governanedugtion, the Company has carried out the followmgrovement measures: (1) Raised awarene
insider trading laws and regulations and discloseplementation status on the corporate website, (@hdEstablished cybersecurity risk managen
framework and policy, and disclosed details ondiwgorate website or in the annual report. In liiih policies promoting the Corporate Governande-]
Sustainable Development Roadmap, we will (1) uploaciterrupted video and audio recordings of thereifiolders’ meetings after the meetings, and

actively look for a Director of different gender.

the

bS ON
hent

i (2)
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(4) The composition, duties and operations of the Carsgigon Committee

A. Compensation Committee of the Company was esta&dlisim November 28, 2011. It
shall have at least three members which are amabvin Board resolutions and the
convener is elected among members. At present, Gbmpensation Committee
comprises three members with Independent DireSam;Boh Lee, being the convener.

B. The functions of the Committee are to assess thgeasation policy and system of
Directors and managers with professionalism and eatbjty, and make
recommendations to the Board as reference materidat decision-making.

C. Details of committee members are as follows:

As of April 20, 2024
. Number of Other
Condition X o
Professional qullc Compa}nles In
) . Independence Which thelndividual ig
Title Quialifications and .
. Status Concurrently Serving
Experience . .
in the Compensatior
Name '
Committee
Convenew San-Boh Please ref_er o Satisfy requirements set out in Articleg 2,
Independent D. Professional o : ; 0
; Lee e 3, and 4 of the “Regulations Governipng
Director Qualifications of ; t Ind d : S
Independent Directors and Appomtment_ of Independent Dlrectc!o
: Kin-Tsau Le€g and Compliance Matters for Public 2
Director Independence Stat C ies” and i t dews
of Independent ompgnles an I§ not a person o1 ahRy
Independent Chia-Hsin Di conditions defined in Article 26-3 of the
Director Chang Irectors on page Securities and Exchange Act 2
10 to 11 for detailg. '
D. Operations of Compensation Committee:
The term of office: June 21, 2022 to June 20, 202%. Compensation Committee held
three (A) meetings in 2023. The attendance statutaependent Directors is as
follows:
Attendance Attendance Attendance
Title Name in Person by Prox Rate (%) Remark
(B) YOV ®im)
Independent) o Bon Lee 3 0 100%
Director
Indgpendent Kin-Tsau Lee 3 0 100%
Director
Independent . .
. Chia-Hsin Chang 3 0 100%
Director
Annotation:

(1)

If the Board declines to adopt or modify a recomdaion of the Compensation Committee, the ¢

ate

and session of the Board meeting, contents of mgticesolution and actions taken by the Comgany

regard
the Bo
and its

(2) As to

ing the Committee’s opinions shall be spedifie.g., if the compensation package approvefl by
ard is better than the recommendation madidyCommittee, please specify the discrepgncy
reason): None.

the resolutions of the Compensation Commitieea member expresses any objection| or

reservation, either by recorded statement or itinvg;i the date and session of the committee meeting

conten
None.
Respo

®3)

matters:

ts of motions, all members’ opinions andamtitaken regarding the opinions shall be specitied

nsibilities of the Compensation Committeetardraw up recommendations for the followihg
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A. Formulate and regularly review the annual and Hhamgy performance targets, and
compensation policies, systems, standards andwtescof Directors, Supervisors and manageys.

B. Regularly assess the achievement status of Diseatut managers concerning the performi
targets and determine the compensation packageamaodnt of individuals. The aforementior,
recommendations shall be submitted to the Boardefwlution.

The resolutions of the 2023 Compensation Committeetings are as follows:

Opinions of
Date of Meeting Contents of Motions Committee Membel
and Actions Taken
2023.03.09 (1) Distribution of 2022 compensation to employees |and
(1st méetih in remuneration to Directors
2023) g (2) Recommendations on annual compensation of the @aajr
and President
2023.05.04 . . Appf(_)ved by all
(2nd méetfn in (1) Recommendations on distribution of 2028mployed attending member;
2023) g compensation to managers and remuneration to Bnect and the Board
2023.11.02 |(1) Recommendations on 2023 salary adjustments of| the
(3rd meeting in Chairman and managers
2023)

E. Composition, duties and operation of the Nomina@@mmittee: The Company has yet
to set up a nomination committee.
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(5) Implementation of Sustainable Developments

=N

D

A. Implementation of Sustainable Developments and blmpliance with Sustainable Development Best RractPrinciples for
TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Companies and Reasons
P : Status Non-compliance an
romotion Items — Reasons
Yes | No Description
Does the Company establish a governance structu v' | At present, sustainable developments of the Compamgxecuted h
promoting sustainable developments and set uj units under the Chairman and the President. Taskbide the
exclusively (or concurrently) dedicated sustairigbilinit approval of climate change response strategies,ptbenotion of
with senior management being authorized by the Boa climate actions topics and target management. Thsident wuld
handle relevant issues under the supervision oBtad? report the status of greenhouse gas (GHIGhning and execution
the Board on a regular basis. The Company has
The Company also reviews the operation of susténddvelopment scheduled to
on an ongoing basigursuant to applicable laws and regulation{establish the
well as adjusts and setsp a sustainability organization as |governance structur,
operation center for corporate sustainable devedopsiNe expect t( for sustainable
complete the governance structure and organizatior2024 and developments and g
conduct analyses on stakeholders including emptgyseareholder|up a relevant unit in
customers, suppliers, government and society potstm relevan|2024.
standards; promote the vision of our pursdiisustainability from th
top down; formulate execution plans pertagnito environmentd
protection, employee care and community engagerasnivell as
prepare the sustainable reports. The implementatiottome is
reported to the Board when the need arises.
Does the Company conduct risk assessmenty v

environmental, social and corporate governancees
related to the Company’s operations in accordanite
the materiality principle, and formulateslevant rish
management policies or strategies?

The Company’s Board of Directors is the higheskiiag unit in
terms of risk management. Its objectives includegulaory
compliance and the promotion and implementationaohpany-wide
risk management. It clearly understands the risksomerations
ensures the effectiveness of risk management akek tan thg
ultimate responsibility for risk management. Intrfudit Office
reports directly to the Board. It monitors and pde¢ methods an

procedures of internal controls and internal auditsensure am

effective risk management operation.
Management strategies and objectivesnulated by the Compar
concerningenvironmental, social and governance issues ased

d None
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Promotion Items

Status

Non-compliance an

Yes

No

Description

Reasons

=N

with operations are as follows:

Major Issue

Assessment Item

Management Strategy
and Objective

Environmenta

Savings on electricity an
water, waste
management, sustainab
products

jPlease refer to ltem 3
eEnvironmental issues for
details.

Social

Customer safety, custom
privacy, occupational
safety and health

1 Ensure products comp
with safety regulations
2 Confidentiality

data protection for
customers’ privacy to

er protect stakeholders’
interests.

3 Strive to maintain the
fatality rate, disabling
injury severity rate and
disabling injury
frequency rate of
non-employee workers
at zero.

agreement and personjg

~

—

e

None

Corporate
Governance

Compliance with
corporate governance
laws and regulations

corporate governance
policy

2 Examine internal
policies based on
amendmentt laws ang
regulations for
regulatory compliance
to lower the risk of
violation.

1 Continue to improve on
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Promotion Items

Status

Non-compliance an

Yes

No

Description

Reasons

=N

3. Environmental issues

(1) Does the
management
characteristics?

Company establish

system designed to fit

(2) Is the Company committed to improving the eng
efficiency and utilizing renewable materials thawé|
low environmental impact?

environmental
industry

]

(1)

(2)

A. The environment, safety and health (ESHinagemen
system established by the Company includes 1SO1,4

t
00

ISO-45001 and GHG inventory to ensure managements

over internal environment and occupational safaty
health are in line with international trends.

The Company’s ESH management system operates
the existing organizational structure and has obthithe)
ISO-14001:2015 (2021.11.05 to 2024.10.14) certifica
It approves annual strategic objectives of ESH ds
where each department shall formulate specificativjes
based on risk assessment outcomes for implemeamtztid
monitoring. The results and execution effect of sstem
are submitted for review and modification to acki
continuous improvement. Through the implementatd
the “ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Managem
System,” the Company adopts the concept of pro
lifecycle, aiming to reduce the consumption of 1
materials and waste generation. Additionally, ttaarce
resource efficiency, environmental impact is coesd in
the selection of processes and raw materials ierotal
achieve sustainable operations and environmg
protection.
The Company has carried out various energy conseny
measures, including the optimization of equipmepération
and lighting management. In 2023, Motech saved4388kWh
of electricity and cut down energy consumption H$98.366
GJ. The water resource reduction, recycling andeguogran
continuously recycles wastewater for reuse. It aoba thg
recovery rate of process water and reduces theuogigon of
tap water and volume of wastewater discharged0#82a tota
of 3,650 metric tons of water was saved. The impletation of]

a

und

1°2)
c

None
3V

I

ent
duct
aw

antal

a

waste reduction and reuse brought the waste reratedto
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Status

=N

p . Non-compliance an
romotion Items — Reasons
Yes | No Description
95.17% in 2023.
(3) Does the Company assess the present and futdre (3) The Company has adopted international managemetensy
potential risks as well as opportunities of clinfate including 1ISO-14001 and ISO-14064-1 to assess Hataisks
change for the entity, and takes measures to resoon as well as opportunities from climate change. Ratgpis
climate-related issues? promulgated by the competent environmental autksriand
requests from stakeholders are also taken intouatcdVe
formulate energy and water saving measures andasggts
every year. Actions taken, targets and outcomestated below
® Implement various energgaving schemes in line with t
“determination and execution of energy conservg
objectives by energy users” of the Ministry of Econc
Affairs, e.g., optimization of equipment operati@md
adoption of energy-saving lighting.
® Continue to move towards advanced process techyyg None
thereby producing ectiendly solar products with hig
conversion efficiency and contributinp a sustainab
earth.
® In response to climate change mitigation and adiapt;
the Company sets up a GHi@ventory and reductio
management team to collect GHG emission data ¢
year.
® Through continuous improvement in technology
investments on equipment, the recoveayes of proces
water and wastewater of the entire factory wer8%8and
77.4% in 2023, respectively.
® In response to the severe water shortages in 2022@23

and to satisfy the water rationing ratios releabgdthe
Water Resources Agency, the Company has estable
water resource dispatch platform where meetingshale
to discuss possible wateaving schemes of each fact
when the need arises. Through this mechanisr
communication and discussion platform between

facilities and equipment departments is built t@iee
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Promotion Items

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance an
Reasons

=N

(4) Does the Company calculate its GHG emissions,

consumption and total waste weight in the past
and formulate policies for
conservation, reductions of carbon, GHG and w
consumption, or other waste management?

fiscal

years,

ene

vasér
two

rgy
ater

(4)

possible water-saving measures for facilities aadhmes,

The Company conducts GHG inventory at each faciary

Taiwan pursuant to the organization-level standamtedures
of 1ISO-14064-1 Greenhouse Gas Accounting and ‘gatifin.
Details of water consumption and total weight okteaas wel
as the policies, targets, and action plans of gnesgservation
carbon reduction, GHG reduction, water reductiod ather
waste management and the effects thereof arelas/$ol

® GHG Emissions:

Year

Scope 1
(MT of CO2e)

Scope 2
(MT of CO2e)

2022

1,431

22,882

2023

1,489

21,324

The Company conducts GHG inventory at each faciary
Taiwan pursuant to the organization-level standatedures
of 1SO-14064-1 Greenhouse Gas Accounting and etifin
as the first step in energy-saving and carbon temucGHG
emissions in 2023 was 22,813 metric tons of CO2e.

With respect to optimization of equipment operatidhe
Company cut down electricity purchased. Settingttliget af
522,142kWh for 2023, the Company managed to
613,653kWh of electricity, delivering an achievemesate of
118%. As for GHG reduction, the target was set6& @etric
tons of CO2e while the actual saving equaled 3@ Mmgtric

None

save

tons of CO2e, i.e., an achievement rate of 116%.

Energy-saving Amount GHG_
ltem 1 Measures (KWH) Reduction
(MT of CO2e)
o Replace heat dissipation
Optimization| materials of cooling | 365,730 181.036
of equipment towers
i Adjust operation
operation freqdency%fchillers 247,923 122.722
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Promotion Items

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance an
Reasons

=N

® \Water consumption

Year Tap Water (MT)
2022 268,738
2023 222,705

In line with regulatory requirements, the recoveste of
wastewater for the year was expected to be 76.@586h
factory constantly improves the recovery of wastewdrom
process. The recovery rates of process water astewater of
the factory as a whole were 78.3% and 77.4% in 2
respectively, which met the targets. The total comgion of
tab water was 222,705 metric tons in 2023. Sincairpwater
was not used, the issue of land subsidence caysdddtining
groundwater levels did not exist.

® Total waste

Hazardous General Reuse Volume
Year Industrial Wast&ndustrial Waste (MT)
(MT) (MT)
2022 984.54 275.63 1,192.15
2023 1,080.66 185.10 1,204.61

With life cycles in mind, Motech reduces the conption of
limited resources on the planet and prioritizesseefor wastg
treatment. The waste reuse rate was 95.17% in 20B8
Company also formulates management mechanisms dste
treatment and conducts audits on engaged supplieessure
processes are legal.

The Company continues to conduct voluntary GHG riteees
in accordance with 1ISO-14064-1. All internal opemas adhere

023

None

v

to the standard inventory procedures. The relateaten

<
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Promotion Items

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance an
Reasons

=N

consumption, total waste weight and targets of gynsaving,
carbon reduction, and GHG reduction all comply W

government regulations. External verification ibestuled to be

conducted in 2028.

ith

4. Social issues

(1) Does the Company formulate appropriate manage
policies and procedures according to related laved
regulations and the International Bill of Hum

Rights?

(2) Does the Company formulate and execute reaso

ment
a
an

hatfle

employee welfare measures (including compensation,
leaves and other benefits), and have the operating

performance or results properly reflected in emp&y

compensation?

(1)

()

The Company and its subsidiaries comply with lakgulations
and acts promulgated by the government as welljggost and
respect international human rights standards. Tgirdaternal
promotion, we safeguard labor rights for every apeé to bg
treated fairly and with respect. Relevant rulesfarmulated ag
the basis for employee management and compliance.

The Company’s basic wage, work hour, leaves, pansidor
and health insurance, and occupational accidenpeonsatior]

for recruitment are all in compliance with the Lal8iandards

Act. The Employee Welfare Committee (EWC) is esshigld

through employee election to carry out various arel

measures. Labor-management meetings are held rggtoa

communicate ideas, thereby achieving a win-winasitun for

labor and management.

Reasonable employee welfare measures formulated

executed by the Company are as follows:

A. To motivate employees in terms of achievementg-tenm
engagement, talent retention and growth with then@ny,

the overall compensation package is determineddbas¢

employees’ professional competence and skills, Sotpe)
and performance as well as the Company’'s oper
objectives. The pay is not differentiated by gendeligion,
race, nationality and political parties. Moreovdhe
Company sets a reasonable and competitive salagl
with reference to local laws and regulations, idu
practice and performance of each subsidiary.

B. Diverse and fair workplace: The Company respectsigg

]

D

f

None
and

ating

le
5

equality as well as equal pay and promotion oppdtias. In
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Promotion Items

Status

Non-compliance an

Yes

No

Description

Reasons

=N

(3) Does the Company provide a safe and healthy

environment and periodic safety and health traipin

work

®3)

2023, female employees accounted for 44% and woma
managerial position accounted for 26%.

C. The Company actively promotes excellent emplg
welfares. Besides recreation center, malls andarjhran
EWC is set up to coordinate and organize employsléave
activities. Employees are entitled to qift certifies for|
birthdays and special festivals as well as casks dur
weddings and celebration and subsidies for funeaald
hospitalization. These measures demonstrate oer aaal
support for our employees.

A. Measures on employee safety and health arellas/fo

a. Regular environmental inspection at factories \

timely improvements. Ensure regulatory complia
and employee safety and health.

Regular safety trainings, e.g., fire and emergefiis
and timely disclosure and warnings on job sites
enhance employees’ safety awareness.

Health consultation services and employee he
ranking for case management in order to maintag
physical and mental health of employees.

Annual health check-up which is superior to regura
requirements in terms of frequency.

E-health management platform where employees
understand their health status and access per
health data without time constraints in order torc
out comprehensive self-health management.
There are group-specific health management prog
such as personal illness consultation and managde
case management for employees with cardiovas
disease or chronic diseases, health ran
management for employees engaging in spd

yee

None

vith
nce

5 to

alth
th

can
sonal
A

rams
men
cular
king
pcial

operations, care and health management for pre(

ynant

employees, and case management for occupational
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Promotion Items

Status

Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance an
Reasons

=N

(4) Has

the Company established effective c3g
development training plans for employees?

re€r

(4)

injuries and iliness. All data are retained propert
B. Detailed explanations

Education and promotion of occupational safetyhia past
two fiscal years:

No. of Training

Year .
Sessions

No. of Participantg

2022 12 3,263

2023 11 3,065

C. Occupational incident
In 2023, there were seven off-premises occupationaies
(traffic accidents) of employees, one on-prem
occupational injuries of employees and one occapat
injuries of contractors. By factories, the numbef
on-premises occupational injuries and the rate @ee
thousand employees were one and 3.0 for Factorgnt,
zero and O for Factory V, respectively.
For on-premises occupational injuries, the Comp
established an investigation team and issued
environmental safety report pursuant to the Norm
Management of Environment, Safety and Health Imid
Noncompliance and Corrective Measures, describirey
event and actions taken. An occupational injurytimngevas
held to detail improvement measures, action plang
implementation outcomes thereof throy
accident/incident/abnormality investigation repartd risk
identification to prevent a reoccurrence of siméaents.
Motech places great importance on human resd
developments and strive for improvements in prodess
competence. We provide systematic learning systamd
environment to forge a culture of active employegrhing and
management assistance while satisfying the needofporate

management and individual developments. Careerajavent

Ses

None
any

an
fo

urce
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Status

Promotion Items
Yes

No

Description

Non-compliance an
Reasons

=N

(5) Has the Company complied with related regulatlor$
and international standards for issues of customer
health and safety, customer privacy, marketing [and
labeling of products and services, and formulated
relevant consumer or customer protection policies| a
complaint procedures?

(6) Has the Company formulated supplier managemerit
policies that require suppliers to follow relevant
regulations on issues such as environmental
protection, occupational safety and health, or dabo

(©®)

(6)

training covers different learning levels includimgdividual
development, diverse learning courses, assistanoe
employee’s continuing education. Training prograrase
arranged based on individual's career developmgaib,

requirements and performance evaluation outcomeesdh

programs cover human rights education and trainimgsopics
such as occupational safety and Labor Standards Act

PV modules produced by the Company have all corédrio
the reliability testing standards of the new IE@®B3 and IEC
61730 as well as various international safety ratijuhs and
performance certifications. They have also passaivan’s
Voluntary Product Certification (VPC). At the santine,
Motech is committed to the development of qualignagement
system and has obtained relevant ISO certificat{t®©-9001

Quality Management System and ISO-14001 Environatgnt

Management System), achieving the Company’s qupbticy
of reliable products and attentive services.

In terms of customers’ privacy, the Company adh¢oethe
confidentiality agreemegfiind Personal Data Protection Act.
mitigate health and safety risks of employees,tafisi and
customers, the Company has obtained the certiicatf

OHSAS 18001 Occupational Safety and Health Manageme

System. We also provide standardized and effectveplaint

procedures for our products and services and atipul

accountability and relevant rules in contracts witlstomers
When relevant issues arise, customers can cortactdles
personnel listed on the corporate website dire€the customey
service unit and stakeholder section are availabjgrotect theg
rights of consumers and provide complaint channels.

For suppliers’ compliance, the Company has estaddisthe
“Procedures Governing the Supplier Assessment’used the
outcomes of assessments as the basis for theioveyment as
well as our standards for future purchases. Supgphee alsc

To

None
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p . Status Non-compliance anf
romotion Items — Reasons
Yes | No Description
rights, and the implementation results? requiredctonply with safety, environmental and heglth None
regulations as stipulated in the Procedures Gowgrrihe
Environmental and Safety and Health Management] of
Suppliers. They would be fined for violations idéat and
their actions would be presented and reviewed & ahnua
consultative organization meetings.
Has the Company referred to the internationallyepted v In response to the global trends and to stressrilieonmental, social
report preparation standards or guidelines for| its and corporate governance (ESG) issues of the Comipaarder to
preparation of sustainability or other reports vahic achieve the goal of sustainable developments, hmp@ny adopts
disclose the Company's non-financial informatiorg’tbe international reporting rules or guidelines in assgy ESG issues None
aforementioned reports obtain a third-party assganr associated with operations starting 2023. The 28B&tainability
verification statement? Report was completed and filed at the end of Jud32further
enhancing the disclosure of ESG information.

If the Company has established its sustainableciptes according to the “Sustainable Developmerdt B¥actice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx-Listed Compdn

please specify any discrepancy between the prexighd their implementation:
Sustainable practices of the Company are in comgdiavith the spirit and principles of the “SustdileaDevelopment Best Practice Principfes TWSE/TPEX

Listed Companies”.

Other important information to facilitate betterdenstanding of the Company’s implementation ofaunable practices:
(1) Environmental protection:

A. In August 2010, the Company had the world’s firsias cell completing the carbon footprint verificet. Product carbon footprint measures the tptal
carbon dioxide emissions, either directly or indilyg of a product from the extraction of raw méaermanufacturing, utilization to disposal. Uppn
analysis, the PV system can pay back its carbaxidieemissions during production between the thigte to four years during its useful lives of 2&xs
(a conservative estimate). Thus, the remainingolB/tyears would be clean electricity. Through d¢hkeulation of carbon footprint, we can quantife §h
environmental load of manufacturing processes antkw the effects of process improvement and nelnglogies on carbon reductions annually. The
results are presented in the Motech Sustainaliiyort.

B. GHG inventory produces emission data of factorélewing the Company to identify major sources ofigsions and establish reduction plans. The
government has established the national GHG rggistd prompts relevant industries to upload theiwvin Accreditation Foundation (TAF) grade GHG
emission data as the reference of nationwide inggstrbon reduction strategies. Motech has comghlateual inventory to establish a GHG emission hase
and incorporates it into the annual targets of IRI001 to set standards for energy, water, and res@anservation as well as waste and carbon riedsdt
with improvements monitored on a monthly basis.

C. The Company completed the water footprint invenwmingolar wafers and cells in 2015 and our soldr(#d156 series) was the first one to obtain the

- 46 -



Status

=N

Non-compliance an
Reasons

Promotion ltems
Yes | No Description

water footprint certification pursuant to the 1S@964:2014 water footprint inventory principle. Thgh the inventory, Motech enhances the efficierfcy o
water resource utilization and will continue to gwot products with regulatory-compliance and edenfily green processes in order to become the LSR
benchmark among peers in Taiwan.
D. In 2017, with 1ISO-14067 product carbon footprintifreation as the standard, Motech completed thel{party assurance of IM156 series and XS}156
series with PERC.
(2) Social involvement:
The Company established the Motech Culture and=Aundation in 2006 to promote popular science ddugaparticipate in community development, gnd
support quality art and cultural activities in arde fulfill our responsibilities as a corporat¢izeén. The Foundation organized the 2023 NankerR&hild
Challenge Camp of Solar Model Car to promote seifargy education. The event has been held for aisy&hrough model car assembly, families can I¢arn
about the concept of solar energy. Furthermorgiew of the Al trend, the event also included aniote control car” competition, where creative tliigkand
the principles of Al remote control were incorp@dtaiming to train students in design, criticahking, and problem-solving skills. This was onetleé major
annual events at Southern Taiwan Science ParkiBihteams registered to participate. Accordinguestionnaire statistics, satisfaction levels wérava 4.8
(out of 5) across all aspects, including event daleg children's further understanding of renewadnlergy, and the educational significance embeduéake
enjoyable activities.
(3) Safety and Health:
Setting zero accident as the target, the Compardedscated to promoting safety and health policied aontinuously improving processes and worl
environments. Through the collective efforts ofeatiployees, we strive to enhance our occupati@iatysand health performance.
(4) Employee health care:
The Company conducts annual health check-ups fplames to help them understand their health stéteseby caring for and strengthenitingir health
Occupational medical specialists are also arramggatovide consulting services on-sita.drder to understand the actual working envirortnaéremployee
and assess exposure to hazardous factors at woekjesides installing detection and alarm devatesppropriate locations, regular operational emnren
inspections are also conducted as a basis for wimgrahe working environment.
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B. Climate-related Information of TWSE/TPEX-Listed Quamnies
(@) Implementation of climate-related information

Item

Implementation status

1. Describe the oversight

risks and opportunities.

andClimate change affects the Company’s product deveént strategy and corporate operations. Motechirags
governance of the Board antb monitor and implement various climate actiorgéds, incorporating them into the Company's sushdg
management on climate-relatedevelopment strategy and objectives, as well aautating corporate sustainability policy.

At present, sustainable developments of the Compmaeyexecuted by units under the Chairman and
President. Tasks include the approval of climatenge response strategies, the promotion of cliraeti®ns
topics and target management. The President weplattrthe status of GHG planning and executioméoBoard
on aregular basis.

The Company also reviews the operation of sustérddvelopments on an ongoing basis pursuant tiicapfe
laws and regulations as well as adjusts and seta gpstainability organization as the operationterefor
corporate sustainable developments. We expectrtplete the governance structure and organizatidz0Rv
and conduct analyses on stakeholders including ®raps, shareholders, customers, suppliers, govetranel
society pursuant to relevant standards; promotevisien of our pursuit of sustainability from thept down;
formulate execution plans pertaining to environrakptotection, employee care and community engageas
well as prepare the sustainable reports. The imgheation outcome is reported to the Board whennied
arises.

2. Describe how

climate risks and opportunitiesisks/opportunities may affect the Company. Addisitly, Motech will incorporate sustainability iratives such

would affect

strategy, and finances of thelimate change research reports of internatiorgdrrzations and apply the climate risk and oppargunatrix.

entity (short,
long-term).

the identifie

the busines

medium,

an

dMotech adopts TCFD to identify and prioritize climaelated risks/opportunities, thereby understagndvhat
Sas energy conservation, carbon reduction, and veateservation into its business strategies witleregfce tg

dRisks:

Physical risks:

1. Extreme weather events (typhoons/floods/drougimgezature rising/sea level rising) with increag
severity and frequency.

2. Extreme rainfall leads to business disruption &ec$ work safety.

Transition risks:

Tightening of environmental laws and controls

Increasing cost in carbon emissions management

Increasing cost in energy resources

Increasing cost in purchasing renewable energy

arwnE

Changes in tax and subsidy policies
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Opportunities:
1.

Increasing market demand:

With the global trend of increasing emphasis oe,sefrbon-free energy, the demand for renewableygne

continues to grow. Companies can satisfy the matketand by investing in solar energy systems.
Technology innovation:

Continuous improvements and innovations in solanrelogy bring about efficiency and cost-effectiess
to solar energy systems. Enterprises can benediin ftechnology innovations and enhance t
competitiveness by investing in solar energy system

Support from government policies:

Government support and policy initiatives for reaéde energy can provide more opportunities
businesses to invest in solar energy systems. idddity, policies such as government subsidies t@xg
incentives can lower the cost of solar energy systethereby increasing the returns on investmen
businesses.

The financial impacts of related risks and oppadties and strategies are set out below:

Financial

Risk/Opportunity Item Impact

Strategy

1. Discuss insurance types and potential insuraotemeswith
insurance companies.

2. Monitor long and shoterm weather forecasts and establisl
early warning mechanism.

Impact of natural disasters
(extreme weather aiMedium
rainfall)

1. Monitor the operation mechanism ofREC trading market ar
plan to become a member of the green energy catgfitradin
platform.

2. Evaluate the installation and saefe of renewable ener
facilities, along with related funding preparation.

Policies and regulations 3. Assess medium to long-term investments in ensaying

(environmental Medium schemes to prepare for stricter future carbon otsitr

protection/tax/subsidy) 4. Understand changes in government regulatoryigsli subsidie
and tax incentives to ensure business competitsgene

5. Conduct surveys orpower plant locations and enha
landowners’ awareness of relevant laws and regustio avoi
legal pitfalls.

heir

for

fo

6. Evaluate and estimate the cost of solar moddgcting.
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Financial

Risk/Opportunity Item Impact Strategy

1. Evaluate the installation and sede of renewable ener
Increased energy costs facilities, along_with related funding_preparation. _ _
(management High 2. Assess medium to Iong-term investments in ensagyng
procurement) schemes to prepare for stricter fL_Jture carbor_1 otmtr_ _ _

3. Track and respond to fuel price fluctuationsmdigate thei

impact on business.

1. Contain costs at a reasonable level to secuvenve an

Market demand High profitability.

2. Research and develop the most efficient soladules for paver
generation.

3. Describe the financial impact ofin the face of escalating extreme weather changéstransition impact, although there is still calesable
extreme weather events andncertainty in Taiwan's laws and regulations, theerall trend leans towards the development of obftr
strategies for carbon reduction, water resourced, lightning-related losses. The financial impagtsclimate

transition activities.
changes are as follows:

Climate Risk Factor

Potential Financial Impact

emission trend

Total GHG management and net z

Restricted capacity expansion and increasing apgrabsts.

Temperature rising

Increasing electricity consumption, costs and carbexuctior
facilities and operation costs

Floods/Drought

revenues

Impact oproduction leads to financial losses and decre

premiums

Increases in natural disaster insura

Increasing operating expenses

Describe how climate ris

management processes

management system.

kIn addition to risk response plans for possibleaotpn financial performance, the Company’s riskhagemen
identification, assessment, andovers risk assessments and contingency plans durah disasters, environment, and safety. A preven
araindset is embedded into our corporate culture sthfee to eliminate identifiable and avoidable sgk reduce
integrated into the overall riskpotential losses from business disruptions. In tamdito the existing regulatory frameworks and psses, we
actively develop advanced and more sensitive sigieny evaluation, and risk management procedunes
standards to address major risks faced by variausinéss operations, including sales markets, ptmiu
operations, human resources planning, new prodaeldpment progress, and financial accounting obritve

e
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aim to balance safety and efficiency and estaldidbusiness operating model with higher economicetisn
Examples include the strengthening of our inforpragystem to enhance early warning monitoring céipeb.
With respect to the environment, the Company hasbkshed and maintained contingency procedures

potential accidents or emergencies. These procedgee as the basis for developing response pistand|

plans, including the scope of the contingency plarganizational authority, responsibility and stuue;
activation processes; hazard identification ankl aissessment; emergency response plans; and evacuaps,
With the abovementioned operational procedures ratated rules for all units to follow, the Compaogn
immediately reduce or mitigate the impacts and dpgmacaused by personnel injury, property loss,
production disruptions resulting from natural ormmaade disasters and other major contingencieselifg
quickly resuming normal operations.

Risk management objectives:

To formulate corporate development strategy andsadjusiness operations in advance in light ofglobal
economic situation and risks associated with clanettange and energy supply, actively executingvaels
measures to respond accordingly.

Commitment:

To monitor global industry dynamics and climateraye and adjust development goals and businessgsin
a timely manner to mitigate potential risks.

Risk management measures:

In response to various operational risks, we holhagement meetings when needed to review and &
operational directions, thereby preventing riskadwance.

for

and

\174

\djust

If scenario analysis is used
assess the resilience to clime
change risks, the scenaric
parameters, assumptions a
analysis factors used as well
major financial impacts shall b
described.

td. Cap and trade
ate With reference to Articles 28, 29, and 30 of thenate Change Response Act; assumptions based ¢
s, financial estimates of penalties or carbon priaimgler current laws, including the minimum of 1%célieity
nd savings per year under the Energy Administratioty Anod assessments on the need for carbon reséned
as environment-related department would apply for eiting projects, securing diverse support measwhren
e faced with total quantity control in the futureetkby effectively reducing financial risk.
2. Water resources
Under extreme weather, floods and droughts maytraswater shortage or rationing; thus, this iketia as g
hypothetical scenario. During a disaster, our stesrh measures involve reducing water usage irofesst
through internal contingency systems and using miateeks to mitigate the impact. In the medium te
efforts are directed towards using recycled watet adapting machines from direct water sourcesdtey

circulation, continuously improving process watecavery rates for contingency purposes. Our long-{e

strategies involve employing water resource managersystems with Al-based management platformg

n the

S,

[m
/

for

meticulous monitoring and prevention. Through obor§ medium, and long-term planning, we aim| to
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Company’s overall operation and development.

3. Power outage caused by lightning or earthquake
With production facilities affected by earthquakedightning in the past three years as hypothktaetors,
supply systems in the future. Additionally, iniegs to promote energy monitoring and power grigskeing|

earthquakes or lightning incidents.

. If there is a transition plan fa
managing climate-related risk
describe the plan details, a
the indicators and targets us
to identify and manage physic
risks and transition risks.

rFrom challenges posed by climate change, Motech areopportunity for a transition to low-carbon egr
seconomy in order to mitigate climate impacts. Thieee this goal and stride towards sustainabilitg, Company
nectively promotes relevant initiatives, includingitsng green management objectives, launching uanpojects
eahd conducting green management practices witltafémess evaluation. By reviewing performance aomes,
aMotech implements the goal of protecting the planet

Targets:
1. GHG management:

reduction equaled 303.758 metric tons of,€Qlelivering an achievement rate of 116%.
(2) In 2024, the carbon emission target was satratiluction of 59 metric tons of G©
2. Use of renewable energy:
(1) In 2023, the green power consumption target seasat 8,100 kWh and the actual consumption edu
8,086 kWh, delivering an achievement rate of 99.8%.
(2) In 2024, the green power consumption targetseast 8,000 kWh.
3. Water resource management:
(1) In 2023, the water consumption target was satraduction of 3,650 metric tons, and the aatedliction
equaled 3,650 metric tons, delivering an achievemae of 100%.
(2) In 2024, the water consumption target was satraduction of 1,095 metric tons.
4. Energy resource management:
(1) In 2023, the electricity consumption target wset at a reduction of 522,142 kWh, and the ag
reduction equaled 613,653 kWh, delivering an admeent rate of 118%.
(2) In 2024, the electricity consumption target watat a reduction of 119,934 kWh.

. If internal carbon pricing isAt present, there are two main types of carbonmyiccarbon tax and Emissions Trading System (ET&jbon|
used as a planning tool, th&ax is imposed by the fiscal authorities on spedifdustries. The tax revenue goes into the natimeasury ang
basis for setting the price shalk regarded as revenue to the government. On tier baand, ETS restricts the total amount of GHGssions.

considered to regulate consumption distributiorere¢by reducing the potential production losses ndyri

vV

(1) In 2023, the carbon emission target was set mduction of 262 metric tons of G& and the actug

minimize production losses caused by water shostateereby avoiding any detrimental impact on [the

we intend to reduce damage to sensitive equipmemged by voltage drops through uninterruptible pqwe

ale

tual

be stated.

According to the Climate Change Response Act ofRRpublic of China amended in early 2023, carb@s
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would be introduced first. However, the specifitesaof carbon fees are pending for enforcement tactse
established by the Environmental Protection Adntiatgon within six months.

Besides taking into account carbon fees proposddruhe Climate Change Response Act, we make refer®
the World Bank’s “State and Trends of Carbon Pgc2023”. According to this report, half of the coues
increased carbon prices, while about one-third kkptcarbon prices unchanged and only less than dfy
countries reduced carbon prices last year. Theetur internal carbon price is tentatively selNat1,000 pef
metric ton (based on the price range of China BT#$e World Bank's “State and Trends of CarboniRyi
2022"). We will apply carbon pricing to the Companinvestment benefit evaluation and cost calcotaf
energy-saving schemes in the future, giving empmsye sense of the external costs of the Compaatystiees
and their own.

%

\J

. If climate-related targets hav
been set, the activities covere
the scope of GHG emission
the planning horizon, and th
progress achieved each ye
shall be specified. If carbo
credits or renewable ener
certificates (RECs) are used
achieve relevant targets, t
source and quantity of carbc

credits or the quantity of REC

to be offset shall be specified.

é'’he Company conducts GHG inventory at each facitoryaiwan pursuant to the organization-level stadd
2ghrocedures of 1ISO-14064-1 Greenhouse Gas AccouatidgVerification as the first step in energy-sgvand
s;arbon reduction. The practice has been recogmiyebe government, domestic and international gggenps,
l@najor investors and customers.

2din 2023, the total GHG emissions were 22,812.67Fiowns of CQe, with a GHG emission intensity of 63.4
nmetric tons of C@/MW. We also cut down purchased electricity, réagta total reduction of 303.758 met
yyons of CQe.

tdhe results of 2023 organization-level GHG inveptwere as follows:

ne Direct Indirect L .

DN Scope Emissions Emissions TotaITEcr:ncl)szsmns IF\Q/Ierch:cét)lzon

s (MT COse) (MT COe) ( ) ( €)
Fab. Il 1,411.7332 16,274.4655 17,686.199 303.758
Fab. V 77.2745 5,049.2039 5,126.478 '

Note 1: Organization-level GHG inventory did notlude other GHG emissions (i.e., Scope 3).

Note 2: GHG emission intensity = total GHG emissidsolar production capacity (MW).

Note 3: Reduction of GHG emissions is defined asdlectricity saved at the Fabs in 2023 multipbgd
the electricity emission factor (Motech’s Fabs outhern Taiwan Science Park: electricity
emission factor announced by the Bureau of Ener@pR?2).

Note 4: Electricity saving measures are the basisefductions in purchased electricity.

c

. GHG inventory and assuran
status as well as reductic
targets, strategy, and concre
action plans.

cén accordance with the Official Order No. Finanelpervisory-Securities-Corporation-11203852314adsby
vithe Financial Supervisory Commission on November2023, we schedule to complete GHG inventory i2&2
>t@nd disclose assurance information in 2028. Retegarbon reduction targets, strategies, and speattion
plans are expected to be disclosed from 2027 pantsodhe regulations.

0
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(6) Performance in ethical management and non-comgianih “Ethical Corporate Management Best Pradfidaciples for TWSE/TPEXx-Listed

Companies” and reasons: The Company and its sabisslihonor our commitments, act with integrity apthold a high degree of professional

ethics.

Status Non-compliancs
Assessment Items
Yes| No Description and Reasons
Establishment of ethical management policies |and
schemes
(1) Does the Company formulate ethical managerperit (1) The Company and its subsidiaries have establidhedGode of
policies approved by the Board of Directors and Ethics and Business Conduct” based on the cores\@&lintegrity
clearly express ethical management policies |and and disclosed the ethical management policies atctirporate
actions as well as the Board's and sehior website, annual reports, internal rules and otheyxmptional
management's commitment to implement those documents.
policies in the Company'’s internal rules and exaéfn
documents?
(2) Does the Company establish assessment mechan¥sni (2) The Company and its subsidiaries have clearly dtat¢he “Codd
for risk arising from unethical conducts, reguldrly of Ethics and Business Conduct” that employees! shahor
analyze and assess operating activities with higher commitments and act with integrity without deceitaleceptions.
risk of unethical conduct within its business, and Also, the guidance for conducts of business ettagsjdance of
formulate preventive schemes accordingly, which at conflict of interest, gifts and hospitality and édentiality as wel None
least contain preventive measures for conducts set as penalties for violation and complain systemseatablished. Tp
forth in Paragraph 2, Article 7 of the "Ethigal advocate and promote business ethics, besidespurgjithe code
Corporate Management Best Practice Principleg for at intranet for employees to access at any time, Gompany
TWSE/TPEX-Listed Companies"? addresses the importance of corporate core valdecampliance
system to every employee. To prevent a breach bfcst
orientation program includes courses for new régtoi understand
the grave importance and Motech’s determination the
implantation of the code.
(3) Does the Company have clear statements regafdifig (3) The Company and its subsidiaries have adoptedaeigreventive

relevant procedures, conduct guidelines, discipfina
measures and compliant system in the schemes to
prevent unethical conduct, and does the Company
implement them accordingly and regularly review

those schemes?

measures in the “Code of Ethics and Business Cahduc
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Assessment Items

Status

Non-compliancg
and Reasons

Yes| No Description

Implementation of ethical management

(1) Does the Company review the counterparty’s histosy (1) Suppliers in the supply chain are required to sighCommitment
of ethical conduct and include the compliance of to Integrity. Prior to purchases, supplier docuradiled with the
business ethics as a clause in the contract? Department of Commerce, MOEA would be verified tsw@we the

authenticity and business ethics of counterpartieunterparties
are found to be involved with unethical conductsrdyuthe course
of business or procurement, the Company would Gias@nitor

the progress of credit transactions, understancdsexp of the
Company and carefully evaluate whether to termindte

transactions with the customers.

(2) Has the Company established a dedicated unit uneer (2) The Company has appointed the human resource anibet
the Board of Directors to promote ethical condlicts responsible for amending, executing, and intenpgetielevant
and report regularly (at least once every year) its rules as well as giving consultations and handtimg reporting
ethics policies and preventive schemes for undthica processes. It reports the implementation statubgédBoard when
conducts as well as implementation status to| the the need arises.

Board of Directors?

(3) Has the Company established policies to preperit (3) The Company and its subsidiaries have clearlydtiwe avoidance None
conflicts of interest, provided appropriate of conflict of interest in the “Code of Ethics arBlusiness
communication channels and thoroughly implemented Conduct”. When confronted with a conflict of intstaluring the
the policies? course of business, employees shall report thatstu to the

human resource department in advance or no lader fike days
after the occurrence of the event. Besides requesiew recruits
to carry out the filing of “avoidance of conflict mterest” during
orientation, the filing is done regularly every yei00% filing is|
required of management and high-risk groups andracshall be
taken when a potential conflict of interest is itilféed.

(4) Has the Company established effective accounting (4) Actions taken by the Company are as follows:
and internal control systems for the implementatibn A. The accounting systems of the Company and major
business ethics and had the internal audit |unit subsidiaries are established in accordance witlaticeunting
formulating relevant audit plans based on |the standards and interpretations issued by the comipete
assessment outcome of risk associated with unéthica authority. Daily accounting operations are alsoriedr out
conducts? Has the Company then performed audits on accordingly.
the compliance with the preventive schemes| for B. Internal control systems of the Company and mpjor

unethical conducts accordingly, or entrust the CieAs

subsidiaries are established based on the enkgyscontrol
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Status

Assessment Items

Non-compliancg
and Reasons

Yes| No Description
conduct the audits? items as required by the competent authority. Tistesn
designs shall be examined from time to time to enghe
effectiveness of the system.

C. The audit office formulates annual audit plans Hase the
assessment outcome of risks and carries out guatissiant tg
the annual plans. It then reports the audit outccme
improvement schemes to the Board and managemerjt for None
effective  audits. Besides, the Company condlcts
self-assessments on the internal control systenuadignto
examine the effectiveness of the system’s desigd |an
implementation and a statement of internal corggatem ig
issued based on the assessment outcome.

(5) Has the Company regularly held internal and extgrné (5) The Company and its subsidiaries have designedsesun the
training sessions on business ethics? orientation program for new recruits to comprehehd graved
importance and Motech’s determination on the imjalaon of the

Code. As for employees, the Company promotes thedéCof|

Ethics and Business Conduct” annually by reitegatithe

Company’s core value, good faith principle, corpergovernance,

etc.

Implementation of whistleblowing system

(1) Has the Company established specific whistleblowing (1) The Company and its subsidiaries have stipulatedreward angd
and reward systems, set up conveniently accegsible discipline as well as complaint systems in the “€ofl Ethics and
complaint channels, and designated responsible Business Conduct”, “Work Rules” and “Rules for Resvand
individuals to handle the complaint received? Discipline”, which are announced to all employees.

(2) Has the Company established standard operptivig (2) The Company and its subsidiaries have establishaddard

: A . . . . S o None

procedures for investigating the complaints reakiyve operating procedures for investigating the compdaiaceived and
actions to be taken wupon the completion| of mechanisms for confidentiality in the “Code of Ethiang
investigation, and mechanisms for confidentiality? Business Conduct”.

(3) Has the Company established measures to protéct (3) The Company and its subsidiaries have clearly dtatehe “Code
whistleblowers from retaliation? of Ethics and Business Conduct” that they wouldspe effortg

to protect the identity of whistleblower.

Enhancement on Information disclosure
Does the Company disclose its principles of busiheg The Company regularly discloses relevant and rgi@isR informatior None

ethics and information about implementation of 5

uch

and strengthens communications with stakeholdefstrhation including
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Status Non-compliancg
Assessment Items dR
Yes| No Description and keasons

guidelines on its website and MOPS? the “Code of Ethics and Business Conduct” is availablthe corporat
website (https://www.motech.com.tw/policies.phpnd the corpora
governance section within the MOPS.

If the Company has established its own principlelsusiness ethics based on the “Ethical Corporaaeddement Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPisied
Companies”, please specify any discrepancy betweemolicies and their implementation: The Compari¥ode of Ethics and Business Conducigarly
outlines matters that personnel shall adhere te Chde is not significantly different from the “ktal Corporate Management Best Practice Princifibe
TWSE/TPEx-Listed Companies,” as detailed in theicois above.

[}

Other important information to facilitate betterdemstanding of the Company’s ethical conduct prastie.g., the Compamgviews and revises its Principleq

Business Ethics, etc.):

(1) The Company has complied with the Company Act, Btesl and Exchange Act, Business Entity Accountidd, rules applicable to TWSE/TPEXx-list
companies and other regulations governing businelsaviors as the basis for implementing ethicalagament.

(2) The Company has stipulated the recusal rules fadirs in the case of a conflict of interest ia tRules and Procedures of Board of Directors’ Mgt If
a Director or a juristic person represented by r@d@or is an interested party with respect to aggnda item, the Director shall state the imporéamtects of
the interested party relationship at the meetingeklvthe relationship is likely to prejudice the Qamy’s interests, the Director shall not particgoet and
shall recuse himself/herself from discussion arnihgoon that agenda item. He/she shall not actnashar Director’s proxy to exercise the voting tgbn
that matter.

19%

(3) The Company has established the “Procedures fodlihgnMaterial Inside Information”, stipulating thRirectors, manager and employees of the Company

shall not leak material inside information thatytfage aware of; nor shall they enquire after ofeablnon-public material information that are nefated tg
their official duties from parties that are awafesoch information; and neither shall they leak 4paiblic material information that they become awaf
outside the course of business.

U

(7) For companies with guidelines and regulations apa@te governance, access shall be disclosedCohgany has established the “Corporate

Governance Best Practice Principles.” Relevant oreasare carried out in accordance with the spindl standards of the “Corporate
Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEted Companies.” The Company has set up a cop@a¥ernance section under
investor relations at the corporate website (hitpa:w.motech.com.tw/policies.php) for investorsdownload rules of corporate governance.
They can also access the MOPS for relevant infoomat
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(8) Other important information to facilitate betterdenstanding of the Company’s corporate governance:

A. Continuing education of Directors

Title Name Host Course Duratior Date
Director Ming-Shiaw Talwan_lnstltute for 6th Global Corporate Sustainability Forum 3 2028161
Lu Sustainable Energy
Taiwan Corporate Understanding of Supervision from Competent Autiesi fol
- ) : . . 3 2023/11/21
. Governance Assaociation | Directors and Executives of Listed Companies
Director George Hua Qaiwan Cornorate
P L Practical Analysis of Criminal Responsibility incseities Crimes 3 2023/12/19
Governance Association
Ind(_ependent San-Boh Lee Taiwan Corporate . Big Data Analysis on Enterprise Fraud Prevention 3 2023/08/18
Director Governance Association
Environmental Protection
Administration, Executive [Seminar of Green Chemistry for Sustainability 3 203/26
Independent| ..
. Kin-Tsau Lee| Yuan
Director Taiwan Corporate
P i Seminar of Board Performance Evaluation 3 2023®7/2
Governance Association
Taipei Exchange nglnar on Sustainable Development Action Plans [fisted 3 2023/04/27
ompanies
Ind(_ependent Chia-Hsin |Taiwan Corporate i Board Governance under ESG 3 2023/08/04
Director Chang Governance Association
Taiwan Corporate Code of Business Ethics and How to Avoid CrosshigRed Line ¢ 3 2023/08/04

Governance Association

Director Responsibility
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(9) Internal control system execution status:

A. Statement of internal control system

Motech Industries Inc.

Statement of Internal Control System
March 7, 2024

Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Mokedbstries Inc. (Motech) states the following with
regard to its internal control system during thary2023:

1.

Motech’s Board of Directors and management areoresiple for establishing, implementing, and
maintaining an adequate internal control systenr.i@tarnal control is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance over the effectiveness antkrtly of our operations (including profitability,
performance, and safeguarding of assets); relipbiimeliness and transparency of our financial
reporting; and compliance with applicable laws eggllations.

An internal control system has inherent limitatioN® matter how perfectly designed, an effective

internal control system can provide only reasonakurance of accomplishing the three objectives
mentioned above. Moreover, the effectiveness ofindéernal control system may be subject to

changes of environment or circumstances. Nevegbgleur internal control system contains

self-monitoring mechanisms, and Motech takes imatedremedial actions in response to any
deficiencies identified.

Motech evaluates the design and operating effewtis® of its internal control system based on the
criteria provided in the Regulations Governing tsablishment of Internal Control Systems by
Public Companies (herein below, the “Regulationdhe criteria adopted by the Regulations
identify five key components of internal controlsked on the process of management: (1) control
environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control #dEs; (4) information and communication, and (5)
monitoring. Each component further contains sevéeahs. Please refer to the Regulations for
details.

Motech has evaluated the design and operatingtie#eess of its internal control system according
to the aforesaid criteria.

Based on the findings of the evaluation mentiomethé preceding paragraph, Motech believes that,
as of December 31, 2023, its internal control sysfecluding its supervision of subsidiaries), as
well as its internal controls to monitor the aclement of its objectives concerning operational
effectiveness and efficiency; reliability, timelsge and transparency of financial reporting; and
compliance with applicable laws and regulationsyeweffective in design and operation, and
reasonably assured the achievement of the aboveemed objectives.

This Statement will be an essential content ofMlitech’s Annual Report and Prospectus, and will
be publicly disclosed. Any falsehood, concealmentther illegality in the content made public will
entail legal liabilities under Articles 20, 32, 1'&hd 174 of the Securities and Exchanged Act.

This Statement has been approved in the Board m&cidirs’ meeting on March 7, 2024, with all
seven attending Directors affirming the contenthi Statement.

Motech Industries Inc.

Chairman: Yung-Hui Tseng  (Signature)
President : Fred Yeh (Signature)
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B. Where CPAs are retained to audit the internal cbsistem, please disclose the CPAS’
audit report: The Company did not retain CPAs tditaine internal control system.

(10) Any penalties imposed upon the Company or the natgpersonnel by laws, or punishment
imposed by the Company on internal personnel fotation of the Company’s internal
control system regulations in the most recent yealt as of the date of this annual report
which may have significant impacts on shareholdegsits or security prices, details of the
punishment, major defects and corrective actioretfeshall be specified:

The Company have stipulated the reward and disams well as complaint systems in the
“Code of Ethics and Business Conduct”, “Work Rulemid “Rules for Reward and
Discipline”, which are announced to all employeesl(ding major subsidiaries.) There was
no material penalty due to violation of laws andulations in 2023. Employees’ violations
of internal rules are handled in accordance witlesrwof the Company and improvement
mechanisms would be established to prevent a rearme of the event.

(11) Major resolutions of shareholders’ meetings andr&a# Directors’ meetings in the most
recent year and as of the date of this annual repor

A. Major resolutions of shareholders’ meeting on J1&e2023 and execution thereof

Major Resolutions Execution of Resolution

(1) To approve the Company’'s 2022 busing43 Approved

report and financial statements
(2) To approve the Company’'s 2022 earnip@@ Approved

distribution For 2022 earnings distribution, the recprd
date was set on July 24, 2023 with Audust
11, 2023 being the payment date. Cash
dividend equaled NT$0.45 per share.

B. Major resolutions of Board meetings

Date Major Resolutions

(1) Proposed to approve the Company’s 2023 business pla
(2) Proposed to approve the formulation of the Compaggneral principles fq
the pre-approval of non-assurance service policy
(3) Proposed to approve the Company’s engagement of @Ré the audit fee for
2023
(4) Proposed to apply for a financing facility not eedieng NT$2 billion to thg
bank syndicate
(5) Proposed to approve the loans provided to thaaéilMotech Power Beta
(6) Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iaffd, Motech Power Zeta
(7) Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iaffd, Motech Power One
(8) Proposed to approve the application of general icredes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions
(9) Proposed to approve the amendments to some artiitieisn the Company’s
“Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles”

=

14

2023.01.19

(1) Distribution of 2022 employee compensation and megnation to directors

(2) Reviewed recommendations on annual compensatiaeofChairman anf
President

2023.03.09 [(3) Proposed to approve the Company’s parent compalyand consolidatefl
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2(®12

(4) Proposed to approve the Company’s 2022 earningibditson

(5) Proposed to approve the Company’s 2022 operatjmorire
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Date

Major Resolutions

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

(11)

Proposed to approve the agenda, date and venui28dfahnual shareholdefs
meeting

Proposed to approve the amendments to some astitléa the Company’s
“Procedures for Handling Material Inside Informatio

Proposed to approve the application of general itcrbdes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions

Proposed to approved the addition of NT$255.97imnillto 2023 capitd
expenditure budget
Proposed to the Board to approve the Company’'s2Ztatement of Internf
Control System”

Proposed to the Board to approve the amendmetite tGompany’s “Interng
Control System”, “Internal Audit Implementation Ral' and “Procedures fr
Self-assessment on Internal Control System”

2023.05.04

(1)

(2)
3)

Recommendations on distribution of 2022 employeanpmamsation t¢
managers and remuneration to directors

Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iaffid, Motech Power One
Proposed to approve the application of general itcrbdes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions

2023.08.03

(1)
(2)
3)

(4)
()

Propose to approve the reductions in capital atad itovestment of the Groyp
entity, SNE

Propose to approve the amendments to some artictas the Articles of
Incorporation of the Group entity, SNE

Power Islands Limited proposed to reduce capitaliie with the capita)
reduction of SNE and repatriate the investment$und

Proposed to approve the loans provided to affgiate

Proposed to approve the application of general itcrbdes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions

2023.08.29

(1)

Proposed to approved the addition of NT$463.6 arillto 2023 capita
expenditure budget

2023.11.02

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

Recommendations on 2023 salary adjustments of tlaérf@an and manager
Proposed to approve the application of general itcrbdes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions

Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iatffd, Motech Power Zeta
Proposed to approved the addition of NT$18.31 arillto 2023 capita
expenditure budget

Proposed to approve the Company’s 2024 audit plan

Proposed to approve the amendments to the Compéamgérnal Control
System”, “Internal Audit Implementation Rules” antProcedures fof
Self-assessment on Internal Control System”

U)

2024.03.07

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)
(7)

Distribution of 2023 employee compensation and megnation to directors
Proposed to approve the Company’s parent compalyand consolidatefl
financial statements for the year ended Decembe?(®13
Proposed to approve the Company’s 2023 earningr$bdison
Proposed to approve the agenda, date and venui2éfaghnual shareholdefs’
meeting

Proposed to approve the Company’s 2023 operatfmrire

Proposed to approve the Company’s 2024 business pla

Proposed to approve the Company’s engagement of @mé the audit fee fq
2024

=
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Date Major Resolutions

(8) Proposed to approve the Company’s change of CPAs

(9) Proposed to approve the amendments to the Compgeryéral principles for
the pre-approval of non-assurance service policy

(10) Proposed to approve the application of general itcrédes with the
Company’s correspondent financial institutions

(11) Proposed to provide Letter of Support for the iaffd, Motech Power Beta

(12) Proposed to the Board to approve the Company’'s32&tatement of Interngl
Control System”

(13) Proposed to the Board to approve the amendmetite tGompany’s “Rules ¢
Procedure for the Board of Directors’ Meeting”

(14) Proposed to the Board to approve the amendmerttet€ompany’s “Audi
Committee Charter”

—h

(12) Different opinions expressed by Directors or Indefmnt Directors regarding major
resolutions, either by recorded statement or ining;j in the most recent year and as of the
date of this annual report: None.

(13) Resignation or discharge of Chairman, Presidenhcial Accounting Officer, Principal
Finance Officer, Internal Audit Officer, Chief Gawance Officer and Research and
Development Officer in the most recent year andfdbe date of this annual report: None.

5. Audit Fees for CPA
(1) Audit Fees for CPA

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accounting| Name of Audit Audit | Non-audit

Firm CPA Period Fee Fee Total Remark

Amount and nature of
non-audit fee were as followq:
1. Fees for tax compliance
audit and tax consultation
concerning transfer pricing
amounted to NT$1,310
Ming-Hong thousand.

Huang 2. Fees for company
KPMG and 2022 I:lr;rfu?’égrl]g I:ero$uls’gr:tc6j TJ?USS’;'?]S registration amounted to
Chia-Chien NT$136 thousand.

Tang 3. Fees for on-site inventory
at Science Park amounte[d
to NT$100 thousand.

4. Fees for cash capital
injection and payroll
checklist amounted to
NT$70 thousand.

Amount and nature of

Ming-Hong non-audit fees were as follows:
Huang 1. Fees for tax compliance
KPMG and 2023 NT$4,000) NT$1,525 NT$5,525 audit and tax conF;uItatior
. . thousand| thousand| thousand . o
Chia-Chien concerning transfer pricing
Tang amounted to NT$1,310

thousand.
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Non-audit
Fee

Audit
Fee

Audit
Period

Name of
CPA

Accounting

Eirm Remark

Total

2. Fees for company
registration amounted to
NT$205 thousand.

Fees for cash capital
injection and payroll
checklist amounted to
NT$10 thousand.

(2)

For change of accounting firms with audit fee paidhe year of change being less than the
previous year, the amount, percentage and reasongfaecrease shall be stated: None.

3)

For an over 10% decrease in audit fee on a yegedo-basis, the amount, percentage and
reason for the decrease shall be stated: None.

Change of CPA: The change of CPA in the past twodtal years was due to job adjustment
within KPMG. There has not been a change of CPA fm.

Where the Company’'s Chairman, President, or Manages in Charge of Finance or
Accounting Held a Position in the CPA’'s Firm or Its Affiliates in the Most Recent Year, the
Name, Title and Positions Held in the CPA's Firm orts Affiliates Shall be DisclosedNone.

Changes in Shareholding and Shares Pledged by Ditecs, Independent Directors,
Managers and Shareholders with 10% Shareholdings o¥lore in the Most Recent Year and
as of the Date of this Annual Report

(1) Changes in shareholding by Directors, Superviddesiagers and Major Shareholders:

(In Shares)
2023 By April 20, 2024
Title Name Net Change il Net Change ir] Net Change irl Net Change ir]
Shareholding| Shares Pledggd Shareholding| Shares Pledgdg
Chairman Yung-Hui Tseng 0 0 0 0
Director Chih-Kaou Lee 0 0 0 0
Director George Huang 0 0 0 0
Director Ming-Shiaw Lu 0 0 0 0
Independent Director|San-Boh Lee 0 0 0 0
Independent Director|Kin-Tsau Lee 0 0 0 0
Independent Director|Chia-Hsin Chang 0 0 0 0
President Fred Yeh (27,000) 0 0 0
Vice President Huan-Shun Lin 0 0 0 0
Vice President & CFQTing-Chao Wang 0 0 0 0
Prin.cipal Accounting Alan Wu 0 0 0 0
Officer
Chi?f Governance Chien-Tung Chen 0 0 0 0
Officer
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(2) Where the counterparty of share transfers is @eetlgarty: None.
(3) Where the counterparty of share pledges is a tefzdey: None.

9. Top 10 Shareholders Who are Related Parties, Spowser within Second-Degree of Kinship to Each

Other
As of April 20, 2024
Names and Relationship gf
SpOUSES Nominee Top 10 Shareholders Who are
Shareholding Mino? Childr,en Arrangement Related Parties, Spouses piRemark
Name 9 within Second-Degree of

Kinship to Each Other

Shares % Shares| % |Sharey % Name Relation -
Invesco Solar ETF in 0 0 0
custody of HSBC 11,936,0003.08 0/0.00 0[0.00% - - -
T
Yung-Hui Tseng 10,972,712.84% 1,394,8910.369 0[0.00% . of the -
Education .
: Foundatior
Foundation
iShares Il in custody of
Standard Chartered 8,422,00(2.189 0]0.009 0[0.00% - - -
Bank
Cé‘gﬂgaﬁg;]T'FeO”u%‘g;‘gﬁ % 7.308,1201.899 0/0.009 0{0.00% Yung-Hui Tseng Chairman| -
iShares Global Clean
Energy ETF in custodyj 0 0 0 ) ) i
of Standard Chartered 5,881,00(1.52 0/0.00 0[0.00%
Bank
Chih-Kaou Lee 4,312,772.11% 1,690,9920.449 0[0.00% - - -
Buddhist Tzu Chi Charity
Foundation of the 3,953,7111.02¢ 0]0.009 0[0.00% - - -

Republic of China

KBC Eco Funds in
custody of Standard 3,582,994 0.939 0{0.009
Chartered Bank

Vanguard Emerging
Markets Stock Index
Fund managed by
Vanguard Group in 3,095,8970.809 0{0.009 0/0.00% - - -
custody of JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. Taip
Branch

Ming-Shiaw Lu 2,679,8270.69% 2,160,8130.569

o

0.00% - - -

o

0.00% - - -
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10. Number of Shares Held and Shareholding Percentagef the Company, the Company’s
Directors, Independent Directors, Managers and Diretly or Indirectly Controlled Entities

on the Same Investee

As of December 31, 2023 (In Shares)

Investment by Directors,

Investment Supervisors, Managers anpd Total
Investee by the Company Directly or Indirectly
Controlled Entities
Shares % Shares % Shares %
Power Islands Limited 154,674,370 100.009 0 0.00% 154,674,37p  100.009
Inergy Technology Inc. 8,558,760  18.729 0 0.00% 8,558,750 18.729
Teco-Motech Co., Ltd. 1,440,000 60.009 0 0.00%9 1,440,000 60.009
Motech Power One Co., Ltd. 92,800,000 100.009 0 0.00% 92,800,000  100.009
TECO Sun Energy Co., Ltd. 2,800,000 40.009 0 0.00%9 2,800,000 40.009
Motech Power Gamma Co., Ltd. 3,300,000 100.009 0 0.00% 3,300,000  100.009
Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd. 5,500,000 100.009 0 0.00%9 5,500,000 100.009
Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd. 48,000,000 100.009 0 0.00% 48,000,000  100.009
Cheer View Investment Limited 0 0.00%9 77,500,000 100.00% 77,500,000  100.009
AE Polysilicon Corporation 0 0.009% 11,573,64Y 37.11% 11,573,64Y 37.119
Company no Company no
MEorf:fh ((S:‘;Zhlf’t‘é) Renewable 0 0.00% limited by 95.39% limited by 95.399
gy ~0., L1d. shares shares
Company no Company no
MEorf:fh (g/lgarﬁgan) Renewable 0 0.00% limited by 95.39% limited by 95.399
gy ~0., L1d. shares shares
Company no Company no
Motech (Maanshan) Energy 0 0.00% limited by 95.39% limited by 95.399
9 " ' shares shares
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I\VV. Capital Overview
1. Capital and Shares
(1) Source of capital
A. Source of capital

The Company was established per approval of thaskiiynof Economic Affairs on
June 3, 1981. Information in recent years and abeflate of this annual report is as
follows:

As of April 20, 2024 (In NT$; Shares)

Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remark

Issue
Price

Year/

Month Capital Increasg

by Assets Otherr Others
than Cash

Shares Amount Shares Amount] Source

2018.02

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0541,438,90

B35,414,389,08

Issuance ofestricted stoc
D for employees:
16,480,000

Note 1

2018.04

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0541,300,40

B85,413,004,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
1,385,000

2018.05

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0541,043,40

B5,410,434,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
2,570,000

2018.08

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0 540,760,40

B85,407,604,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
2,830,000

2018.12

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0 540,655,90

B85,406,559,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
1,045,000

2019.04

10

600,000,00

0 6,000,000,00

0 540,495,40

B85,404,954,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
1,605,000

2019.07

10

1,000,000,00

0L0,000,000,00

0540,495,40

B5,404,954,08

dncrease in authorized
capital: 4,000,000,000

Note 2

2019.11

10

1,000,000,00

0L0,000,000,00

0540,470,40

B5,404,704,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
250,000

2020.02

10

1,000,000,00

0L0,000,000,00

0540,451,40

B5,404,514,08

Cancellation of restricted
D stock for employees:
190,000

2020.08

10

1,000,000,00

0L0,000,000,00

0355,041,87

53,550,418,75

Capital reduction for loss
D compensation:
1,854,095,330

Note 3

2022.09

10

1,000,000,00

(L0,000,000,00

0387,041,87

3,870,418,75

6ncrease in authorized

capital: 320,000,000

Note 4

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:

Authorized

Approved by Official Letter No
Approved by Official Letter No
Approved by Official Letter No
Approved by Official Letter No

capital

. MOEA-Authaed-Commerce-10701018570 on February 14, 2018.
. MOEA-Authaed-Commerce-10801081540 on July 17, 2019.

. MOEA-Authaed-Commerce-10901150100 on August 13, 2020.

. MOEA-Authaed-Commerce-11101175450 on September 21, 2022.

As of April 20, 2024(In Shares)

Shares Type

Authorized Capital

Outstanding

Unissued Sha

es Total

Remark

Common s

hargs 387,041,875

612,958,125

1,000,000,000 TPEXx-listed shares

Shelf registration: None.
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(2) Shareholder composition

As of April 20, 2024

Type Other Foreign
YPE Government  Financial - Natural | Institutions Total
. L Juridical
" Agencies | Institutions Persons | and Natural
Quantities Persons p
ersons
Number of 0 5 229 79.113 138 79,485
Shareholders ! '
Shares 0 84,104 | 19,088,521| 317,093,221 50,776,029 387,041,87%
% 0.00% 0.02% 4.93% 81.93% 13.12% 100.00%
(3) Shareholding distribution
As of April 20, 2024
. Number of Number of
Shareholding Shareholders Shares %

1-999 37,639 4,981,626 1.29%
1,000-5,000 31,662 67,305,662 17.39%
5,001-10,000 5,240 40,408,711 10.44%

10,001-15,000 1,678 21,130,213 5.46%
15,001-20,000 978 17,920,798 4.63%
20,001-30,000 853 21,311,024 5.51%
30,001-40,000 417 14,689,859 3.80%
40,001-50,000 266 12,267,109 3.17%
50,001-100,000 429 29,926,521 7.73%
100,001-200,000 187 26,457,079 6.84%
200,001-400,000 71 19,195,552 4.96%
400,001-600,000 27 13,331,400 3.44%
600,001-800,000 6 4,105,330 1.06%
800,001-1,000,000 6 5,182,974 1.34%
1,000,001 and above 26 88,828,017 22.94%
Total 79,485 387,041,875 100.00%
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(4) Major shareholders: Shareholder with 5% or moréhefCompany’s total number of issued
shares or ranks among the Company’s top ten shdexko

As of April 20, 2024

Shareholding o
Major Shareholders Shares &
Invesco Solar ETF in custody of HSBC 11,936,00( 3.08%
Yung-Hui Tseng 10,972,717 2.84%
iShares Il in custody of Standard Chartered Bank 4238000 2.18%
Cheng Fu-Tien Culture & Education Foundation 7,308, 1.89%
iShares Global Clean Energy ETF in custody of Siesi{d 5.881,000 1.52%
Chartered Bank
Chih-Kaou Lee 4,312,770 1.11%
Bud_dhlst Tzu Chi Charity Foundation of the Repulalf¢ 3.953,711 1.02%
China
KBC Eco Funds in custody of Standard Chartered Bank 3,582,994 0.93%
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund managed
by Vanguard Group in custody of JPMorgan Chase Bank 3,095,897 0.80%
N.A. Taipei Branch
Ming-Shiaw Lu 2,679,827 0.69%

(5) Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings and Dividends $leare in the Past Two Fiscal Years
In NT$/Thousands of Shares

Year Up to April 22,
Item 2022 2023 P 2054
) Highest 37.4 43.30 29.30
Market Price 17 est 228 2595 25.00
per Share
Average 29.23 34.52 27.40
Net Worth Before Distribution 10.99 11.06 -
per Share  |After Distribution 10.54 (Note 4) -
Weighted Average No. of
Earnings Shares 368,375 368,375 -
per Share (in thousands of shares)
Earnings per Share 0.73 0.56 -
Cash Dividends 0.45 (Note 4) -
Earnings 0 Note 4 -
Dividends SItDO.C.k Capita|g ( )
per Share ividends Surplus 0 (Note 4) -
Accumulated 0 0 i
Undistributed Dividend
Price/Earnings Ratio
(Note 1) 9 40.04 55.05 -
Analysis on Price/Dividend Ratio
Investmilent Returr)(Note 2) 64.96 (Note 4) i
Cash Dividend Yield
(Note 3) 0.02 (Note 4) -

Note 1: Price/Earnings Ratio = Average Closing éfar the Year / Earnings per Share

Note 2: Price/Dividend Ratio = Average Closing Erior the Year / Cash Dividends per Share
Note 3: Cash Dividend Yield = Cash Dividends pear8hf Average Closing Price for the Year
Note 4: Earnings distribution for 2023 is pendingdpprovals from the shareholders’ meeting
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(6) Dividend policy and its execution status

A. The dividend policy is as follows:

(@)

(b)

Upon the annual closing of accounts, the profitsany, shall be used to pay
applicable taxes and compensate losses of thedingcgears, and then 10% of
the balance shall be appropriated as legal resetowever, this shall not apply
when the balance of legal reserve equals the dmétbcapital. A special reserve
shall then be appropriated as required by lawsragdlations. The Board shall
make an earnings distribution proposal concernirgy remaining amount along
with the undistributed profits accumulated from ioeis years. (The amount
proposed to be distributed shall not be less tH#b af the total amount eligible
for appropriation.) The proposal shall then be sittiech to the shareholders’
meeting for approval.

The distribution ratio within the dividend policy determined based on the capital
needs for capital expenditure budget, financialctire and future operation plans.

The Company shall not pay dividends when thereasprofit. Profits of the
Company may be distributed as dividends in the fofrstock or cash; however,
stock dividends shall not exceed 50% of the tosttidution.

In the event that the Company’s earnings are feovb¢he distributed amount in
the previous year, or in consideration of the fmialh business and operational
conditions of the Company, the Company may distelall or part of the reserves
in accordance with applicable laws and regulationsules of the competent
authorities.

B. Earnings distribution proposal

The 2023 earnings distribution plan was approvetiénBoard of Directors’ meeting on
March 7, 2024. With a net income of NT$218,168,282023, the Company plans to
pay cash dividends in the amount of NT$123,853,480,NT$0.32 per share (The plan
is pending for approval from the shareholders’ nmggt

C. Explanation on expected significant changes inddind policy: None.

(7) Impact of stock dividends on operation performaaiceé earnings per share: Not applicable,
as stock dividends were not proposed to be paidearshareholders’ meeting.

(8) Compensation to employees and Directors

A. The percentages or parties eligible to compensaticmployees and remuneration to
Directors in the Articles of Incorporation are afidws (The Articles of Incorporation
was approved in the Board meeting and shareholdessting on March 10, 2022 and
June 21, 2022, respectively):

Article 19 When the Company makes a profit for year, the compensation to

employees shall not be lower than one percent eflthlance and the
remuneration to Directors shall not be higher tlize percent of the
balance. However, if the Company has an accumuldéddit, the profit

shall cover the deficit before it can be used fanpensation.

The compensation to employees can be made in thedbstock or cash.
Parties eligible to receive the said compensatiatl snclude employees in
the controlling or affiliated companies who mettaer conditions. The
Board are authorized to set those conditions.

The distribution of compensation to employees aethuneration to
Directors and related matters shall comply with te&evant laws and
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regulations. The distribution plan shall be appue the Board meeting
with the consent of majority of attending Directevlich represents more
than two-third of all Directors and be submitted ttee shareholders'
meeting for its approval.

B. The estimation basis of compensation to employe®ws ramuneration to Directors,
calculation basis for number of shares distribuéesd employee compensation and
accounting treatments for difference between estichand actual payment amount:

(a) Estimation basis of compensation to employees antuneration to Directors:
Estimations are done pursuant to the Articles obtporation.

(b) Calculation basis for number of shares distribe@mployee compensation: The
number of shares distributed as employee compensiaticalculated based on the
net worth in the latest audited financial stateraeiihe Company does not intend
to pay stock dividends this year.

(c) Accounting treatments for difference between edtwhaand actual payment
amount: The difference will be accounted for asnges in accounting estimates
and recognized in profit or loss of the followingay.

C. Proposed compensation approved by the Board:

(&) With regard to compensation to employees and rematina to Directors in the
form of cash or stocks, please disclose the difieeereason and actions taken if
the amount is different from the one recognizethenfinancial statements.

Compensation to employees and remuneration to @ne@pproved in the Board
meeting on March 7, 2024 is as follows:

Compensation to employees: NT$14,105,705 (in cash)
Remuneration to Directors: NT$2,821,141 (in cash)

The amount of compensation to employees and reratioerto Directors is the
same as the amount recognized in the financiadrsit.

(b) Amount of stock distributed as employee compensa#i® a percentage to net
income of parent company only or individual finaalcstatements and aggregate
compensation to employees: None.

D. Actual payment of compensation to employees andunenation to Directors in the
previous fiscal year (including the number of ssgcimount and share price). Where
the actual payment amount differs from the amowstognized in the financial
statements, please disclose the difference, remsactions taken:

(@) 2022 compensation to employees and remunerati@irextors approved in the
Board meeting on March 9, 2023 were NT$17,267,7h@ AIT$3,453,542,
respectively. They were to be distributed in therf@f cash.

(b) The actual payment was the same as the amountnigedgn the 2022 financial
statements.

(9) Buyback of common shares: None.
Corporate Bonds:

(1) Corporate bonds: None.

(2) Conversion of corporate bonds: None.
(3) Exchange of corporate bonds: None.
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(4) Shelf registration for corporate bond issuance:élon

(5) Corporate bonds with warrants: None.

Preferred Shares:None.

Global Depositary SharesNone.

Employee Stock OptionsNone.

Employee Restricted StockNone.

New Share Issuance in Connection with Mergers anddjuisitions: None.

Execution of Financing Plans:
(1) Plan Details

A.

Date and document number of approval from the coempeauthority: Official Letter
No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporatiori-0345848 issued by the Financial
Supervisory Commission on June 24, 2022.

Fundings required for the project: NT$928,000 tlamas
Source of funds:

(@) Issue of 32,000 thousand common shares with aghae wf NT$10 each, at an issue price
of NT$22.5 for proceeds of NT$720 million.

(b) The remaining NT$208 million would be funded withrii loans or funds generated from
operations.

Project items and schedules:

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

14

Expected Date Total Amount | Funding Schedule

Project (Note)

of Completion Required Q4, 2022
Relnvestment in Motech Power ( 04, 2022 678,000 678,000
(Construction of power plant)
Reinvest in Motech Power Zef 04, 2022 250,000 250,000

(Construction of power plant)

Total 928,000 928,000

Note: Motech Power One is short for Motech Powee @o., Ltd. and Motech
Power Zeta is short for Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd.

Possible benefits

Proceeds from the cash capital increase are expéctde reinvested in the 100%
investees, Motech Power One and Motech Power Xéth,amounts of NT$678,000
thousand and NT$250,000 thousand, respectivelypdaser plant construction. Besides
mitigating the Company’s funding pressure and dpmral risk and enhancing the
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flexibility of funding arrangement, the power plarmf the aforementioned investees are
projected to contribute NT$2,454,981 thousand anidb884,189 thousand to the
Company's consolidated operating revenues and topgerancome, respectively,
between 2023 and 2043 with an expected paybac&dgefiapproximately 13 years.

(2) Execution

As of December 31, 2023
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; %)

y

D

Project Execution Status Reasons for Discrepan
and Improvement Plan
Planned 928,000
Amount Used
) . L Actual 928,00(
Reinvest in subsidiaries
Planned 100%
0,
Progress (%) Actual 10094 Not applicable as proje
o) 4 928 000 were completed 4
anne ,
Amount Used scheduled.
Actual 928,00(
Total
Planned 100%
Progress (%)
Actual 100%

(3) Benefits analysis

Fundraising was completed on August 26, 2022 arel @ompany had reinvested
NT$928,000 thousand in investees for power plamstactions in the fourth quarter of
2022. Contracts were signed for the sites of tlopgsed power plants, and with the track
records of Motech Power One and Motech Power Zefaant construction, we expect the
power plants will be completed successfully andtioute to the Group's consolidated
operating revenues and operating income. Ovetal Gompany shall expect to realize the

expected benefits from the use of funds.
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1. Business

V. Operational Highlights

(1) Business Scope

A. Major products/services

The Company and its major subsidiaries are engagédte manufacturing and selling
of solar cells and modules, design and installatb®V systems, and manufacturing
and selling of PV inverters. Therefore, operatidnghlights focus on these areas.

(@)
(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)
(h)

(i)
(),
(k)
()
(m)
(n)
(0)
()
(a)
)
(s)
(t)
(u)
(V)

CEO01010 instruments manufacturing

CC01010 electric power supply, electric transmissand power distribution
machinery manufacturing

CC01060 wired communication equipment and appararsufacturing
CC01070 wireless communication equipment and apsraanufacturing
CC01080 electronic parts and components manufagturi

CC01090 batteries manufacturing

CC01110 computers and computing peripheral equipmanufacturing

D101060 self-usage power generation equipmentzimii renewable energy
industry

D401010 heat energy supplying

F113030 wholesale of precision instruments

F213040 retail sale of precision instruments

F113110 wholesale of batteries

F213110 retail sale of batteries

F113050 wholesale of computing and business maghatgiipment
F213030 retail sale of computing and business machiequipment
F119010 wholesale of electronic materials

F219010 retail sale of electronic materials

F113070 wholesale of telecom instruments

F213060 retail sale of telecom instruments

IG03010 energy technical services

F401010 international trade

7799999 Other than those requiring special apprdtaal Company may enter into
other business not prohibited or limited by apglledaws and regulations.
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B.

C.

D.

Major products as a percentage to revenue

Weighting 2023
Iltem (In Thousanys to?lsl\(/j/\?l%ziwan Dollars) Ratio (%)
Solar cells 35,317 0.87%
PV modules 3,825,699 94.09%
Others 204,965 5.04%
Total 4,065,981 100.00%

Major products (services)

(@) Solar cells 166*166mm (M6)

(b) PV modules 370-385W (M6)

(c) High-efficiency TOPCon N-type PV modules 400W (XN60
(d) Mobile solar power systems

(e) Engineering consultant of PV systems

() Sales and engineering integration of PV systems

(g) Technical developments on PV systems

(h) Professional education and training on PV systems
Development of new products (services)

(@) Development of M10 N-type TOPCon cells

(b) Development of high-efficiency bifacial PV modul&35W (XN60GH-B)

(2) Industry Overview

A.

Industry Status and Development

The Paris Agreement adopted at COP 21 in 2015 netjyparties to the agreement to
establish a "Nationally Determined ContributionsIDC) for emission reduction. The
treaty prompts the robust developments in renewatiidegy and PV industry.

COP 26 in 2021 was the first climate summit to eavieach country’s five-year
contributions in carbon reduction since the Parge&ment, and for the first time in
history, countries had pledged to limit the useasil.

Following the conclusion of COP 28 at the end d22Mations reached a consensus to
triple the current global renewable energy capaeityl double the annual average
improvement rate of global energy efficiency.

International Energy Agency (IEA) has released2023 renewables market report. In
2023, the global installed capacity of renewablergy reached nearly 510 GW, up
almost 50%. This growth was primarily driven byigng#ficant surge in PV installed
capacity and new installed capacity in China. P3fahed capacity accounted for nearly
three-quarters of the overall installed capacit®23. The report indicates that under
current policies and market conditions, global vesigle energy installed capacity is
projected to grow 2.5 times by 2030 compared t3202

Taiwan government has been fully devoted to theslkbgwnents of low-carbon energy
from renewables. On October 27, 2016, it passedtbgram to achieve the goal of
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generating 20% of all electricity through renewabley 2025. As for solar energy
promotion, there have been policies and measurels as the Two-year Solar PV
Promotion Plan, 2020 Solar PV 6.5GW Target Plad,@round-mounted Solar System
Project, where the government takes inventory ofl [for grid-connection capacity,
expands the installation of rooftop PV systems atengthens public-private
partnership. The launch of ground-mounted PV systeas prioritized areas with social
consensus and free of ecological controversy (&shery and electricity symbiosis
applications, areas not appropriate for agricultuise, industrial parks, water areas,
polluted land, ball game grounds, parking lots,)dtr achieve the goal of 20GW solar
capacity by 2025.

On January 1, 2021, the MOEA officially enacted theajor electricity consumers
clause. Users with contract capacity exceeding k00 are required to have an
installed renewable energy capacity which accotmtsl0% of the contract capacity
within five years. The objective is for domesticjaraelectricity consumers to install
renewable energy capacity as required. In 2022,M@EA proposed the draft of
“Renewable Energy Development Act” and the Taiwanv& Company proactively
promoted the new electricity distribution systengigue program. Large corporations
around the world are joining the RE100 initiativedancouraging entities within their
supply chains to commit to 100% green electricityuntries around the world compete
in their pursuits of net-zero emissions and theoérzero carbon transition has arrived.
In response to the global 2050 net-zero target, Miv@istry of Economic Affairs
proposes a 2x2 net zero transition framework whiatludes "low carbon - zero
emissions” and "energy - industries”. The shoratgriority is to promote matured
green and carbon reduction technologies, shiftingrgey consumption and industries
towards a low-carbon state. In the long run, welshaest in advanced technologies
such as hydrogen energy, circular economy and @arfapture, Utilization and
Storage (CCUS). The comprehensive path for thesitrtan from low to zero carbon
and net-zero industry also brings about busineg®rynities to the green energy
industry.

Supply chain

Materials for the upstream of solar industry arestiyohigh-purity silicon wafers. The
midstream consists of manufacturing of cells andeawbly of modules. The
downstream includes system integration and instatiawhile long-term maintenance
is required after the power stations are estaldishie relationships between upstream,
midstream and downstream of the PV industry anstilated below:

Upstream Midstream Downstream
PV
silicon Solar Cell Equipment | oy power
i - . Syst )
Materials > Wafer/Chip ["\ Solar Cell |=> Vodule E:\ y;;rpesmane Station
' Engineering

Product development trends and competitions

Since 2018, technologies of PV industry have bemivang constantly. The cutting
technique for silicon wafers has advanced from arastire to diamond wire while the
mainstream has shifted from polycrystalline catighe early stage to monocrystalline
cells at present. Large size and thinner produgshaghly sought-after in the market.
Adding to the fact that global capacity has corgimly expanded with equipment
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advancement, the conversion efficiency of new petglthas improved rapidly. In

contrast, production capacity without cost compeditess is gradually eliminated.

Consequently, we have seen significant verticagrations, mergers and acquisitions
in the industry in the past two to three years.

Mono PERC (passivated emitter and rear contacly deiminated the market in 2019.
P-type mono cells with PERC technology allow thekbaf cells to capture sunlight
which in turn improve conversion efficiency. PER@dglucts also bring about the
double-glass PV modules which expand the PV appes, allowing further
improvement in module efficiency. By the end of @0nhancement in the generating
efficiency of PERC cells had reached its limit, ahd development of next-generation
N-type cells became imperative. At present, TOP&ath HJT are the two mainstream
technologies of N-type cells.

The materials and components of TOPCon cell effelsti demonstrate the

characteristics of N-type products, including higlonversion efficiency and

advantageous temperature coefficient, allowingctleto generate higher power output
on the same unit area than the mainstream P-tyilee e thermal stability enables

longer lifetime and higher yield as well as imprevygower generation efficiency at
dawn, dusk, and cloudy days when the light is diime elevated temperature induced
degradation under scorching sun is also improved@%y Furthermore, none of the
TOPCon module experiences light induced degradation

In terms of solar power system, as PV applicatimasure, the scope of application can
be roughly divided into four major groups: commalcresidential, utility-scale and
other independent system applications. Residemtmdlications usually adopt PV
systems under 20KW, whereas commercial applicatimessystems under 1IMW. PV
systems for power stations would be at a minimuniliV. Looking at electricity
production, solar power mainly came from small-scasidential PV systems in the
past. However, driven by the aggressive renewalegy policies of each country, the
planning and construction of utility-scale PV sysseare rapidly expanding.

(3) Technology and Research and Development

A.

B.

Research and development expenses in the most ngesmand as of the date of this
annual report

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year/Item 2022 2023
R&D Expenses 52,366 54,425
% of R&D Expenses to Operating Revenue 0.98% 1.34%

Technology or product developed in 2023
(@) The average conversion efficiency of mono PERGaeéls improved to 23.1%.

(b) The average efficiency of N-type TOPCon solar e&b 24.2% with a maximum
efficiency of 24.6%.

(c) Monofacial PV modules 540W (XS72CH)
(d) Monofacial PV modules 470W (XS60CH)
(e) Monofacial PV modules 420W (XS54CH)

(4) Short-term and long-term business development plans

A.

Long-term business development plans
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(&) Marketing strategy

Improve regional sales mix of PV modules to mitegatolatility risks.
Develop long-term strategic partnerships with lagdinodule producers and
system integrators of each region to build a snatde and stable sales
network.

Expand the installed capacity of PV systems andbésh a leading PV
system design brand in Taiwan.

Utilize our development capabilities in green erer@pplications
accumulated over the years to explore other ensagitg business
opportunities.

Enhance product quality to build the image of figeality for in-house
brands.

(b) Production cost

Fortify long-term strategic partnerships with upatn material providers to
improve sufficiency and control in raw material pligs.

Implement quality management and enhance the egisfuality assurance
systems of ISO-9001:2000, 1ISO-14001, and OHSAS 1800

Improve production and cost leadership capabilijesactively research and
develop new production technologies as well asothice advanced
equipment to improve production efficiency, yielidaquality.

(c) Production Development

Develop new-structured PV modules with high coneergfficiency.
Develop PV modules with other technologies baserharket progresses.

Develop products associated with solar applicationine with market and
customer demand

Develop other energy-saving products and providenprehensive and
integrated services on renewable applications.

B. Short-term business development plans

(&) Marketing strategy

Vi.

Enhance global customer portfolio of PV modules emaoperate with leading
module manufacturers or system integrators of eagion.

Expand our business scope to downstream PV agphsatwith our
experience and reputations accumulated in the Birstny.

Enhance the intensity and breadth of our PV teahrdaod sales services to
provide customers total solutions.

Improve product technologies and after-sale sesvafePV systems. Expand
our market share with leading product technologied brand advantage to
gradually take part in the overseas market.

Strengthen our competence in development, plandiegjgn and engineering
integration. Inject more efforts into securing Pystem projects and subsidy
programs.

Forge greater connections with architects, stratemgineer and construction
industry to expand our PV project sources.
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(b) Production cost

i.  Enhance the efficiency of mono PERC solar cells iategrate forward with
high-efficiency modules to provide customers withic@-competitive
products.

ii.  The next-generation N-type TOPCon technology cgnifscantly improve
cell efficiency.

iii. Actively introduce automated production and infotima management
system to enhance efficiency and quality.

(c) Production development

i. Devote to the enhancement of conversion efficiesnay production yield of
PV modules.

ii. Provide eco-friendly green products and track carlfmotprint to realize
green supply chain and logistics.

iii. Strengthen competence in PV system design andlai&ia.
2. Market and Sales Overview
(1) Market Analysis

A. Sales Distribution by Region
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year 2022 2023
m Amount % Amount %
Taiwan 3,536,482 65.98 2,390,268 58.79
Singapore 1,758,710 32.81 1,642,754 40.40
Others 64,786 1.21 32,959 0.81
Total 5,359,978 100.00 4,065,981 100.00

B. Market Share, Future Supply and Demand and Markaiv

(@)

(b)

Market Share

According to the statistics of the market reseanshitution, PV InfoLink, Motech
ranked among the top four in terms of Taiwan PV aedhipment in 2023. When
taking the 2023 PV installed capacity of 2.7GW askd by the Bureau of Energy,
MOEA, Motech had a market share of 13% in 2023.

Future Supply and Demand, and Market Growth

In response to the effects of climate change, tloeldvis devoted to energy
transformation projects. Many countries have conaditto achieve carbon
neutrality in the next 30 years. Thus, in additienthe promotion of energy
policies by each nation, companies also activelyim@lved in carbon footprint
reduction which in turn prompt manufacturers to useewable energy, pushing
the global PV demand to increase continuously.

The research institution TrendForce projects newirtalled capacity worldwide
to reach 474GW in 2024, a 16% year-over-year grpwtlere the top two nations
will account for 56% with China at 210GW and U.S. %GW. With the
promotion of energy policies by each country, thabgl PV installed capacity is
expected to increase every year.
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In 2023, Taiwan's new solar installed capacity medc2.7GW, marking a 33%
growth compared to the previous year. During ther y#he government announced
several regulations and drafts, such as mandatesdialling PV systems in new
buildings of certain sizes, reselling of electgicitom self-use renewable energy
power generation to electricity retailing enterpsis and various carbon credit
regulations. These initiatives aimed to activelypiove the market system to
promote the growth of solar energy supply. Thusgewgect to see a stable growth
in domestic PV demand.

C. Competitive Advantage

Motech continues to grow amid fierce competitiodsr competitive advantages are as
follows:

(@) Professional management team

Executive managers of the Company and its subgdiall came from different
fields of expertise. They have solid technical @sddemic foundation, years of
management experience in the industry, global ngsend leadership skills.

(b) Advanced technology and equipment

The Company and its subsidiaries are pioneerstimguedge technologies of the
industry. Combine these with advanced producti@ilifi@es and inhouse capacity
designs and planning, we have significantly impcbyaroduction efficiency,
allowing the Company and its subsidiaries to hawmpetitiveness in terms of
quality and costs of solar cells and modules.

(c) Excellent market position

With excellent market position, the Company andsitbsidiaries can enjoy the
best support and cooperation from suppliers andiym® the most competitive
products to ensure the success and sales growtistdfmers, which in turn secure
our superb market position.

D. Favorable and unfavorable factors for long-termetigyment and countermeasures
(a) Favorable factors
i.  Excellent organizational operation system

- People-oriented management increases employatyoy

- Quality management system with certifications E0-9001:2000,
ISO-14001, and OHSAS 18001

ii.  Outstanding execution and manufacturing systems

- Latest equipment in the industry to enhance pctda efficiency and
yield

- Excellent sales team
- International management team

iii. Good customer portfolio and market reviews
- Close partnerships with leading companies in majarkets worldwide
- Great reviews on product quality

iv. Policy impact

- Taiwan’s Energy Development Guidelines intensifg development and
utilization of renewables, and the government takesan active role
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where solar energy is concerned. In line with tB2®nuclear-free policy,
efforts are channeled toward the goal of 20GW tdrsostalled capacity,
which brings about robust growth in the domestickeg

(b) Unfavorable factors

Unbalances within the solar supply chain as a whahel short-term
fluctuations in raw material prices affect the grasargins.

Chinese government suspends most of its solardyupsiicies.
European governments suspend or scale down subgpidlieies.

Japanese government tightens scrutiny for healitheselopments in solar
market and downsizes its feed-in tariff every year.

Chinese producers continue to expand their prooluaapacities and market
shares.

(c) Countermeasures

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Continue to streamline the production scale of rsaells for module
production, produce niche and high-efficiency pmiduand enhance the
generating efficiency of modules.

For PV module production lines to achieve producsale balance in order
to optimize production efficiency and costs.

Continue to strengthen and prepare the managemeniiientals of the
Company for competition-cooperation of various isitigs.

Continue to optimize customer revenue mix and difiemarket risks.

Choose strategic partners prudently and managgedtly to create long-term
win-win situation.

Enhance R&D capabilities to improve conversion cgfficy of cells and
utilization rate of silicon materials.

Enhance R&D capabilities to improve generatingcedficy of modules and
module packaging technology.

Collaborate with external parties in the developteernf advanced
technologies and next generation cells to diffeag@tfrom competitors.

Expand the added value of module production antesyslownstream and
increase our market share in PV system sectorexitkllent brand image.

Take parts in fishery and electricity symbiosisjgets to increase the added
value of traditional solar system and explore nesiitiess opportunities.

(2) Main applications and manufacturing process of x@ylucts

A. Main application of key products

Key Products Main Application

Solar cells and

modules Also, they can be used for special applicatiorg, eff-grid products o

Our products are semiconductor components whiclvazorlight into
electricity. They are generally made as standarddules o
buildingintegrated modules for module producers or systeagiators

consumer products.
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Manufacturing process

Solar cells process flow:

\ 4

Wafer Etching

lonic Diffusion

\ 4

Thin Film Deposition

A

Busbar Screen Printing <

Sample Testing

\4

A 4

Testing » Sample Packaging

Packaging for Inventory

A

Integration with Power Systeme

PV modules process flow:

Cell Array » String Soldering—>»| Backsheet Array
Lamination Electroluminescence (EL) Testing|«
> Frame Assembling > Junction Box Fixing
Packaging for Inventory Testing <
B. Supply of key raw materials
Raw Material Supplier Supply

WAFER Company G Good

EVA Company J Good

C. Key suppliers and customers

(@) Names of suppliers account for 10% or more of tbenfany’s total purchases in
one of the past two fiscal years with purchase arhand percentages as well as

reasons for changes
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2023
No. Name Amount :ﬁ:opﬁ?:hugeRelationshi; Name Amount ,:f’e,topﬁ?cnhugaRelationship
1 | Supplier G| 1,051,913 28.08 Noggft;‘f‘ted Supplier G| 519,621  20.86 Noggft;‘f‘ted
- Others 2,694,709 71.92 - Others 1,971,609 79.14 -
- |Net Purchase 3,746,622 100.00 - Net Purchase 2,491,230 100.00 -

Explanations on changes: Purchases from Suppliplu@meted in 2023 mainly
due to changes in product specifications. The Com@ad its subsidiaries have
established sound relationships with suppliers. éle@y, to ensure an
uninterrupted supply of materials, we continue tmtact different suppliers to
secure materials and diversify risks.

Names of customers account for 10% or more of the@any’s total revenue in
one of the past two fiscal years with sales am@ntd percentages as well as
reasons for changes

(b)
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2023
0, 0,
No. Name Amount % to Annual Relationshiy Name Amount % to Annual Relationshig
Net Revenue Net Revenue
1 | CompanyE 1,758710 32.81 |NonTelateqd ooanyE| 1642758 4040 | Non-related
party party
2 |Companyq@ 707,243 1319 |Nonelated oo onvG| 275308 677 | Non-related
party party
3 | companyl| 567,355 1059 |Nonrelated oo anyi| 359,831  s.gs | Non-related
party party
Others 2,326,670 43.41 Others 1,788,091 43.98
Net revenue 5,359,978 100.00 Net revenue 4,065,981 100.00

Explanations on changes: The sales weightings ultetl due to business
development needs, competitions, dealings withoeasts and adjustments in
sales strategies in the past two fiscal years.eltvere no significant irregularities.

D. Production in the past two fiscal years

(In Thousands of pieces/New Taiwan Dollars)

Yea 2022 2023
roductiof
Product Capacity | Output Amount Capacity Output Amount
Solar cells 68,538 65,229 | 2,619,525| 51,600 30,916 | 1,246,285
PV modules 2,069 2,069 | 6,472,515 1,994 1,994 | 4,998,424
Total 9,092,040 6,244,709

E. Shipments and sales in the past two fiscal years

(In Thousands of pieces/New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2023
Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas
Product Shipment| Sales | Shipment Sales | Shipment Sales | Shipment Sales
Solar cells 1,046 45,105 2,396 | 43,043 183 8,349 2,204 | 26,968
PV modules 711] 3,277,649 663 (1,779,234 443 12,177,163 721 11,648,534
Others - 213,728 - 1,219 - 204,756 - 209
Total 3,536,482 1,823,496 2,390,268 1,675,713

Human Resources in the Past Two Fiscal Years and aéthe Date of this Annual Report

As of
Year 2022 2023 April 22, 2024
Management 58 54 54
Technical personnel 150 143 143
No. of Administrative personnel 62 58 58
Employees
Operating personnel 522 458 462
Total 792 713 717
Average Age 39.37 40.88 43.50
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Education

Average Year of Service 8.9 10.4 10.5
Ph.D. 0.76% 0.84% 0.84%
Master’s Degree 11.38% 12.20% 11.85%
Bachelor's Degree 60.18% 56.94% 55.23%
Senior High School 20.48% 20.76% 22.73%
Below Senior High School 7.21% 9.26% 9.34%

Expenditure Related to Environmental Protection

Any losses suffered by the Company in the mostrtegear and as of the date of this annual
report due to environmental pollution incidentsclugding any compensation paid and any
violations of environmental protection laws or rkgions found in environmental audits, of
which the disposition dates, disposition referemasbers, the articles and details of law violated,
and the content of the dispositions shall be sg&bif and disclosures on an estimate of possible
expenses that could incur currently or in the feitand countermeasures being or to be taken. If a
reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explamdtiba facts on why it cannot be made shall be
provided: None.

Employment Relations

(1) Employees’ welfare, education, training and penseamployee relations and protection of
employees’ rights:

A. Employee welfare

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Depending on profitability, the Company and its sdlaries provide incentive
schemes such as rewards to employees.

The Company has established the EWC to design,grld implement a variety of
employee benefit measures and organize relevamntitést covering different
aspects of benefits, e.g., family day, festivakbedtions, year-end party, etc. It
also grants subsidies for emergencies and funasalgll as cash gifts for wedding
and festivals.

Type of Benefit Item
Welfare Weddlng/fL_meraI/ STETRENT Childbirth subsidy
celebrations | medical assistange
. . Periodicals and Discounts at
Recreation Travel subsidy :
books on loan | designated stores
Others . Coupons fo_r . Group insurance| Birthday coupons
important festivals

. E-vouchers (for stores on-site)

. Subsidies for meals

. Employee discounts on company products

* A wide range of designated stores providing speeiat discounts
. Library with quarterly new additions to the colliect

The company has an indoor badminton court for eygae to have a comfortable
area for sports activities. There are also freeoandparking and eligibility of
renting dormitories within the science park.

The Company has set up a health center with regdsteurses. Nursery rooms are
provided at each factory with on-site doctors ragul providing consultation
services to employees. Additionally, the Companyfersf annual health
examinations at a frequency superior to the regolatequirements. Employees
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are entitled to complimentary breakfast upon cotmpteof the examinations for
their well-being.

(e) The Company and its subsidiaries comply with lalbegulations and acts
promulgated by the government as well as suppartrespect international human
rights standards. Through internal promotion aratqation of labor rights, every
employee is treated fairly and with respect. Then@any also formulates relevant
rules as the basis for employee management andliemcg

B. Education and training

The Company and its subsidiaries place great impo& on human resource
developments and strive for improvements in prodesd competence. We provide
systematic learning systems and environment toef@agculture of active employee
learning and management assistance while satisfylmgy needs for corporate
management and individual developments. We prorhotean resource development
programs through internal/external training, e+@ay education and training platform,
Motech library and courses for professional cexdifions.

C. Retirement system and implementation status

The Company and its subsidiaries comply with |laegirement laws and systems to
safeguard employees’ retirement rights.

In Taiwan, the Company contributes monthly an anhoequivalent to 2% of
employees' salaries to the pension fund depositdtedBank of Taiwan in the name of
an independently administered pension fund comenjitesuant to the Labor Standards
Act for employees’ pensions under the old retirehsystem. As contributions to the
pension fund exceeded the required amount in 2023Company had been approved
by the competent authority to suspend its conti@mstfor one year.

Starting from July 1, 2005, for new employees amipleyees adopting the new
pension system under the Labor Pension Act, the g@aom would make monthly
contributions equal to 6% of employees’ salary ke to the employees' individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insuraactilty protect their retirement
rights. Employees willing to make voluntary conttlons to their pension accounts
shall have their salaries deducted based on th#as rof voluntary contributions and
deposited in their personal pension accounts.

D. Labor agreements

The Company values employee communications. To taiainsmooth two-way
communications and exchanges, different types atimgs are held regularly, e.g., the
labor-management meetings, and promotional docwsmaneé published. Diverse
channels for employees to voice their opinionseatablished including the employee
opinion platform, dates with the President, andchudates between direct personnel
and the Present for employee to give feedbackaddiition, all employees can learn of
company information and employee activities througformation released on the
corporate website.

E. Code of conduct and ethics

The Company and its subsidiaries have establighedGode of Ethics and Business
Conduct” based on the core value of integrity amtldsed the information at the
corporate website and the corporate governancmsatithin the MOPS.

(2) Any losses suffered by the Company in the mostnitegear and as of the date of this annual
report due to industrial disputes (including anglaiions of Labor Standards Act found in
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labor inspection, of which the disposition dateispdsition reference numbers, the articles
and details of law violated, and the content of thepositions shall be specified), and
disclosures on an estimate of possible expensesdhbd incur currently or in the future and
countermeasures being or to be taken. If a reatonadétimate cannot be made, an
explanation of the facts on why it cannot be mdds! $e provided:

The Company and its subsidiaries have always siletb®e importance of harmonious labor
relations. There were no industrial disputes widnaities imposed by the competent
authority in the most recent year and as of the dathis annual report.

(3) Measures safeguarding workplace and employee pedrsafety:

A.

Risk management

A variety of emergency equipment and monitoringeys are in place at our Science
Park Branch for swift notifications to relevant gennel in the event of an accident and
immediate actions.

The Company and its subsidiaries have establishethpiehensive emergency
procedures for various accidents or natural disas{@cluding storm damage,
earthquakes, gas explosion, biochemical hazardd, fme) and organized regular
emergency trainings where on-site vendors and adamsuppliers shall take part to
improve participants’ emergency responses and scrisianagement teamwork.
Evaluation drills are regularly scheduled for enyeles to be familiar with relevant
skills and routes.

The officers of industrial safety department anduaits would patrol the premises to
prevent hazards. Security guards are stationedcédrly entrances to perform 24-hour
access control, ensuring the safety of all perdonne

Education and training

New recruits of the Company and its subsidiaried| stomplete the general safety and
health as well as hazard communication educatiahtainings. Afterwards, they are
required to complete the on-the-job retraining (sidial safety class exams) on a
quarterly basis to continuously strengthen theiar@ness on safety and health concepts
and skills. In addition, the Company organized ahrime drills where employees are
trained to use manual fire alarms, fire extinguishend hydrants and be taught of
response equipment so that all employees possesgtiing knowledge and basic
skills. ERT members shall take retaining programerg year to enhance their
emergency response and firefighting skills. On-s&iteployees shall attend various
emergency response trainings and disaster preveséiminars and subsequently pass
on the knowledge and skills learned to all ERT pengl in the Company.

Health care

We manage employee health thoroughly. Health clupskfor general employees and
personnel engaging in special operations are hektyeyear. Employees having
irregularities identified are ranked by health dtinds to receive corresponding health
management treatments. We place grave importanceghenprevention of new
occupational diseases and proactively promote emas improvement projects,
prevention of work overload, health protection obriing mothers, suitability
assessment on middle-aged and senior employeesplgrsiblogical assessments on
personnel requiring respiratory protection devic&ge implement a variety of
improvement measures and are committed to provideatthy working environment.
The health center has comprehensive disease coesfmbnse mechanisms in place for
different types of emergencies. Measures are impheed when the need arises to
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6.

mitigate the risk of cluster infection. Emergencedital education and trainings are
arranged to enhance and strengthen the roles atah@ersonnel.

Cyber Security Management

(1) Risk management structure, policy, management @adsresources allocated concerning
cyber security

A.

Cyber security policy

The policy is established to maintain the normakrafion of the Company’s
information system, prevent hacking, virus and saip® as well as avoid human errors
and inappropriate or unlawful use, thereby maimgnthe safety of physical
environment. Cyber security policy is the Compangigdelines for cyber security
management authority, computer system security geanant, and rules of network
system security, system access control and se@anitlyol of physical environment.

Cyber security risk management structure

The Company’'s cyber security risk management stractformulates relevant

management procedures pursuant to the cyber sepotity and regularly reviews the

procedures to match the reality. The informatiopattement would deploy appropriate
information security technologies based on the gulaces to maintain normal operation
of the Company’s information services.

Information Security Policy

System

Information

Managemen
Procedures

Information
Security
Control

Procedures

Development
and
Maintenance
Procedures

Code of Ethical
Conduct for
Employees

Information
Software
Control

Procedures

Network
System Safety
Regulations

Information
Disaster
Response Plan

System Accesq
Control
Regulations

Information
Services
Control

Information
Hardware
Control

Promotion
of

Security
Managemen|
Audit

Procedures Procedures

Information
Security
Education

Virtual Private

Network Firewall

Web Filtering Spam Filtering

Information
Security
Technolog

Online Behavior
Management

Network Access

Document Protectior]
Management

Endpoint Antivirus

Based on the annual risk assessment outcome, otra@yber security checks would
be included in the periodic audits every year, #redaudit results would be reported in
the Board meeting.

Cyber security management plans and resourcesatdbc

The Company regularly reviews the internal cybesusgy regulations; coordinates,
manages and supervises all cyber security workBeoGroup; conducts cyber security
checks such as audits on the effectiveness of qirote system as well as social
engineering drills; and continues to promote thecept of cyber security to employees.
In 2022, we upgraded our cyber security hardwarkdata storage devices to manage
the ever-changing network security threats. Thelempntation of cyber security
policy and procedures is sufficient to ensure themal operation of the Company’s
services. Thus, we did not purchase cyber insuranpeesent.

Specific management plans for cyber security afelbsvs:
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(@) Physical security management

Server room environment monitoring and access cbmiechanisms, hardware
control procedures and physical environment safetyrol rules.

(b) System security management

Software control procedures, system change comierdsures, website security
inspection, software vulnerability detection antcpaupdates

(c) Cyber security management

Antivirus protection and malware prevention, dateeagch control measures,
control measures on internal and external netwargess, and analysis and
handling of connection disruptions

(d) Access security management

Personnel account privilege management mechanigmfidential document
control measures, system access control rules

(e) Disaster prevention

System/network monitoring and reporting mechanistasa backup measures and
system backup mechanism, disaster recovery drill

Resources for cyber security management are asvill

(a) Endpoint protection: Install antivirus software fmmputers and emails. Conduct
system status checks and virus code updates ab2éames every year.

(b) Network defense: Set up external firewall deviceswell as website and email
filtering management equipment. Regularly reviewelinet traffic and adjust
internet access permissions appropriately.

(c) Information security education: At least one infatian security awareness course
every year and implement social engineering dwllsvaluate the effectiveness.

(d) Backup and recovery: Establish backup managemeshanesms and systems,
and conduct regular disaster recovery drills faeystems.

(e) Created the positions of one Information Securifficér and one dedicated staff
in 2023 for information security management in limeth the Company’s
information security policy.

() Atleast 12 information security summary reportergwear.

(2) Any losses suffered by the Company in the mostnitegear and as of the date of this annual
report due to major cyber security incident, pdssimpact and associated action plans

Cyberattacks may steal corporate trade secrets)leiciiual property and confidential
information, e.g., proprietary information of custers or other stakeholders and personal
data of employees. Malicious hackers may infiltrdie Company’s network systems with
computer viruses, destructive software or ransomwarorder to gain control over the
computer systems, thereby stealing confidentiarmftion and extorting money to interfere
with business operations. Motech strengthens $eption against information operational
risks with annual reviews and evaluations on netvwsmcurity protocols and procedures to
ensure their adequacy and effectiveness. Also, @wmmpany has established a
comprehensive network and computer security syséegn, firewall, antivirus system, data
encryption system, intrusion prevention system gpam filtering system. We use these
systems to control information security risk, previeaking of trade secrets and maintain the
key functions such as manufacturing and operatin8023 and as of the date of this annual
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report, the Company did not identify any informat&ecurity breach, major cyberattacks nor
customer data breach.

Material Contracts

Long-term loan contracts and other material cotdrachich would affect shareholder’s equity
and are still effective as of the date of this aimaport, or expired in the most recent year:

Nature Counterparty Duration Description Cover
Syndicated loan Repay existing loans
Lona-term with eight banks| Three years from the with financial
loan gontract including Chang| initial drawdown date institutions and None
Hwa Commercial (2023/12/21) supplement working
Bank, Ltd. capital
Syndicated loan Repay existing loans
Lona-term with nine banks | Three years from the with financial
loan ?;ontract including Chang | initial drawdown date institutions and None
Hwa Commercial (2026/03/29) supplement working
Bank, Ltd. capital
Upon receiving the .
Construction work Company A | opinion letter of paralle Insta!a’g;)enmof PV None
connection review y
Construction work Company A 2022/04/01 Installation of PV None
system
Construction work Company B 2022/04/01 Installation of PV None
system
Investment agreement Company T 2015/11/27 ESta?"Sh module None
actory
Supplementary
agreement to the Company T 2016/3/10 Establish cell factpryNone
investment agreement
Framework contract Company T 2015/11/27~2025/11/26tablish cell factory None
Investment agreement Company T 2017/9 Establish cell factory None
Investment agreement Company T 2017/9 Establish silicon None

wafer factory
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VI. Financial Highlights

1. Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehemsincome from 2019 to 2023 with
Names and Opinions of Independent Auditors

(1) Condensed Balance Sheet (Consolidated) - Intemadtiinancial Reporting Standards

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Highlights from 2019 to 2023 (Note 1) As of
2024.MM.DD
ltem 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 (Note 2)
Current Assets 6,246,797 4,310,993 5,309,581 6,064,792 4,374,777 -
Long-term investment 107,789 118,561 140,523 247,511 236,962 -
Pé‘;%?g?’n’;'tam and 2,858,925 2,809,300 2,648,623 2,668,184 3,327,448 -
Intangible Assets 8,87D 4,249 2,012 622 213 -
Other Assets 387,006 375,122 632,478 588,128 650,775 -
Total Assets 0,609,347 7,618,225 8,733,217 9,569,237 8,590,175 -
Current Bgfgtrr?bution 3,783,919 1,732,218 2,808,110 3,945,116 1,861,258 ;
Liabilities |After Not yet
Distribution 3,783919 1,803,226 2,879,118 4,119,285 .. Yo ;
Non-Current Liabilities 2,718,631 2,643,942 2,638,810 1,292,081 2,374,277 -
Total Bgfgtrr?bution 6,502,550 4,376,160 5,446,920 5,237,197 4,235,535 ;
Liabilities |After Not yet
Distribution 6,502,550\ 4,447,168 5517,928  5411,366 b Yo ;
Egﬁﬁfeﬁtéﬁl?;?ﬁ'ﬁﬁ‘é pardye 3007536 3168466 3213749 4254905 4,279,348 ;
Capital 5,404,704 3,550,419 3,550,419 3,870,419 3,870,419 -
Capital Surplus 190,58p 25 252 25348 540,694 540,695 -
Retained ngtrr?bution (2,022,672 110,812 146,634 350,088 396,567 -
Earnings |After Not yet
Dstribution | (022,672 39,804 75,626 175,919 o Yoo -
Oézel’]ritgompone”ts of (564,888)  (518,017)  (508,652)  (506,296) (528,333 -
Treasury Shares (190) - - - - -
Non-controlling Interests 99,2461 73,599 72,548 77,135 75,292 -
Total Bgfgtrﬁbution 3,106,797| 3,242,065 3,286,297|  4,332,040| 4,354,640 -
Equity  |After Not yet
Sistribution 3,106,797\ 3,171,057 3215289 4,157,871 . Yo -

Note: 1. Financial information of 2019 to 2023 veaslited by CPAs.

Note: 2. Before the date of the annual reportuiited or reviewed financial data for the most réqeeriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEXx shall
disclose such information.
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(2) Condensed Balance Sheet (Parent Company Only)ernkitional Financial Reporting

Standards
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Year Highlights from 2019 to 2023 (Note 1) As of
2024 . MM.DD
ltem 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 | (Note 2)
Current Assets 3,164,208 2,831,489 3,149,597 2,656,112 2,345,576 -
Long-term investment 2,223,170 1,540,581 1,573,709 2,798,816 2,735,122 -
Property, Plant and 1,462,680 1,404,596| 1,293,653] 1,364,353 1,275,101 -
Equipment

Intangible Assets 1,450 4,249 2,012 622 213 -
Other Assets 267,716 239,282 268,363 218,911 239,152 -
Total Assets 7,119,224 6,020,197 6,287,334 7,038,814 6,595,164 -

Before 1,938,798| 1,166,916 1,418,892| 2,559,742 923,932 -
Current Distribution

Liabilities After 1938798 1237924 1489900 2733011  NOtYet :

Distribution distributed
Non-Current Liabilities 2,172,890 1,684,815 1,654,693 224,167| 1,391,884 -
Before 4,111,688 2,851,731] 3,073,585 2,783,909 2,315,816 -
Total Distribution

Liabilities \After 4111688 2,922,739 3144593 2,958,078 . NotVet :

Distribution distributed
Capital 5,404,704 3,550,419 3,550,419 3,870,419 3,870,419 -
Capital Surplus 190,58p 25,252 25,348 540,694 540,695 -
Before

Retained | Distribution (2,022,672 110,812 146,634 350,088 396,567 -

Earnings |After Not yet
Distribution (2,022,672 39,804 75,626 175,919 distributed -
Oézel’]ritgompone”ts of (564,888)  (518,017)  (508,652)  (506,296) (528,333 -
Treasury Shares (190) - - - - -

Before
T 3,007,536 3,168,466 3,213,749 4,254,905, 4,279,348 -
Total Distribution

Equity  |After Not yet

Distribution 3,007,536 3,097,458 3,142,741 4,080,736 distributed -

Note: 1. Financial information of 2019 to 2023 veaslited by CPAs.

Note: 2. Before the date of the annual reportuiited or reviewed financial data for the most réqeeriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEXx shall
disclose such information.
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(3) Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Gdatad) - International Financial
Reporting Standards

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Highlights from 2019 to 2023 (Note 1) As of
2024.MM.DD
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 (Note 2)
Net Revenue 5,297,076 3,678,395 5,872,989 5,359,978 4,065,981 -
Gross Profit (133,921) 408,133 550,745 693,907 677,424 -
Operating Income (Loss) (1,043,657) (9,965 168,357 336,695 323,417 -
Non-operating Income anq 596 974) 135305 (51,979 (60,761 (93,832 :
Expenses
Income Before Income Tax (1,340,631 125,340 116,378 275,934 229,585 -
Nce)t Income of Continuing | 1 346 955)  111,042| 107,279  272317| 224317 :
perations
Loss from Discontinued 0 0 0 0 0 i
Operations
Net Income (Loss) (1,346,955) 111,942 107,279 272,317 224,317 -

Other Comprehensive

Income, Net of Tax (83,584 48,177 9,119 10,376 (20,872 -

Total Comprehensive

| (1,430,539 160,119 116,398 282,693 203,445 -
ncome

Net Income Attributable to

Owners of the Parent (1,317,867 109,997 106,743 267,882 218,168 -

Net Income Attributable to
Non-controlling Interests

Total Comprehensive
Income Attributable to (1,397,241 157,536 116,195 276,818 198,611 -
Owners of the Parent

Total Comprehensive

(29,088 1,945 536 4,435 6,149 -

Income Attributable to (33,298 2,583 203 5,875 4,834 -
Non-controlling Interests
Before
Earings pd Retrospective (2.44 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -

Adjustment

Share

(NTS) After _
Retrospective (3.72 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
Adjustment

Note 1: Financial information of 2019 to 2023 waslited by CPAs.

Note 2: Before the date of the annual report, ditma or reviewed financial data for the most reqegriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEXx shall
disclose such information.
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(4) Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (P&mipany Only) - International
Financial Reporting Standards:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Year Highlights from 2019 to 2023 (Note 1) As of
2024.MM.DD
itern 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 | (Note 2)
Net Revenue 3,137,812 3,154,659 5,568,741 5,274,388 4,401,293 -
Gross Profit (196,837) 240,426 355,988 492,095 519,547 -
Operating Income (Loss) (722,005) (105,183 61,648 210,020 209,202 -
Né’”"’pera“”g Income and 505 305) 215,138 45,904 57,053 8,966 :
xpenses
Income Before Income Tax (1,324,310 109,955 107,552 267,073 218,168 -
Nce)t Income of Continuing | 4 317 8670 100,097  106,743|  267,882| 218,168 :
perations
Loss from Discontinued 0 0 0 0 0 i
Operations
Net Income (Loss) (1,317,867) 109,997 106,743 267,882 218,168 -
Other Comprehensive (79,374 47,539 9,452 8,936 (19,557 :

Income, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive

| (1,397,241 157,536 116,195 276,818 198,611 -
ncome

Net Income Attributable to
Owners of the Parent

Net Income Attributable to
Non-controlling Interests

Total Comprehensive
Income Attributable to - - - - - -
Owners of the Parent

Total Comprehensive
Income Attributable to - - - - - -
Non-controlling Interests

Before
. Retrospectiv, (2.44 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
Earnings pe Adjustment
Share
(NTg)  |After _
Retrospectiv (3.72 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
Adjustment

Note 1: Financial information of 2019 to 2023 waslited by CPAs.

Note 2: Before the date of the annual report, ditma or reviewed financial data for the most reqegriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEx shall
disclose such information.
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(5) Names and opinions of independent auditors fron®9202023

A.

Names and opinions of independent auditors fron®202023

Year CPA Firm CPAs Audit Opinion

2019 KPMG

An unqualified opinion wit
emphasis of matter paragr:
or other matters paragraph

Certified Public Accountants,
Ya-Lin Chen and Mei-Yan Chen

2020 KPMG

Certified Public Accountants,

Ming-Hung Huang and Mei-Yan ChemAn unqualified opinion

2021 KPMG

Certified Public Accountants,

Ming-Hung Huang and Mei-Yan ChemAn unqualified opinion

2022 KPMG

Certified Public Accountants, An unaualified opinion
Ming-Hong Huang and Chia-Chien Tahg q P

2023 KPMG

Certified Public Accountants, An unaualified opinion
Ming-Hong Huang and Chia-Chien Tahg q P

Reasons for change of CPAs

The change of CPAs was mainly due to job adjustsesthin KPMG. Starting from
the first quarter of 2022, CPAs, Ming-Hong Huangl &fei-Yan Chen, were replaced
by CPAs, Ming-Hung Huang and Chia-Chien Tang.

(6) Evaluation ground and basis for the provision dii@aon accounts on balance sheet

A.

The consolidated entity recognizes loss allowancéhfe expected credit loss (ECL) of
financial assets at amortized costs (including casti cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivables, other receivables, refundddpesits, and other financial assets)
and contract assets.

Loss allowance is measured at an amount equalfeanmie ECL except for the
following assets where loss allowance equals 12tmBRL:

Cash and cash equivalents, refundable depositetied financial assets whose credit
risk (i.e., the risk of default during the expectédtime of financial instruments) has
not increased significantly since initial recogoiti

The loss allowance of notes and accounts receiwaldentract assets and other
receivables is measured at an amount equal torigeECL.

When determining whether credit risk has increasgghificantly since initial
recognition, the consolidated entity takes intocaot reasonable and supportable
information (available without undue cost or effprincluding both qualitative and
guantitative data as well as analyses on the ciglaget! entity’s past experience, credit
assessments and forward-looking information.

Lifetime ECL refers to the expected credit losgrirall possible default events during
the lifetime of financial instruments.

12-month ECL refers to the expected credit lossmfpmssible default events within 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter periothe expected lifetime of the
financial instrument is less than 12 months) oéficial instruments.

When measuring the ECL, the maximum period is tleximum contractual period
during which the consolidated entity is exposedraalit risk.

If the contract payment is 180 days past due amgl unlikely that the borrower will
fulfill his/her obligation to pay the full amount the consolidated entity, the financial
assets shall be deemed in default.
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ECL is the estimated probability-weighted amount tbe credit loss of financial
instruments during its lifetime period. Credit lossneasured at the present value of all
cash shortfalls, i.e., the difference between tashcflows receivable based on the
contracts and the cash flows expected to be cetle&CL is discounted at the effective
interest rates of the financial assets.

On each reporting date, the consolidated entitgesses whether a financial asset at
amortized cost is credit-impaired. When one or nmewents that have adverse impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the finanesdet have occurred, the financial
asset is considered credit-impaired.

For financial assets at amortized cost, loss allm@ais deducted from the assets’
carrying amount except for notes and accountsvabkis and other receivables.

When the consolidated entity cannot reasonablynasti the recovery of an entire of a
part of financial asset, the gross carrying amafnthe financial assets is reduced
directly. The consolidated entity analyzes the tigneand amount of each write-off
separately on the basis of whether recovery canrdasonably expected. The
consolidated entity does not expect a significaversal on the amount written off.
However, compulsory enforcement measures carbstitlarried out for financial assets
written off in order to comply with the consoliddtentity’s procedures for recovery of
past due amounts.

Inventories are measured at the lower of costebraalizable value. Costs include the
acquisition, production, manufacturing and proosssts and other costs that incurred
in bringing each inventory to its present conditemd location. Costs are calculated
using the weighted-average approach. The cosisishéd goods and work in progress
include manufacturing overheads allocated basetbamal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling pricéhe ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and costs nagessmake the sale.

Provisions for warranty are recognized when thedgawr services are sold. Provisions
are measured based on past warranty data and ssdibp® outcomes weighted by
possibilities.
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2. Financial Analysis from 2019 to 2023
(1) Financial Analysis (Consolidated) - Internationaldncial Reporting Standards

Year (Note 1 As of
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 |2024MM.DD
Item (Note 3) (Note 2)
. . |Debt Ratio 67.67 57.44 62.37 54.73 49.31 -
Financial
Structure 9glongterm Fund to Propert g5 541 19893 21251  197.30]  191.69 .
Plant and Equipment Ratjo ’ ' ’ ’ ’
Current Ratio 165.09  248.87 189.08 153.73 235.04 -
Liquidity |6jick Ratio 152.86  202.07|  160.19|  129.49  204.10 -
Analysis %
Times Interest Earned (8.64) 2.49 2.93 5.46 4.64 -
Average Collection 2.81 477 11.16 8.35 7.05 .
Turnover (Times)
Days Sales Outstanding 129.89 76.51 32.70 43.71 51.77 -
Inventory Turnover (Times 12.07 5.84 7.09 5.43 4.50 -
_|Average Payment Turover 5, 2.69 4.49 2.85 2.89 .
Operating | (Times)
Performanc aA\ée;r;Sge Inventory Turnover 30.24 62 50 5148 67 21 8111 i
Property, Plant and
Equipment Turnover 1.43 1.30 2.15 2.02 1.36 -
(Times)
Total Assets Turnover 0.42 0.43 0.72 0.59 0.45 :
(Times)
Return on Total Assets (% (9.75) 2.08 1.90 3.52 3.03 -
Return on Equity (%) (35.26) 3.53 3.29 7.15 5.16 -
Net Income before Income
Tax to Paid-in Capital (24.80 3.53 3.28 7.13 5.93 -
Ratio (%)
Profitability [Net Margin (%) (25.43) 3.04 1.83 5.08 5.52 -
Before
Earninas Retrospective (2.44 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
9 Adjustment
per Share
(NTg)  |After _
Retrospective (3.72 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
Adjustment
Cash Flow Ratio (%) (18.54) (40.88 55.35 11.54 25.14 -
Cash Flow C("i}/so? Flow Adequacy Ratio 13980 99.47 54.35 77.20 30.77 -
Cash Flow Reinvestment
Ratio (%) (6.11 (6.96 14.14 3.78 2.61 -
Operating Leverage 0.26  (46.02 6.52 2.49 2.93 -
Leverage — -
Financial Leverage 0.88 0.11 1.56 1.23 1.24 -

Explanations for ratios varying by over 20% yeaeyear are as follows:

1. The increase in current and quick ratios: Mainle da the repayment of syndicated loans in 2028ich led to
decrease in current liabilities including the catrportion of long-term liabilities, and bills amgdcounts payable.

2. The increase in average inventory turnover daysnMalue to the slowdown in installations at thedenarket an
increased competitions from Southeast Asian moaports in 2023, which led to a decline in saled aventory
turnover.

3. The decrease in property, plant and equipment wemand total assets turnovévfainly due to the slowdown
installations at the end market and increased cttigms from Southeast Asian module imports in 202Bich led tq
a decline in sales.

4. The decrease in return on equity: Mainly due toearelase in sales revenue and foreign exchange, gaidsal
increase in asset impairment, which led to a deer@aprofits.
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The decrease in earnings per share: Mainly duedereease in profits in 2023.

The increase in cash flow ratio: Mainly due to ardase in current portion of long-term liabilities2023.
The decrease in cash flow adequacy ratio: Mainky fdua decrease in net cash inflows from operat@iiyitiesovel
the past five years.

The decrease in cash flow reinvestment ratio: Maihle to an increase in property, plant and equipraadworking
capital in 2023.

Note 1: Financial information of 2019 to 2023 waslited by CPAs.

Note 2: Before the date of the annual report, diad or reviewed financial data for the most reqgeeriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEXx shall
disclose such information.

Note 3: Financial analysis is based on the follgiformulas:

A. Financial Structure
(a) Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets
(b) Long-term Fund to Property, Plant and EquipmentdRat{(Equity + Long-term Loans) / Net
Property, Plant and Equipment
B. Liquidity Analysis
(@) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabiitie
(b) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Pygpants - Non-current Asset Held for Sale)
/ Current Liabilities
(c) Times Interest Earned = Income before Interestlaxés / Interest Expenses
C. Operating Performance
(@) Average Collection Turnover (includes accounts iradde and notes receivable from
operations) = Net Revenue / Average Trade Recagaphcludes accounts receivable and
notes receivable from operations)
(b) Days Sales Outstanding = 365 / Average Collectiamdver
(c) Inventory Turnover = Cost of Revenue / Average imgey
(d) Average Payment Turnover (includes accounts payatdenotes payable from operations) =
Cost of Revenue / Average Trade Payables (incladesunts payable and notes payable from
operations)
(e) Average Inventory Turnover Days = 365 / Inventotyriover
(f) Property, Plant and Equipment Turnover = Net Regehiverage Net Property, Plant and
Equipment
(g) Total Assets Turnover = Net Revenue / Average Tadabts
D. Profitability Analysis
(@) Return on Total Assets = (Net Income (Loss) + kgeExpenses * (1 - Effective Tax Rate)) /
Average Total Assets
(b) Return on Equity = Net Income (Loss) / Average Baui
(c) Net Income before Income Tax to Paid-in CapitalidRatincome before Income Tax / Paid-in
Capital
(d) Net Margin = Net Income (Loss) / Net Revenue
(e) Earnings Per Share = (Net income attributable ton@w of the Parent - Preferred Stock
Dividend) / Weighted Average Number of Shares Guniding
E. Cash Flow
(a) Cash Flow Ratio = Net Cash Provided by Operatinguviies / Current Liabilities
(b) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Five-year Sum of CasmfOperations / Five-year Sum of
Capital Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and CBs$Vidend
(c) Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio = (Net Cash ProvidgdOperating Activities - Cash
Dividends) / (Net Property, Plant and Equipment eng-term Investments + Other
Non-current Assets + Working Capital)
F. Leverage
(a) Operating Leverage = (Net Revenue - Variable CodtEexpenses) / Operating Income
(b) Financial Leverage = Operating Income / (Operalimmgme - Interest Expenses)
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(2) Financial Analysis (Parent Company Only) - Intelor@l Financial Reporting Standards

Year (Note 1 As of
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 | 2024.MM.DD
Item (Note 3) (Note 2)
Debt Ratio 57.75 47.37 48.89 39.55 35.11 -
Financial [| ong-term Fund to
Structure % property, Plant and 342.83 333.13 362.83 315.16 430.95 -
Equipment Ratio
Current Ratio 163.20 242.65 221.98 103.76 253.87 -
Liquidity T jick Ratio 14324  187.51|  168.37 69.26|  164.32 -
Analysis %
Times Interest Earned (10.65) 2.64 3.71 7.63 6.28 -
Average Collection 3.85 8.69  10.69 7.78 6.27 .
Turnover (Times)
Days Sales Outstanding 94.81 42.00 34.14 46.92 58.21 -
Inventory Turnover (Times) 12.67 6.30 7.83 5.98 4.64 -
Average Payment Turnover 5 1, 926  11.93 8.85 9.71 .

Operating | (Times)

PerformanceAverage Inventory

28.81 57.94 46.62 61.04 78.66 -
Turnover Days

Property, Plant and

Equipment Turnover 2.04 2.20 4.13 3.97 3.34 -
(Times)
Total Assets Turnover 0.33 0.48 0.90 0.79 0.65 :
(Times)
Return on Total Assets (%)  (12.86 2.49 2.25 4.50 3.69 -
Return on Equity (%) (35.57) 3.56 3.35 7.17 5.11 -
Net Income before Income
Tax to Paid-in Capital (24.50 3.10 3.03 6.90 5.64 -
Ratio (%)
Profitability [Net Margin (%) (42.00) 3.49 1.92 5.08 4.96 -
Before
Earninas Retrospective (2.44 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
9 Adjustment
per Shar
(NTg) |After _
Retrospective (3.72 0.31 0.30 0.73 0.56 -
Adjustment
Cash Flow Ratio (%) (34.41) 3.29 20.19 3.72 32.45 -
Cash Flow C("i}/so? FlowAdequacy Ratlo 17,31 11865  (76.26)  (62.49 3.27 -
Cash Flow Reinvestment
Ratio (%) (7.10 0.47 2.61 0.32 1.43 -
Operating Leverage (2.55) (13.90 47.92 10.89 11.78 -
Leverage — -
Financial Leverage 0.86 0.61 2.80 1.24 1.25 -

Explanations for ratios varying by over 20% yeaeyear are as follows:

1. The increase in long-term fund to property, plard aquipment ratio: Mainly due to an increase imdsgated loan
2023, which led to an increase in long-term lidieii.

2. The increase in current and quick ratios: Mainlhe da the repayment of syndicated loans in 2028ich led to
decrease in current liabilities including the catrportion of long-term liabilities, and bills amgcounts payable.

3. The increase in days sales outstanding: Mainlytdue slowdown in installations at the emarket and increas
competitions from Southeast Asian module import8d&3, which led to a decline in sales revenue.

4. The decrease in inventory turnover and the incre@aseerage inventory turnover daydainly due to the slowdow
in installations at the end market and increasedpatitions from Southeast Asian module imports022 which led
to a decline in sales and inventory turnover.

5. The decrease in return on equity: Mainly due toearglase in sales revenue and foreign exchange, gaidsa
increase in asset impairment, which led to a deer@aprofits.

- 97 -



© N>

The decrease in earnings per share: Mainly duedereease in profits in 2023.

The increase in cash flow ratio: Mainly due to ardase in current portion of long-term liabilities2023.

The increase in cash flow adequacy ratio: Mainlg thuan increase in net cash inflows from operadictiyitiesovel
the past five years.

The increase in cash flow reinvestment ratio: Mathlie to an increase property, plant and equipment and wor
capital in 2023.

Note 1: Financial information of 2019 to 2023 waslited by CPAs.

Note 2: Before the date of the annual report, dited or reviewed financial data for the most reqgeeriod
become available, public company whose stock tedi®n the TWSE or traded on the TPEXx shall
disclose such information.

Note 3: Financial analysis is based on the follgrormulas:

A. Financial Structure
(a) Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets
(b) Long-term Fund to Property, Plant and EquipmentdRat{(Equity + Long-term Loans) / Net
Property, Plant and Equipment
B. Liquidity Analysis
(@) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabiitie
(d) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Pygpants - Non-current Asset Held for Sale)
/ Current Liabilities
(c) Times Interest Earned = Income before Interestlaxé@s / Interest Expenses
C. Operating Performance
(@) Average Collection Turnover (includes accounts iradd@e and notes receivable from
operations) = Net Revenue / Average Trade Recagaphcludes accounts receivable and
notes receivable from operations)
(b) Days Sales Outstanding = 365 / Average Collectiomdver
(c) Inventory Turnover = Cost of Revenue / Average imgey
(d) Average Payment Turnover (includes accounts payatdenotes payable from operations) =
Cost of Revenue / Average Trade Payables (incladesunts payable and notes payable from
operations)
(e) Average Inventory Turnover Days = 365 / Inventotyrfiover
(f) Property, Plant and Equipment Turnover = Net RegehiAverage Net Property, Plant and
Equipment
(g) Total Assets Turnover = Net Revenue / Average Tadabts
D. Profitability Analysis
(@) Return on Total Assets = (Net Income (Loss) + kgeExpenses * (1 - Effective Tax Rate)) /
Average Total Assets
(b) Return on Equity = Net Income (Loss) / Average Baui
(c) Net Income before Income Tax to Paid-in CapitalidRatincome before Income Tax / Paid-in
Capital
(d) Net Margin = Net Income (Loss) / Net Revenue
(e) Earnings Per Share = (Net income attributable ton@w of the Parent - Preferred Stock
Dividend) / Weighted Average Number of Shares Guniding
E. Cash Flow
(a) Cash Flow Ratio = Net Cash Provided by Operatingyviies / Current Liabilities
(b) Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = Five-year Sum of CasmfOperations / Five-year Sum of
Capital Expenditures, Inventory Additions, and CB$Vidend
(c) Cash Flow Reinvestment Ratio = (Net Cash ProvidgdOperating Activities - Cash
Dividends) / (Gross Property, Plant and Equipmentong-term Investments + Other
Non-current Assets + Working Capital)
F. Leverage
(a) Operating Leverage = (Net Revenue - Variable CodtEexpenses) / Operating Income
(b) Financial Leverage = Operating Income / (Operalimmgpme - Interest Expenses)
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3. Audit Committee’s Review Report for 2023:

Motech Industries Inc.
Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Compar@23peration report, financial statements
and earnings distribution proposal. Certified PubAccountants of KPMG, Mr. Ming-Hung
Huang and MrChia-Chien Tangwere retained by the Board to audit the finansiatements and
they have issued an audit report. The above-mesdioperation report, financial statements, and
earnings distribution proposal have been reviewetl determined to be correct and accurate by
us. Thus, according to Article 14-4 of the Secesitand Exchange Act and Article 219 of the
Company Act, we hereby submit this report.

To

The 2024 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting

Convener of the Audit Committee: Kin-Tsau Lee

March 7, 2024

- 99 -



4. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and
2022:

Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Motech Industries Inc. as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2023 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as
those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards No.10 endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. In
addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the
consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Motech Industries Inc. and subsidiaries do not prepare a
separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Motech Industries Inc.
Chairman: Yung-Hui Tseng
Date: March 7, 2024
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KPME 3441040550

KPMG

B1bm 1106155 & 5 R 7556818 (515101 K18) ES) & Tel + 886 2 8101 6666
68F., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, -1 B Fax + 886 2 8101 6667
Xinyi Road, Taipei City 110615, Taiwan (R.O.C.) # it Web kpmg.com/tw

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Motech Industries Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Motech Industries Inc.(“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Interpretations developed by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the details described below to be our key audit
matter:

Revenue recognition for sales of solar modules

Please refer to note 4(0) “Revenue recognition” for accounting policy and note 6(u) “Revenue from contracts
with customers” for further information.

Description of key audit matter:

The Company is a listed company that involves public interests where investors pay high attention to its
operating performance. The Group’s revenues derived from the sales of its solar modules, wherein revenue
recognition is dependent on whether the specified sales terms in each individual contract are met. Therefore,
revenue recognition has been identified as our key audit matter.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: understanding and testing the design and implementation of internal
controls of sales and cash collection process for solar modules; analyzing top ten clients and compare their
related differences to evaluate significant outliers; selecting samples from sales of solar modules and evaluating
the external documents which can indicate the control transferred to buyer; as well as determining samples from
sales transactions for a period before and after the balance sheet date to ensure the accuracy of the document
related to revenue recognition.

Other Matter

The Company has prepared its parent company only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if|
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Huang, Ming-Hung and
Tang, Chia-Chien.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 7, 2024

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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1100
1136
1170
1200
1220
130x
1410
1476
1479

1535
1550
1600
1755
1780
1840
1980
1990

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(a))
Current financial assets at amortized cost (note 6(a))
Notes and accounts receivable (notes 6(c) and 6(u))
Other receivables (note 6(d))
Current tax assets
Inventories (note 6(e))
Prepayments (note 6(j))
Other current financial assets (note 8)
Other current assets (note 6(j))
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Non-current financial assets at amortized cost (note 6(a))
Investments accounted for using equity method (notes 6(f) and 7)
Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(g) and 8)
Right-of-use assets (note 6(h))
Intangible assets (note 6(i))
Deferred tax assets (note 6(q))
Other non-current financial assets (note 8)
Other non-current assets (notes 6(j), 6(p) and 8)

Total non-current assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amount Y% Amount Y%
$ 2,408,531 28 3,141,347 33
312,030 4 4,000 -
410,788 5 742,843 8

6,062 - 7,294 -

LIr - 633 -
563,286 7 941,721 10

12,662 - 14,484 -

539,357 6 1,122,820 11
120950 _ 1 89,650 _ 1
4,374,777 51 6,064,792 63

212 - 370 -

236,962 3 247,511 3
3,327,448 39 2,668,184 28
327,453 4 355,266 4

213 - 622 -

69,503 1 66,055 1

46,633 - 28,887 -
206,974 _ 2 137,550 _ 1
4,215,398 49 3,504,445 37
$ 8,590,175 100 9,569,237 100

-104 -

2100
2110
2130
2170
2200
2230
2250
2280
2320
2399

2540
2550
2570
2580
2600

2XXX

31xx

3100
3200
3310
3320
3350
3400
31xx
36xx

3xxx

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (note 6(1))

Short-term notes and bills payable (note 6(k))

Current contract liabilities (note 6(u))

Notes and accounts payable

Other payables (note 6(v))

Current tax liabilities

Current provisions (note 6(0))

Current lease liabilities (note 6(n))

Long-term borrowings, current portion (notes 6(m) and 8)
Other current liabilities (note 6(g))

Total current liabilities

Non-Current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings (notes 6(m) and 8)
Non-current provisions (note 6(0))
Deferred tax liabilities (note 6(q))
Non-current lease liabilities (note 6(n))
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Equity

Equity attributable to owners of parent (notes 6(b), 6(f), 6(p), 6(q), 6(r)

and 6(s)):

Ordinary share

Capital surplus

Legal reserve

Special reserve

Unappropriated retained earnings

Other equity interest

Total equity attributable to owners of parent

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 8,590,175 1

Amount % Amount %
$ 157,862 2 200,000 2
89,982 1 - -
38,024 - 70,117 1
768,186 9 1,574,130 16
337,265 4 345,551 4
3,320 - 475 -
42,463 - 38,775 -
123,501 2 130,416 1
201,582 2 1,503,394 16
99,073 _ 1 82258 _ 1
1,861,258 21 3,945,116 _41
2,023,797 24 932,290 10
131,052 1 125,535 1
71,375 67,603 1
146,587 2 163,458 2
1,466 _ - 3,195 _ -
2,374,277 _28 1,292,081 _14
4,235,535 _49 5,237,197 _55
3,870,419 45 3,870,419 40
540,695 6 540,694 6
49,210 - 21,764 -
53,862 1 28,723 -
293,495 4 299,601 3
(528,333) _(6) (506,296) _(5)
4,279,348 50 4,254,905 _44
75292 _ 1 77,135 _ 1
4,354,640 51 4,332,040 _45

=3
=

9,569,237 100




4000
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5900
6000
6100
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6900

7100
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7020
7050
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7900
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8200
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8310
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8320
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8360

8361
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8300
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Net operating revenue (notes 6(u) and 7)

Operating costs (notes 6(e), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), 6(n), 6(0), 6(p), 6(s) and 6(v))

Gross profit from operations

Operating expenses (notes 6(c), 6(d), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), 6(n), 6(p), 6(s), 6(v) and 7):

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses

Expected credit (loss) gain
Total operating expenses
Net operating profit

Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(f), 6(g), 6(n) and 6(w)):

Interest income

Other income

Other gains and losses
Finance costs

Share of profit of associates for using equity method
Total non-operating income and expenses

Profit before tax
Tax expenses (note 6(q))
Net profit

Other comprehensive income (notes 6(b), 6(f), 6(p), 6(q) and 6(r)):
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to

profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (expressed in New Taiwan Dollars) (note 6(t))

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2023

2022

Amount %

4,065,981 100

Amount %

5,359,978 100

(3.388.557) _(83) _ (4.666.071) _(87)
677424 17 693,907 13

47318) (1)
(250,958)  (6)
(54,425)  (2)

(86,108) (2
(252,238)  (5)
(52,366) (1)

(1306) - 33,500 1
(354.007) _ (9) __(357.212) _ (7)

323,417 8
56,984 2
5,983 -

(102,189)  (3)
(63,007)  (2)

8,397

21,609

336,695 6
48,405 1
5,539 -

(74,439) (1)
(61,875) (1)

(93.832) _ (3) (60.761) _ (1)

229,585 5

(5.268) -
224317 5

1 LN

3,100 -

(248) -

— (620) _ -

2232
(23,156)

52

(23.104) _ -
(20.872) _ -
$ 203,445

$ 218,168
6,149

_ 77

$ 224,317

$ 198,611

4,834

$ 203,445

$ 0.56
$ 0.56

275,934 5

(3.617) _ -
272317 5

LI N

6,194 -
(11,050) -
(1,184) -

(1239) -
(1.279) -

17,634 -



Balance at January 1, 2022

Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2022

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends

Changes in equity of associates accounted for using
equity method

Proceeds from issuing ordinary shares

Share-based payments

Changes in non-controlling interests

Disposal of investments in equity instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2022

Net Profit for the year ended December 31, 2022

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends

Due to donated assets received

Changes in non-controlling interests

Balance at December 31, 2023

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity attributable to owners of parent

Other equity interest
Unrealized gains
(losses) on

Exchange financial assets
differences on  measured at fair
translation of value through Total equity
) Unappropriated foreign other attributable to Non-
Ordinary Capital Legal Special retained financial comprehensive Total other owners of controlling
shares surplus reserve reserve earnings statements income equity interest parent interests Total equity
3,550,419 25,348 11,081 - 135,553 (521,327) 12,675 (508.652) 3,213,749 72,548 3,286,297
- - - - 267,382 - - - 267,882 4,435 272,317
- - - - 4,955 16,215 (12,234) 3,981 8,936 1,440 10,376
- - - - 272,837 16,215 (12,234) 3,981 276,818 5,875 282,693
- - 10,683 - (10,683) - - - - - -
- - - 28,723 (28,723) - - - - - -
- - - - (71,008) - - - (71,008) - (71,008)
- 107,795 - - - - - - 107,795 - 107,795
320,000 396,061 - - - - - - 716,061 - 716,061
- 11,490 - - - - - - 11,490 - 11,490
- - - - - - - - - (1,288) (1,288)
- - - - 1,625 - (1,625) (1,625) - - -
3,870.419 540,694 21,764 28,723 299,601 (505,112) (1,184) (506.,296) 4,254,905 77,135 4,332,040
- - - - 218,168 - - - 218,168 6,149 224,317
- - - - 2,480 (21,789) (248) (22,037) (19,557) (1,315) (20,872)
- - - - 220,648 (21,789) (248) (22,037) 198,611 4,834 203,445
- - 27,446 - (27,446) - - - - - -
- - - 25,139 (25,139) - - - - - -
- - - - (174,169) - - - (174,169) - (174,169)
- 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1
- - - - - - - - - (6,677) (6,677)
3,870,419 540,695 49,210 53,862 293,495 (526,901) (1,432) (528,333) 4,279,348 75,292 4,354,640

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2023 2022
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 229,585 275,934
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 273,995 276,061
Amortization expense 589 1,860
Expected credit loss (gain) 1,306 (33,500)
Interest expense 63,007 61,875
Interest income (56,984) (48,405)
Share-based payments - 11,490
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method (8,397) (21,609)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,445 7,339
Impairment loss on non-financial assets 100,476 97,944
Gains on lease modifications - (195)
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 377,437 352,860
Changes in operating assets:
Notes and accounts receivable 330,656 (202,227)
Other receivables 3,096 47,973
Inventories 374,395 (171,834)
Prepaid expenses 44 (2,305)
Prepayments to suppliers 1,703 23,782
Other current assets (32,257) 64,331
Defined benefit assets (1,107) (319)
Other non-current assets - 208,036
Total changes in operating assets 676,530 (32,563)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Contract liabilities (32,084) (7,375)
Notes and accounts payable (790,552) (150,866)
Other payables (17,171) 5,299
Provisions 9,697 12,587
Other current liabilities 17,766 6,986
Total changes in operating liabilities (812,344) (133,369)
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (135,814) (165,932)
Cash inflow generated from operations 471,208 462,862
Income taxes paid (3,198) (7,731)
Net cash flows from operating activities 468,010 455,131
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 34,125
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost (309,714) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost 2,000 3,782
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (992,545) (302,441)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,491 6,082
Decrease in refundable deposits 7,926 4,009
Acquisition of intangible assets (180) (470)
Decrease in other financial assets 552,798 58,274
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (83,591) (8,563)
Interest received 55,105 47,206
Dividends received 18,750 21,253
Net cash flows used in investing activities (746,960) (136,743)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term loans 267,862 854,612
Repayments of short-term loans (310,000) (784,612)
Proceeds from short-term notes and bills payable 200,000 310,000
Repayments of short-term notes and bills payable (110,000) (470,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,480,520 157,692
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,689,268) (375,664)
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received (1,441) 85
Payment of lease liabilities (23,786) (66,594)
Cash dividends paid (174,169) (71,008)
Proceeds from issuing ordinary shares - 716,061
Interest paid (63,543) (57,522)
Change in non-controlling interests (1,184) (1,288)
Other financing activities 1 -
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (425,008) 211,762
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (28.,858) 30,586
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (732,816) 560,736
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,141,347 2,580,611
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,408,531 3,141,347

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

MOTECH Industries Inc. (the Company) was incorporated on June 3, 1981, as a company limited by
shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) of the Republic of China (R.O.C.).
The address of the Company’s registered office is 6F, No. 248, Sec. 3, Pei-Shen Rd., Shen-Keng Dist.,
New Taipei City 222, Taiwan. The Company and its subsidiaries ( the Group) ’s major operating activities
are the manufacturing, marketing, and sale of solar cells, solar modules, and photovoltaic inverters, the
marketing, design, and installation of solar electricity systems, and solar power generation.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 7,

2024.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a)

(b)

The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2023:

o Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
o Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

e Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The Group has initially adopted the new amendment, which do not have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements, from May 23, 2023:

o Amendments to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules”

The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual period
beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements:

e Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
o Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
e Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Finance Arrangements”

e Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”

(Continued)
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(C))

(c)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The Group does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be

endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 ¢ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17  Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to [FRS 17 “Initial Application of [FRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information”

Amendments to IAS21 “Lack of Exchangeability”

Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized below.
The following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (hereinafter referred to as “IFRSs endorsed by FSC”).

Basis of preparation

(@)

(i)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
the following material items in the balance sheets:

1)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

2)  The net defined benefit assets are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan Dollar (NTD), which is the Company’s functional currency. Except for those
specifically indicates, all financial information presented in NTD has been rounded to the
nearest thousand.

(Continued)
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(c)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of consolidation

(@)

(i)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Group
attributes the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received will
be recognized directly in equity, and the Group will attribute it to the owners of the parent.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

Shareholding

Name of Principal December 31, December 31,
investor Name of subsidiary activity 2023 2022 Note
The Company Power Islands Limited (Power Islands) Holding company 100 % 100 %
The Company Teco-Motech Co., Ltd. (Teco-Motech) Solar power 60 % 60 %
generation and selling
The Company Motech Power One Co., Ltd. (MPO) Solar power 100 % 100 %
generation and selling
The Company Motech Power Gamma Co., Ltd (MPG) Solar power 100 % 100 %
generation and selling
The Company Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd (MPB) Solar power 100 % 100 %
generation and selling
The Company Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd (MPZ) Solar power 100 % 100 %
generation and selling
Power Islands Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Manufacturing and 95.39 % 95.39 %
Ltd. (SNE) processing, solar cell
and solar modules
Power Islands  Cheer View Investment Limited (Cheer Holding company 100 % 100 %
View)
SNE Motech (Ma-Anshan) Renewable Energy ~ Manufacturing and 100 % 100 %
Co., Ltd. (MAS) processing, solar cells
and solar modules
SNE Motech (Maanshan) Energy Technologies Manufacturing and 100 % 100 %
Co. (MASE) processing, solar

wafer and solar cells

(iii) Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidated financial statements: None.

(Continued)
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(d)

(e)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foreign currencies

(@)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Group at the exchange rates of the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate of that date. The foreign currency gains or losses on monetary
items are the difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the year adjusted for the effective interest and the payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate of the date the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

Foreign currency differences arising from retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except
for an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income, which is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to New Taiwan Dollars (which was expressed in reporting
currency) at the exchange rates of the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to New Taiwan Dollars (which was expressed in reporting currency)
at average rate. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control
is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
any part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interest.
When the Group disposes of only part of investment in an associate of joint venture that
includes a foreign operation while retaining significant or joint control, the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

(@)

(i)

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or

used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(Continued)
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(2

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

(1) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(i1) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii)) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issuance of equity instruments that do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash in bank. Cash equivalents are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term
commitments. Time deposits, in conformity with the aforementioned definition, that are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes, and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value are recognized as cash
equivalents.

Financial instruments

Accounts receivable is initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is an accounts receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. An accounts receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: financial assets measured
at amortized cost and Fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investment.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

* it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
measured at amortized cost, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables, refundable
deposits and other financial assets) and contract assets.

Loss allowance for notes and accounts receivable and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both qualitative and quantitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.
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Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 180 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
The Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement
of balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
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(i1) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received less the direct cost of issuing.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a derivative.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or canceled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates includes goodwill arising
from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases. The Group recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the
investee within capital surplus, when an associate’s equity changes due to reasons other than profit
and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual proportionate share.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs and the present value of decommissioning costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

(i1) Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

(Continued)
-116 -



(k)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

1)  Buildings and structures: 7 to 51 years

2)  Machinery and equipment: 1 to 10 years

3)  Other equipment (Power station): 4 to 20 years
4)  Office and other equipment: 1 to 20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

(@)

As a leasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.
The lease liability is measured using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate;

—  there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee;

—  there is a change in the assessment on whether it will have the option to exercise a
purchase of the underlying asset;

— there is a change in the assessment on lease term as to whether it will be extended or
terminated; and

— the modifications of the lease underlying asset, scope or other terms.

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property
and lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets, including office and other equipment. The Group
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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(i) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it
increases the future economic benefit embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

The amortization amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortization is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, from the date that they are available for
use. The estimated useful lives were 1 to 6 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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Provision

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

(@)

(i)

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

Decommissioning

The Group follows the policy of Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs, accruing the
module recycle fee based on the size of the power station, and recognize as provision by the
present value of decommissioning costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Group’s main types of revenue are explained below.

(1)

(i)

Goods sold

The Group recognizes revenue when control of the products has been transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Engineering contracts

The Group enters into contracts to build solar power stations. Because its customer controls
the asset as it is constructed, the Group recognizes revenue over time on the basis of the
construction costs incurred to date as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the contract. If
the Group has recognized revenue, but not issued a bill, then the entitlement to consideration is
recognized as a contract asset. The contract asset is transferred to receivables when the
entitlement to payment becomes unconditional.

If the Group cannot reasonably measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation of a construction contract, the Group shall recognize revenue only to
the extent of the costs expected to be recovered.
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the Group expects the unavoidable costs
of performing the obligations under a construction contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under the contract.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

(ii1)) Power electric revenue

The Group recognized its power electric revenue based on the actual electric units and electric
rate.

(iv) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Government grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in
return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the
entity. Government grants shall not be recognized until there is reasonable assurance.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented
in the balance sheets either by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. The Group recognizes government grants as deducts the
grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
life of the asset.

Government grants related to income are presented as a credit in the statement of comprehensive
income, they are deducted in reporting the related expense. If there is no related expense, they are
recorded under a general heading such as ‘Other gain’.

Employee benefits
(i)  Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as the
related service is provided.

(i1) Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
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The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are accrued when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee.
A liability is recognized when the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment agreements granted to employees is
generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period
of the awards. The amount recognized as a remuneration cost is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are
settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the
period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the share
appreciation rights. Any changes in the liability are recognized in profit or loss.

Grant date of a share-based payment award is the date which the board of directors authorized the
price and reach employee stock options issued number of a new award.
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Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits (losses) and (ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

(il) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i) The Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(i1) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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(t) Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, such as
employee compensation.

(u) Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The management
continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management recognizes any changes
in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting estimates in the
following period.

The Group likely to be facing economic uncertainties such as natural disasters, international political
uncertainties and inflation. Those events may have a significant impact in the next financial year on the
following accounting estimates, which depend on the future forecasts.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

The Group is not a majority shareholder, or it cannot obtain more than half of the voting rights at the
board and shareholders’ meeting, of its associate, resulting in the Group to only have significant influence,
but not control, over its investee.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that do not have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The accounting policy and disclosure of the Group include measuring the financial and non-financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The accounting department of the Group uses external
information to make the evaluation result agreeable to the market status and to ensure that the data
resources are independent, reliable and consistent with the other resources. The Group regularly revises
the inputs and any essential adjustments on the fair value to ensure the evaluation results are reasonable.

(Continued)
-124 -



MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

For any impact of transfer within the fair value hierarchy, which has been recognized on the reporting
date, please refer to note 6(x) for assumptions used in measuring fair value.

(6) Explanation of significant accounts

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Cash $ 587 620
Demand and check deposits 1,219,030 1,501,071
Time deposits 1,008,914 1,579,656
Cash equivalents (investments in bonds sold under repurchase
agreement) 180,000 60,000
$ 2,408,531 3,141,347

Time deposits of the Group with a deposit period of more than three months, which were recognized
as financial assets measured at amortized cost were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current financial assets at amortized cost $ 312,030 4,000
Non-current financial assets at amortized cost 212 370
S 312,242 4,370

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

These equity instrument investments held by the Group are long-term strategic investments and are
not held for trading purposes, so they have been designated to be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive gains and losses.

In June 2022, the Group has sold its shares held in the unlisted company as a result of an investment
strategy. The shares sold had a fair value of $34,125 and the Group recognized a gain of $1,625,
which is already included in other comprehensive income and the gain has been transferred to
retained earnings. There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31, 2023.

(Continued)
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Notes and accounts receivable

Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Subtotal

Less: loss allowance

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
$ 1,833 18,149
409,885 724,694
411,718 742,843
(930) -
$ 410,788 742,843

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, notes and
accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due, as well as the incorporated forward-looking information. The loss allowance provisions were

determined as follows:

In Taiwan and other areas:

Current

Past due 1~90 days

Past due 91~120 days

Past due 121~150 days

Past due 151~180 days

Past due more than 181 days

In China:

Current

Past due 1~90 days

Past due 91~120 days

Past due 121~150 days

Past due 151~180 days

Past due more than 181 days

Total

December 31, 2023

Gross carrying
amount

Weighted-
average
expected credit
loss rate

Loss allowance
provision

$ 393,791
15,164

930
409,885

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%~74.62%
100%

December 31, 2023

930

930

Gross carrying
amount

Weighted-
average
expected credit
loss rate

Loss allowance
provision

$ 1,833

1,833

$ 411,718
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In Taiwan and other areas:

December 31, 2022
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 703,077 0% -
Past due 1~90 days 20,971 0% -
Past due 91~120 days - 0% -
Past due 121~150 days - 0% -
Past due 151~180 days - 0%~24.15% -
Past due more than 181 days - 100% -
724,048 -
In China:
December 31, 2022
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 18,149 0% -
Past due 1~90 days 646 0% -
Past due 91~120 days - 0% -
Past due 121~150 days - 0% -
Past due 151~180 days - 0% -
Past due more than 181 days - 100% -
18,795 -
Total $ 742,843 -

The movements in the allowance for notes and accounts receivable were as follows:

2023 2022
Beginning balance $ - 33,500
Impairment loss recognized (reversed) 930 (33,500)
Ending balance $ 930 -

There was no pledge for notes and accounts receivable. Please refer to note 6(x) for further credit
risk information.
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Other receivables

Other receivables
Other receivables — government grants
Subtotal

Less: loss allowance

December 31, December 31,

The movements in the allowance for other receivables were as follows:

Beginning balance
Impairment loss recognized
Effect on changes in foreign exchange rates

Ending balance

There was no pledge for other receivables. Please refer to
information.

Inventories

(@)

The components were as follows:

Finished goods

Work in progress

Raw materials and supplies
Merchandise

Raw materials in transit

(i)

Except for cost of goods sold and other remaining gains

2023 2022

$ 9,887 10,810

3.390 3.460

13,277 14,270

(7,215) (6,976)

$ 6,062 7,294
2023 2022

$ 6,976 6,869

376 -
137) 107
$ 7,215 6,976

note 6(x) for further credit risk

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
$ 300,883 576,752
170,131 127,094
85,888 206,324
1,476 14
4,908 31,537
$ 563,286 941,721

or losses which were included in

operating cost or deduction of operating cost were as follows:

Losses on (gains on reversal) valuation of inventories and
obsolescence

Unallocated production overheads

Scrap income
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$ (19,258) 33,784
121,775 67,771
(2,893) (2,331)
$ 99,624 99,224
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The aforementioned gains on reversal valuation of inventories were due to inventories, which
had been recognized loss on valuation, had been sold or used.

The inventories were not pledged.
Investments accounted for using equity method

A summary of the Group’s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity
method at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Associates S 236,962 247,511

(i)  Associates which is material to the Group consisted of the followings:

Main operating Proportion of Shareholding

location/ Registered and voting rights
Country of the December 31, December 31,
Name of associate Main operating items company 2023 2022
Inergy Technology The major operating activities are Taiwan 18.72 % 18.72 %

Inc. product design, wholesale and
retail sale of electrical appliances,
and wholesale and retail sale of
electronic materials, and
international trade

Inergy Technology Inc., which the Group invested in using equity method, issued new shares
by cash in the first quarter of 2022, wherein the Group failed to subscribe proportionately,

resulting in the Group’ s shareholding percentage in Inergy to decrease from 21.06% to

18.72%, amounting to $107,795, recognized as capital surplus. There was no such transaction
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The summarized financial information of the abovementioned associate which is material to
the Group is as follows. The financial information has been prepared in accordance with the
IFRS endorsed by the FSC. The amounts included in the IFRS financial statements of the
associate have been adjusted to reflect the adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method, such as fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments
for differences in accounting policies.

(Continued)
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The summarized financial information of Inergy Technology Inc. was listed as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Current assets $ 905,648 1,215,779
Non-current assets 619,256 607,022
Current liabilities (173,119) (351,035)
Non-current liabilities (252.975) (296.835)
Net assets $ 1,098,810 1,174,931

2023 2022
Operating revenue $ 960,374 1,334,958
Net profit 16,308 111,697
Other comprehensive income (989) (6,206)
Comprehensive income S 15,319 105,491

2023 2022
Carrying amount of the associate equity as of January 1 $ 217,172 109,765
Profit attributed to the Group 5,864 19,795
Other comprehensive income attributed to the Group (196) (1,163)
Dividends received from the associate (17,118) (19,020)
Changes in capital surplus of associates - 107,795
Carrying amount of the associate equity as of December 31 § 205,722 217,172

(i)

Summary of financial information for the individually insignificant investments in associates

accounted for using the equity method were as follows. The aforementioned financial
information was included in the consolidated financial statement of the Group

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Total equity of the individually insignificant investments in
iat
amoces $ 31,240 30,339
2023 2022
Attributable to the Group:
Net profit from continuing operations $ 2,533 1,814
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income $ 2,533 1,814
(iii)) The investments accounted for using the equity method were not pledged.
(Continued)
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i) The movements were as follows:

Unfinished
Machinery Other Office and construction and
Building and and equipment other equipment under
Land structure equipment  (Power station) equipment acceptance Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Beginning balance at January 1,2023 § 17,905 1,026,022 2,913,372 1,408,651 1,588,435 243,716 7,198,101
Additions - - 95,573 15,184 68,405 822,347 1,001,509
Reclassification - - 3,396 648 8,971 (648) 12,367
Disposals - - (247,509) - (79,546) - (327,055)
Effect on movements in exchange rate - - (18,489) - (4,410) (2,071) (24,970)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 17,905 1,026,022 2,746,343 1,424,483 1,581,855 1,063,344 7,859,952
Beginning balance at January 1,2022 § 17,905 1,026,022 3,079,068 1,304,517 1,542,924 245,747 7,216,183
Additions - - 173,217 60,278 81,784 58,617 373,896
Reclassification - - 16,512 43,856 6,705 (62,239) 4,834
Disposals - - (369,217) - (46,362) - (415,579)
Effect on movements in exchange rate - - 13,792 - 3,384 1,591 18,767
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 17,905 1,026,022 2,913,372 1,408,651 1,588,435 243,716 7,198,101
Depreciation and impairment loss:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 § - 304,913 2,425,535 294,626 1,445,966 58,877 4,529917
Depreciation expense - 20,230 108,316 76,931 40,704 - 246,181
Impairment loss - - 83,986 - 16,490 - 100,476
Disposals - - (245,285) - (75,834) - (321,119)
Effect on changes in exchange rate - - (17,465) - (4,307) (1,179) (22,951)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ - 325,143 2,355,087 371,557 1,423,019 57,698 4,532,504
Beginning balance at January 1,2022 $ - 284,485 2,564,175 215,833 1,445,095 57,972 4,567,560
Depreciation expense - 20,428 110,721 78,793 40,775 - 250,717
Impairment loss - - 94,697 - 3,247 - 97,944
Disposals - - (355,865) - (46,293) - (402,158)
Effect on changes in exchange rate - - 11,807 - 3,142 905 15,854
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - 304,913 2,425,535 294,626 1,445,966 58,877 4,529,917
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 17,905 700,879 391,256 1,052,926 158,836 1,005,646 3,327,448
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 17,905 741,537 514,893 1,088,684 97,829 187,775 2,648,623
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 17,905 721,109 487,837 1,114,025 142,469 184,839 2,668,184

(i1) In response to the changes in the supply and demand of the market, the Group had decided to
adjust its device configuration and suspend some of its machinery and other equipment of solar
division in 2022 and 2021. The Group recognized the impairment loss of $100,476 and
$97,944, respectively, which were recorded under other gains and losses — impairment loss on
non-financial assets.
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(iii)) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had received in advance the amounts of
$69,371 and $70,522, respectively, recorded under other current liabilities, for the expected
disposal on its property, plant and equipment.

(iv) The reclassification was mainly for transfer of prepayments for business facilities and
inventories.

(v) For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group capitalized its interest expenses of $3,318,

with rates ranging from 0.17%~ 0.20%. There was no such transaction for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

(vi) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the property, plant and equipment of the Group had been
pledged as collateral for long-term borrowings; please refer to note 8.

(h) Right-of-use assets

The Group leases many assets, including land, buildings and structures, machinery and other
equipment. Information about leases for which the Group as a lessee and the deferred income of
government grants was presented below:

Buildings and Other
Land structures Machinery equipment Total
Cost:
Beginning balance at January 1,2023 $ 106,472 798,972 - 733,784 1,639,228
Effect on movements in exchange rates - (9,638) - (14,698) (24,336)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 106,472 789,334 - 719,086 1,614,892
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 102,588 563,286 981 722,511 1,389,366
Additions 4,209 228,293 - - 232,502
Lease modification (325) - (981) - (1,3006)
Effect on movements in exchange rates - 7,393 - 11,273 18,666
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 106,472 798,972 - 733,784 1,639,228
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balance at January 1,2023 $ 44,186 293,568 - 409,554 747,308
Depreciation expense 11,856 82,817 - 102,049 196,722
Effect on movements in exchange rates - (6,505) - (9,916) (16,421)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 56,042 369,880 - 501,687 927,609
Beginning balance at January 1,2022 $ 32,385 210,158 491 302,446 545,480
Depreciation expense 11,950 80,548 163 102,749 195,410
Lease modification (149) - (654) - (803)
Effect on movements in exchange rates - 2,862 - 4,359 7,221
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 44,186 293,568 - 409,554 747,308
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Buildings and Other
Land structures Machinery equipment Total

Deferred income of government grants:

Beginning balance at January 1,2023 § - 480,748 - 733,784 1,214,532

Effect on movements in exchange rates - (9,630) - (14,698) (24,328)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ - 471,118 - 719,086 1,190,204

Beginning balance at January 1,2022 $ - 473,362 - 722,511 1,195,873

Effect on movements in exchange rates - 7,386 - 11,273 18,659

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - 480,748 - 733,784 1,214,532
Accumulated amortization of deferred

income of government grant:

Beginning balance at January 1,2023 $ - 268,324 - 409,554 677,878

Amortization (for subtraction of

depreciation) - 66,859 - 102,049 168,908

Effect on movements in exchange rates - (6,496) - (9,916) (16,412)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ - 328,687 - 501,687 830,374

Beginning balance at January 1,2022 $ - 198,152 - 302,446 500,598

Amortization (for subtraction of

depreciation) - 67,317 - 102,749 170,066

Effect on movements in exchange rates - 2,855 - 4,359 7,214

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - 268,324 - 409,554 677,878
Carrying amount :

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 50,430 277,023 - - 327,453

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 70,203 77,918 490 - 148,611

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 62,286 292,980 - - 355,266

The Group leases land and buildings for its office use, operation space and installation location of
PV power stations, with lease terms ranging from 2 to 20 years. The Group also leases machinery
and other equipment, with lease terms ranging from 7 years.
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(i) Intangible assets

(i) The movements were as follows:
Computer
software
Costs:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 9,979
Additions 180
Disposals (180)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 9,979
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 9,709
Additions 470
Disposals (200)

Balance at December 31, 2022

$ 9,979

Amortization and impairment loss:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 9,357
Amortization expense 589
Disposals (180)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 9,766
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 7,697
Amortization expense 1,860
Disposals (200)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 9,357

Carrying amounts:

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 213
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 2,012
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 622

(i) Amortization expense

The amortization expenses of intangible assets were included in the statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
Operating costs $ 319 354
Operating expenses 270 1,506
$ 589 1,860
(iii)) Collateral
The intangible assets were not pledged.
(Continued)
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Prepayments, other current and other non-current assets
(i) The components of prepayments were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Prepaid expenses $ 10,121 10,196
Prepayments to suppliers 2,541 4,288
$ 12,662 14,484

(i1)) The components of other current assets and other non-current assets were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Excess business tax paid $ 96,932 68,665
Other 24,018 20,985
Other current assets $ 120,950 89,650
Prepayments for business facilities $ 82,793 9,648
Refundable deposits 60,717 68,645
Net defined benefit assets 63,464 59,257
Other non-current assets $ 206,974 137,550

(iii) The other current assets were not pledged; the non-current asset had been pledged as collateral.

Please refer to note 8.

Short-term notes and bills payable

December 31, 2023
Guarantee or acceptance  Range of annual
institution interest rates (%) Amount
Commercial paper payable Ta Ching Bills Finance 1.848%~1.858%  $ 90,000
Corporation /Mega Bills
Finance Co., Ltd.

Less: discount on short-term

notes and bills payable (18)
Total $ 89,982
There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31, 2022.
(i)  There was no pledge for short-term notes and bills payable.
(i1)) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.

(Continued)
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Short-term borrowings

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Unsecured bank loans (in NTD) $ 157,862 200,000
Unused short-term credit lines $ 2,538,341 1,717,433
Range of annual interest rates 1.85%~2.125% 1.853%~2.425%

(i)  There was no pledge for short-term borrowings.
(i1) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.
Long-term borrowings

(i) The components were as follows:

December 31, 2023
Range of annual Maturity
Currency interest rate year Amount

Syndicated loan NTD 2.5093%~2.5297% 2026 $ 1,292,133
Financial loans for solar
power plant projects NTD 2.1%~2.65% 2033~2037 921,163
Financial long-term

borrowings NTD 2.275%~2.5% 2025 12,083

2,225,379
Less: current portion (201,582)
Total $_ 2,023,797
Unused long-term credit lines $ 1,689,157
December 31, 2022
Range of annual Maturity
Currency interest rate year Amount

Syndicated loan NTD 2.5645%~2.5674% 2023 $ 1,409,490
Financial loans for solar
power plant projects NTD 1.975%~2.525% 2033~2036 1,003,861
Financial long-term

borrowings NTD 2.275%~2.375% 2024~2025 22,333

2,435,684

Less: current portion (1,503,394)
Total $ 932,290

Unused long-term credit lines
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(i1)) Pledge for loan
Assets had been pledged as collaterals for long-term borrowings, please refer to note 8.
(ii1)) Syndicated loan

In March 2023, the Company entered into a triennium syndicated loan agreement with a group
of banks to pay off the credit balance of its 2020 syndicated loan and replenishment of
operating working capital.

In accordance with the agreement, the Company can extend its credit term only once for two
more years, within 24 to 30 months starting from the initial drawdown, through written
application to leading bank, provided it does not breach the financial covenant within three
years starting from the initial drawdown date.

In accordance with the agreement, the Company shall submit annual consolidated financial
statements audited by the accountant and the second quarter consolidated financial statements
reviewed by the accountant approved by the management bank during the term of the credit
agreement, and maintain the agreed financial indicators, including current ratio, financial debt
ratio, interest coverage ratio and tangible net worth.

If the Company initially fails to comply with the aforementioned covenants, it would not be
regarded as breach of contract if it can provide the leading bank a financial improvement plan,
and consequently, its preceding consolidated financial statements audited by the accountant
and the second quarter consolidated financial statements reviewed by the accountant is in
conformity with the covenants; furthermore, a compensation has to be paid. If the Company
still fails to comply with the said covenant in its preceding consolidated financial statements,
all its credit facilities stated in the contract will be considered invalid. Also, the leading bank
can decide either to waive all or parts of the unused credit facilities without the approval of the
participating banks, or it can demand the Company for an immediate payment on its
obligations under this agreement.

The Company was in compliance with the aforementioned covenants.
(iv) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.
Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current $ 123,501 130,416
Non-current S 146,587 163,458
For the maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(x).
(Continued)
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The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2023 2022

Interest expense on lease liabilities (recorded under finance
costs) $ 3,524 3,602

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities $ 13,584 10,835
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 15,695 15,316
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding

short-term leases of low-value assets $ 412 412

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows by the Group were as follows:

2023 2022
Total cash outflow for leases S 57,001 96,769
(i) Real estate and buildings leases
The Group leases land and buildings for its office use, operation space and the installation
location of photovoltaic power stations, with lease terms ranging from 1 to 20 years. Some
leases included an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after
the end of the contract term. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and
not by the lessors. If the lessee is not reasonably certain to use an optional extended lease term,
the payments associated with the optional period will not be included in lease liabilities.
(i1)) Other leases
The Group leases machinery and other equipment, with lease terms ranging from 1 to 10 years.
In some cases, the Group has options to purchase the assets at the end of the contract term.
The Group also leases IT equipment and other equipment with lease terms ranging from 1 to 3
years. These leases are short-term and leases of low-value items; therefore, the Group has
elected not to recognize its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.
Provisions
Warranty Decommissioning Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 148,616 15,694 164,310
Provisions made 10,082 540 10,622
Provisions used (386) - (386)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (1,031) - (1,031)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 157,281 16,234 173,515
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 135,361 13,269 148,630
Provisions made 13,335 2,425 15,760
Provisions used (741) - (741)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 661 - 661
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 148.616 15,694 164,310
(Continued)

- 138 -



(p)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The carrying amounts of provisions were as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current provision $ 42,463 33,767
Non-current provision 131,052 112,347
S 173,515 146,114

(i) Provision for warranties of the Group is related to solar modules and photovoltaic inverters
sold. It is based on estimates made from historical warranty data associated with similar goods
and services.

(i1) Provision for decommissioning of the Group is related to power station. It is recognized the
module recovery expense as provision, which is in accordance with the Regulation for
Installation and Management of the Renewable Energy Generation Equipment.

Employee benefits
(i)  Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were

as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 32,564 35,167
Fair value of plan assets (96.,028) (94.,424)
Net defined benefit assets (recorded under other
non-current assets) S (63,464) (59,257)

Only the Company in the Group adopts the defined benefit obligations. The Company makes
defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account with Bank of Taiwan that
provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the Labor Standards
Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years of service.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Company allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds
are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds Supervisory Committee. Minimum earnings
on such funds shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year time deposits
with interest rates offered by local banks.

(Continued)
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The amount of the Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
was already higher than the defined benefit obligation, so the Company had applied for a
moratorium on the withdrawal of labor pension reserve account during to April 2020 to
March 2023. The Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
amounted to $96,028 as of December 31, 2023. For information on the utilization of the
labor pension fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please
refer to the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at January 1
Current service costs and interest
Actuarial gains or losses

Defined benefit obligations at December 31
Movements of defined benefit plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains or losses

Fair value of plan assets at December 31

Expenses (reversal) recognized in profit or loss

Current service costs

Net interest on the net defined benefit assets

Operating expense reversal

2023 2022
35,167 34,452
721 332
(3,324) 383
32,564 35,167
2023 2022
94,424 87,196
1,828 651
(224) 6,577
96,028 94,424
2023 2022
78 77
(1,185) (396)
1,107) (319
1.,107) (319

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset recognized in other comprehensive

income

Cumulative amount at January 1
Recognized during the period

Cumulative amount at December 31
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(15,236) (9,042)
(3.100) (6,194)
(18,336) (15,236)
(Continued)



MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6)  Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Discount rate 1.875 % 2.000 %
Rate of salary increase 2.000 % 3.000 %

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit plans
for the one-year period after the reporting date is $0.

The weighted-average lifetime of the defined benefits plans for 2023 is 17.80 years.
7)  Sensitivity analysis

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the defined
benefit obligation shall be as follows:

Influences on defined benefit obligations
Increased by 0.25%  Decreased by 0.25%

December 31, 2023
Discount rate $ (867) 908
Rate of salary increase 891 (855)

December 31, 2022
Discount rate (1,032) 1,079
Rate of salary increase 1,047 (1,019)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity
analysis is consistent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

The method and assumptions used on current sensitivity analysis are the same as those of
the prior year.

(i1) Defined contribution plans

The Group’s Taiwan entities allocate 6% of each employee’ s monthly wages to the labor
pension personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions
of the Labor Pension Act. The Company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor
Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The Group allocates $20,990 and $27,101 as pension costs under the defined contribution
plans in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Payment was made to the Bureau of Labor Insurance and
the local government of foreign subsidiaries.

(Continued)
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(@) Income taxes

(@)

Tax benefit

The components of tax benefit (expense) were as follow:

2023 2022
Current tax expenses
Current period $ (5,564) (4,490)
Adjustment for prior periods - 873
(5,564) (3,617)
Deferred tax benefit (expenses) 296 -
Tax benefit (expenses) $ (5,268) (3,617)

The amounts of tax expenses recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:

2023 2022
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Actuarial gain of defined benefit plans $ (620) (1,239)
The Group did not recognize any amount of income tax directly in equity.
Reconciliation of tax benefit (expenses) and profit before tax were as follows:
2023 2022
Profit before tax $ 229,585 275,934
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate $ (45,917) (55,187)
Effect on tax rates in foreign jurisdiction (9,600) (6,019)
Non-deductible expense (769) (742)
Changes on unrecognized temporary differences 68,276 65,290
Investment gains and losses on domestic enterprises which 1,679 4,322
were not included in taxable income
Change in provision in prior periods - 873
Others (18,937) (12,154)
$ (5.268) (3,617)
(Continued)
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(i1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

1)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Unrecognized deferred tax assets (tax):
Loss carryforwards $ 1,896,608 2,050,044
Aggregate amount of temporary differences
related to investments in subsidiaries 744,677 764,487
Deductible temporary differences 214,923 209,964
$ 2,856,208 3,024,495

As of December 31, 2023, the information of the Group’s unused tax losses for which no

deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

Loss carryforwards

of unrecognized

Year of loss deferred tax assets Expiry year
2016 $ 297,997 2026
2017 2,538,046 2027
2018 3,255,134 2028
2019 1,568,955 2029
2020 289,843 2030
2021 175,149 2031
2019 537,226 2024, 2029
2020 3,248 2025
2021 541,461 2026, 2031
2022 4,764 2027,2032
2023 2,220 2033

$ 9.214,043

There are no significant unrecognized deferred tax liabilities on December 31, 2023 and

2022.
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2)  Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

Accumulated
impairment loss Others Total
Deferred tax assets:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 66,055 - 66,055

Recognized in profit or loss (5,584) 9,032 3,448

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 60,471 9,032 69,503

Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 62,702 - 62,702

Recognized in profit or loss 3,353 - 3,353

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 66,055 - 66,055

Unrealized
Defined benefit foreign
plans exchange gains Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 11,851 55,752 - 67,603
Recognized in profit or loss 222 (302) 3,232 3,152
Recognized in other comprehensive income 620 - - 620
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 12,693 55,450 3,232 71,375
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 10,549 52,462 - 63,011
Recognized in profit or loss 63 3,290 - 3,353
Recognized in other comprehensive income 1,239 - - 1,239
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 11,851 55,752 - 67,603

(iii) The Company’ s income tax returns for all years through 2021 were assessed by the tax
authorities.

Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s authorized ordinary share were both
$10,000,000, with par value of NT$10 per share, and its issued and outstanding shares were both
387,042 thousand shares. The Company has reserved 20,000 thousand authorized shares for
employee stock options, convertible preferred stock, and convertible bonds.

(Continued)
- 144 -



MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliations of shares outstanding were as follows:

(In thousands of shares)

2023 2022
Beginning shares at January 1 387,042 355,042
Issued for cash - 32,000
Ending shares at December 31 387,042 387,042

(i)  Ordinary share

A resolution was passed during the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 5, 2022 for the
issuance of ordinary shares for cash subsequently, a resolution was passed for issuance of
32,000 thousand ordinary shares, with par value of $10 per share. The issue price of these
shares was $22.5 per share, and the Company received $716,061 (deducted issuance costs of
$3,939). The issuance of ordinary shares for cash subsequently had approved by FSC, and the
date of capital increase was set on August 26, 2022, and all related registration procedures
have been completed.

(i1) Capital surplus

The components were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Premium on issued stock $ 402,464 402,464
Changes in equity of subsidiaries and associates

accounted for using equity method 126,651 126,651

Employee share options 11,490 11,490

Others 90 &9

$ 540,695 540,694

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding.

(Continued)
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(iii) Retained earnings

Under the Company’s articles of incorporation, the Company’s current-period earnings are
appropriated and distributed in the following order:

a)
b)

c)

d)

pay all taxes and duties;
cover prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any;

of the remaining balance, 10% is set aside as legal reserve; excluding when legal reserve
exceeds contributed capital;

set aside a special reserve in accordance with the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act or
as requested by the authorities in charge;

The balance, including the accumulated retained profits from the previous year, is the profit to
be distributed. The Board of Directors shall propose the earnings distribution plan, in which
the amount to be distributed cannot be less than 25% of the earnings available for distribution,
in the shareholders’ meeting for approval.

The Company’s dividend policies are as follows:

a)

b)

1)

2)

Cash dividends and stock dividends are appropriated in consideration of the Company’s
budget for capital expenditures, financial condition, and future operating cash flows.

No dividends are distributed if the Company has no unappropriated earnings. Earnings
can be distributed as cash or share dividends, but stock dividends shall not exceed 50%
of the total distribution.

If there are no unappropriated earnings, or if there are unappropriated earnings but they
are very much less than the earnings distributed in the prior year, or in consideration of
financial, business, and operating requirements, then all of the capital surplus or a
portion of the legal reserve or capital surplus can be distributed according to the law or
government regulations.

Legal reserve

If a company has no accumulated deficit, it may, pursuant to a resolution approved by the
stockholders, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or distributing cash for the
portion in excess of 25% of the share capital.

Special reserve

In accordance with the FSC, a portion of current period earnings and undistributed prior
period earnings shall be reclassified as a special reserve during earnings distribution. The
amount to be reclassified should be equal to the current period’s total net reduction of
other shareholders’ equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior period earnings
shall be reclassified as a special reserve (which does not qualify for earnings distribution)
to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior
periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other
shareholders’ equity shall qualify for additional distributions.
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3)  Earnings distribution

On June 19, 2023 and June 21, 2022, the Company’s shareholders resolved to
appropriate the earnings for 2022 and 2021. These earnings were appropriated as

follows:

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders
Cash

Amount per share (dollar)

2022

2021

$ 174,169

71,008

$ 0.45

0.20

On March 7, 2024, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to appropriate the

earnings for 2023 as follows:

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders
Cash

2023

Amount per
share (dollar)

Total amount

$ 032§ 123.853

(iv) other comprehensive income accumulated in reserves, net of tax

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements

Exchange differences on associates accounted for using
equity method

Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income of associates accounted for using equity
method

Balance at December 31, 2023

- 147 -

Unrealized
gains (losses)
from financial

assets
Exchange measured at
differences on fair value
translation of through other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income
$ (505,112) (1,184)
(21,841) -
52 -
- (248)
$ (526,901) (1,432)
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Unrealized
gains (losses)
from financial

assets
Exchange measured at
differences on fair value
translation of through other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (521,327) 12,675
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements 16,194 -
Exchange differences on associates accounted for using

equity method 21 -
Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets

measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income - (11,050)
Disposal of investments in equity instruments measured

at fair value through other comprehensive income - (1,625)
Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets

measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income of associates accounted for using equity

method - (1,184)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ (505,112) (1,184)

Share-based payment
As of December 31, 2022, the Group had the following share-based payment arrangement:

Equity-settled
Cash capital increase reserved
for employee subscription

Grant date 2022.07.28

Number of shares granted (thousand shares) 3,200

Recipients Employees of the Company

Vesting conditions Immediately vested
(Continued)
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The Group adopted the Black-Scholes model to evaluate the fair value of the abovementioned share-
based payment at the grant date. The assumptions adopted in this valuation model were as follows:

Cash capital increase reserved for
employee subscription

Fair value per share on grant date 27.8
Exercise price 22.5
Expected volatility 38.8492 %
Expected life 21 days
Dividend yield -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1677 %

Compensation costs of the Group arising from cash capital increase reserved for employee
subscription were $11,490 which were recognized as operating cost and operating expense for the
year ended December 31, 2022. There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31,
2023.

Earnings per share (“EPS”)

(i) Basic EPS

2023 2022

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company $ 218,168 267,882
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period (thousand shares) 387,042 368,375
Basic earnings per share (dollars) $ 0.56 0.73

(i1) Diluted EPS
2023 2022

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company $ 218,168 267,882
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period (thousand shares) 387,042 368,375
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares —

employees’ compensation (thousand shares) 609 644
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period (diluted) (thousand

shares) 387,651 369,019
Diluted earnings per share (dollars) $ 0.56 0.73

(Continued)
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Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) The Group’s revenue was recognized from contracts with customers both in 2023 and 2022.

(i1)) Details of revenue as follows:

2023 2022
Solar Others Total Solar Others Total
Taiwan $ 2,186,840 203,428 2,390,268 3,328,882 207,600 3,536,482
Singapore 1,642,754 - 1,642,754 1,758,710 - 1,758,710
Others 32,891 68 32,959 64,460 326 64,786

$_ 3.862.485 203,496 _ 4.065.,981 5,152,052 207,926 _ 5,359,978

Since disaggregation of revenue was based on major products, the basis for division of
operating segments, and their geographical regions, the revenue of major products and primary
geographical markets were included in the above information.

(iii) Balance of contracts

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
Notes and accounts receivable $ 411,718 742,843 573,936
Less: loss allowance (930) - (33,500)
Total $ 410,788 742,843 540,436
Contract liabilities S 38,024 70,117 77,436

For details on notes and accounts receivable and loss allowance for impairment, please refer to note
6(c).

The amount of revenue recognized as the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period was
as follows:

2023 2022
Revenue recognized $ 63.093 75,320

Remuneration to employees and directors

In accordance with the articles of incorporation the Company should contribute no less than 1% of
the profit as employees’ remuneration and no more than 5% as directors’ remuneration when there is
profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved
to offset the deficit. The amount of remuneration to employees entitled to receive the
abovementioned employee remuneration is approved by the Board of Directors. The recipients of
shares and cash may include the employees of the Company’s affiliated companies who meet certain
conditions.

(Continued)
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The Company estimated its remuneration to employees and directors were as follows:

2023 2022
Employees’ remuneration $ 14,106 17,268
Directors’ remuneration S 2,821 3,454

Above-mentioned amounts were calculated by using the Company’s pre-tax net profit for the period
before deducting the amounts of the remuneration to employees and directors, multiplied by the
distribution of ratio of the remuneration to employees and directors based on the Company’s articles
of incorporation, and expensed under operating costs or expenses. If there would be any changes
after the reporting date, the changes shall be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and
recognized as profit or loss in the following year. If, however, the shareholders determine that the
employees’ remuneration is to be distributed through stock dividends, the calculation, based on the
shares, shall be calculated using the stock price on the day before the board meeting. Related
information would be accessed at the Market Observation Post System website.

In 2023 and 2022, the actual amount of remuneration, which was same as the estimated amount.
Non-operating income and expenses

(i) Interest income

2023 2022
Interest income from bank deposits $ 56,984 48,405
(i1) Other income
2023 2022
Rent income $ 5,983 5,539
(iii) Other gains and losses
2023 2022
Gains (losses) on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (3,445) (7,339)
Foreign exchange gains or losses, net 8,643 18,881
Government grants 7,671 11,338
Impairment loss on non-financial assets (100,476) (97,944)
Others (14,582) 625
(102,189) (74,439)
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(iv) Finance costs

2023 2022
Interest expense $ (64,217) (58,536)
Other finance costs (2,108) (3,339)
Capitalized interest 3,318 -
$ (63,007) (61,875)

(x) Financial instruments

(@)

(i)

Credit risk
1)  Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to
credit risk.

2)  Concentration of credit risk

In order to reduce the credit risk on accounts receivable, the Group continuously
evaluates the financial status of these customers and request collateral when necessary.
The Group evaluates the possible loss on accounts receivable periodically and accrues a
loss allowance for impairment, if necessary. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Group’s account receivables were obviously concentrated on 3 and 5 customers, whose
accounts represented 86% and 85% of the total accounts receivable, respectively.

3)  Credit risk of receivables

For credit risk exposure of notes and accounts receivable, please refer to note 6(c). Other
financial assets at amortized cost includes other receivables and, for credit risk exposure
of other receivables, please refer to note 6(a) and 6(d).

Liquidity risk

The following were the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Carrying Contractual Within Over
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years

December 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Bank loans $ 2,383,241 (2,578,093) (412,733) (241,329)  (1,387,086) (536,945)

Short-term notes and bills payable 89,982 (90,000) (90,000)

Notes and accounts payable, other

payables and lease liabilities 1,375,539 (1,416,358)  (1,240,320) (17,940) (46,738) (111,360)
Guarantee deposits received 1,754 (1,754) (288) (1,466)

$_ 3,850,516 (4,086,205) _ (1,743,341) (260,735) _ (1,433,824) (648,305)
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Carrying Contractual Within Over
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years

December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Bank loans $ 2,635,684 (2,802,952)  (1,623,843) (253,483) (297,007) (628,619)

Notes and accounts payable, other 2,213,555 (2,257,365)  (2,060,430) (21,145) (49,161) (126,629)

payables and lease liabilities
Guarantee deposits received 3,195 (3,195) - (3,195) - -

$ 4,852,434 _ (5,063,512)  (3,684,273)  (277.823) _ (346,168) _ (755,248)

The Group does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

(iii) Currency risk
1)  Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange currency Exchange
(in thousands) rate NTD (in thousands) rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 11,119 30.705 341,409 20,650 30.71 634,162
CNY 22,282 4.3248 96,365 27,253 4.4132 120,273
Non-monetary items
USD 38,661 30.705 1,187,079 40,162 30.71 1,233,389
CNY 275,926 4.3248 1,193,325 208,886 4.4132 1,239,606
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD 5,094 30.705 156,411 8,174 30.71 251,024
CNY 16,719 4.3248 72,306 39,995 4.4132 176,506

2)  Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and other payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A 1% of
depreciation (appreciation) of the NTD against the other foreign currencies as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, would have increased (decreased) the net profit as follows.
The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2023 and 2022.

Impact on profit (loss)

Increase by Decrease by
1% 1%
December 31, 2023 S 2,091 (2,091)
December 31, 2022 S 3,269 (3,269)
(Continued)
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3) Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gains (losses) on monetary items were disclosed using the following total
amounts:

2023 2022
Foreign exchange gains or losses, net $ 8,643 18,881

Interest rate risk

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk and interest rate exposure of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to interest rate risk of derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. For variable-rate instruments,
the sensitivity analysis assumes the variable-rate liabilities are outstanding for the whole year
on the reporting date. The departments of the Group’s entities reported the increases/decreases
in the interest rates and the exposure to changes in interest rates to the Group’s key
management so as to allow key management to assess the reasonableness of the changes in the
interest rates.

The interest rate risk is mainly due to the Group’s borrowing at floating rates. If the interest
rate increases (decreases) by 1% (with other factors remaining constant on the reporting date
and with analyses of the two periods on the same basis), the impact on profit (loss) would be as
follows:

Impact on profit (loss)
Increase by 1% Decreases by 1%

December 31, 2023 $ (23.832) 23.832
December 31, 2022 $ (26,357) 26,357
Fair value

1)  Categories and fair value of financial instruments

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of financial assets and
liabilities were reasonably close to their fair value; hence, the fair value information need
not disclosed.

2)  Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The fair value of financial instruments trade in an active market is based on the quoted
market prices.

The unlisted company’s stock, which the Group hold in 2022, not trade in active markets.
The Group takes the quote market prices and the price-book ratio of similar publicly
traded companies into consideration by using the market comparison approach. The
estimates had been adjusted by the depreciation from lack of market liquidity.

(Continued)
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3)  Transfer between the fair value hierarchy every level:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no change on the fair value
hierarchy of every level financial asset and liabilities.

4)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values - Fair value through other comprehensive income-
unquoted equity instruments

2023 2022
Beginning balance at January 1 $ - 45,175
Disposal - (32,500)
Recognized in other comprehensive income - (12,675)

Ending balance at December 31 $ - -

(y) Financial risk management

(@)

(i)

Overview

The Group has exposures to the following risks from its financial instruments:
1)  Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

The following likewise discusses the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing the above-mentioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative effects
of these risks' exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. Each responsible division is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Group’ s risk management policies and reports regularly to the Board of
Directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Company’s Supervisor is
assisted in this oversight role by the internal auditor. The internal auditor reviews the risk
controls and procedures, and reports the results on a regular or irregular basis to the Board of
Directors.

(Continued)
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The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how the management complies with monitoring
the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to financial

instruments fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s
notes and accounts receivable from the customers and investments in securities.

1)  Accounts receivable

According to the credit policy, the Group analyzes each new customer individually for its
credit worthiness before granting them credit lines (which is being reviewed regularly),
standard payment terms and delivery terms, by taking into account the external ratings of
their financial information and bank reference.

2)  Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits and equity instruments is measured and

monitored by the Group’s finance department. Since the Group’s transactions resulted
from the bank with good credit standing, there are no incompliance issues and therefore
no significant credit risk.

3)  Guarantees

According to the Group’ s management policy, the Group can only provide financial
guarantees to certain entities which meet specific requirements. As of December 31,

2023 and 2022, the Group did not provide any financial guarantees.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial

asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group uses activity-based costing to cost its products and services, which assists it in
monitoring cash flow requirements. The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash
equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected
cash flows on financial liabilities (other than payables) over the succeeding 60 to 90 days. The
Group also monitors the level of expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. This
excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had unused bank
facilities for $4,227,498 and $1,844,944, respectively.

(Continued)
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates that will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

In order to manage market risk, all transactions of the Group are carried out within the
guidelines set by the management. Generally, hedge accounting is not applied in these
circumstances, and the Group charges the changes in value to profit or loss.

1)

2)

3)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities, primarily the NTD, US Dollar (USD) and Chinese Yuan (CNY). These
transactions are denominated in NTD, USD and CNY.

At any point in time, the Group hedges its estimated foreign currency exposure with
respect to its forecast sales and purchases over the following six months.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the

Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalance.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate on borrowings was at a floating rate. The Group did not enter
into and designate interest rate swaps as hedges of the variability in cash flows
attributable to interest rate risk. In response to changes in interest rates, the Group
assesses each currency lending rate of financial institutions and maintains good
relationships with them, in order to obtain lower financing costs. This also strengthens
the management of working capital, reduces dependence on bank borrowings, and lowers
the risk of changes in interest rates.

Other market price risk

The Group monitors the risk arising from its available-for-sale security instruments,
which are held for monitoring cash flow requirements and unused capital. The
management of the Group monitors the combination of investment portfolio based on
cash flow requirement. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an
individual basis, and all buy-and-sell decisions are approved by the Board of Directors.

(Continued)
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Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain the confidence of
investors, creditors, and the market and to sustain future development of the business.

The Group uses the debt-to-equity ratio to manage its capital. This ratio uses the total net debt to be
divided by the total capital. The total net debt from the balance sheet is derived from the total
liabilities, less, cash and cash equivalent. The total capital and equity include share capital, capital
surplus, retained earnings, other equity. As of December 31, 2023, there were no changes in the
Group’s approach to capital management.

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Total liabilities $ 4,235,535 5,237,197
Less: cash and cash equivalents (2,408,531) (3,141,347)
Net liabilities $ 1,827,004 2,095,850
Total equity $ 4,354,640 4,332,040
Debt-to-equity ratio 41.96 % 48.38 %

Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group’s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

(1)  For right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6(h).

(i1)) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

January 1, Non-cash December 31,
2023 Cash flows changes 2023
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) $ 2,435,684 (208,748) (1,557) 2,225,379
Short-term notes and bills payable - 90,000 (18) 89,982
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 293,874 (23,786) - 270,088
Total liabilities from financing activity $ 2,729,558 (142,534) (1,575) 2,585,449
January 1, Non-cash December 31,
2022 Cash flows changes 2022
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) $ 2,651,136 (217,972) 2,520 2,435,684
Short-term notes and bills payable 159,954 (160,000) 46 -
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 128,664 (66,594) 231,804 293,874
Total liabilities from financing activity $ 2,939,754 (444,566) 234,370 2,729,558
(Continued)
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(7) Related-party transactions

(a)

(b)

(©)

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered
in the consolidated financial statements.

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
TECO Sun Energy Co., Ltd. (TECO Sun Energy) Associates
Inergy Technology Inc. Associates

Significant transactions with related parties
(i) Operating revenue and accounts receivable

2023 2022
Associates—TECO Sun Energy $ - 7,021

The remaining sales to related parties shall be based on the routine sales transaction. Related
receivables due from operating revenue had been settled as of December 31, 2023.

(i) Dividend

In 2023 and 2022, the Group received dividends from its associates amounting to $18,750 and
$21,253, respectively.

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 30,531 27,540
Post-employment benefits 324 324
Share-based payments - 1,246
$ 30,855 29.110
Please refer to note 6(s) for information on share-based payment.
(Continued)
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(8) Pledged assets

The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

Pledged assets Object 2023 2022
Deposits (recorded under other Guarantees for banker’s $ 539,357 1,090,807
current financial assets) acceptance
Deposits (recorded under other Mortgage deposits
current financial assets) - 32,013
Other current financial assets 539.357 1,122.820
Deposits (recorded under other non- Guarantees for leased
current financial assets) dormitory 5,308 2,710
Deposits (recorded under other non- Guarantees for land 21,340 7,537
current financial assets)
Deposits (recorded under other non- Long-term borrowings
current financial assets) (including current portion) 19,985 18,640
Other non-current financial
assets 46,633 28.887
Property, plant and equipment Long-term borrowings
(including current portion) 1,714,540 1,811,034
Deposits (recorded under guarantee  performance security
deposits) 41,937 38,737
$ 2,342,467 3,001,478

(9) Significant commitments and contingencies

(a)

The Group has contracts involving significant unrecognized commitments as follows:

(@)

(i)

Unused letters of credit for the Group’s purchases of raw materials, machinery and equipment

were as follows:

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Unused letters of credit S 4,421

88.086

Bank performance guarantees for the customs and others were as follows:

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Bank guarantees $ 64,270

59,270
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(iii) The status of agreements for the Group’s expansion of the plant and purchases of machinery,
other equipment and other assets was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Total contract price $ 2,029,744 1,560,044
Unexecuted amount S 1,286,300 1,260,430

The Group entered into long-term purchase contracts with suppliers to purchase nitrogen in bulk
volume. Starting from the contract, if the actual consumed volume is less than basic volume usage,

the Group should pay for the cost of the basic volume usage instead.

(10) Losses due to major disasters: None

(11) Subsequent events: None.

(12) Other

A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as follows:

By function 2023 2022
Operating Operating Operating Operating

By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
[Employee benefits

Salary 346,078 155,507 501,585 383,550 158,817 542,367

Labor and health insurance 37,677 19,023 56,700 39,906 13,686 53,592

Pension 14,387 5,496 19,883 20,312 6,470 26,782

Remuneration of directors - 17,639 17,639 - 17,445 17,445

Others 17,000 5,979 22,979 17,155 5,728 22,883
Depreciation 251,452 22,543 273,995 249,520 26,541 276,061
lJAmortization 319 270 589 354 1,506 1,860
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The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023:

i.

Loans to other parties:
Highest balance of -
! ﬁnm'c’fnz“‘o :‘;::Z:mes Ending balance Actual usage | Range ofnterest | - Purposes of fund | Transaction amount for |~ Reasons for Loss Collateral Individul funding loan_| MEXmum limit
Number Name of lender Name of borrower Account name amount during the |  rates during the | financing for the business between two short-term of fund financing
during the period (Note 1) allowance limits (Note 3)
period period borrower (Note 2) parties financing (Note 3)
(Note 1) Item Value
0 The Company MPO Other receivables - 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 - Operating - None - 427,934 855,869
related parties tumover
0 The Company MPZ Other receivables - 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 - Operating - None - 427934 855,869
related partics turnover
her receivables - o)
0 The Company MPB Other receivables 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 . perating . None - 427934 855,869
related parties turnover
Note I: Highest balance of financing to other parties during the period was the highest credit lines approved by the Board of Directors. The ending balance was the same s that of the credit lines approved by the Board of Directors,
Note 2: Purposes of fund financing for the borrower as follows:
1. For entries the Company has business transactions with
2. For entries with short-term financing needs.
Note 3: For entitics with short-term financing needs, which provides by the Company, the amount available for financing shall not exceed 10% of net worth of the Company.

Total amount of short-term fi

Note 4: The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

ii. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None.
iii. Securities held as of December 31, 2023 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): None.

v.
V.

vi.
vii.

viii.

ncing shall not exceed 20% of net worth of the Company.

Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock:
Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of TWD100 million or 20% of the capital stock:
Transaction details Transactions with terms different from others| Notes/ Trade receivables (payables)
Name of company Related party Nature of relationship Note
Purchase/Sale Amount Percentage of total purchases/sales Payment terms Unit price Payment terms | Lnding | Percentage of total notes/trade
urehas - s sales Y s L % s balance receivables (payables)
MAS The Company Parent company Sale 1,312,986 99.55 % 30 days Non-significant difference 30 days 122,230 98.52 [%
The Company MAS Subsidiary Purchase 1,312,986 29.63 % 30 days Non-significant difference 30 days (122,230)] 44.65 |%
SNE The Company Parent company Sale 583,727 100.00 % T/T in advance Non-significant difference | T/T in advance 11,881 98.21 %
The Company SNE Subsidiary Purchase 583,727 1317 % T/T in advance Non-significant difference | T/T in advance (11,881)] 4.34 (%
The Company MPO Subsidiary Sale 341,087 775 % 90 days Non-significant difference 90 days 222,779 34.44 %
MPO The Company Parent company Purchase 341,087 100.00 % 90 days Non-significant difference 90 days (222,779) 99.07 [%
The Company MPZ Subsidiary Sale 172,487 392 % 90 days Non-significant difference 90 days 21,674 335 |%
MPZ The Company Parent company Purchase 172,487 100.00 % 90 days Non-significant difference 90 days (21,674)| 94.84 [%

Note: The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

Receivables from related p:

arties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20% of capital stock:

Overdue Amounts rec
Name of company Related party Nature of relationship Ending balance Tumover days mounts received in Loss allowance
“Amount Action taken subsequent period
The Company MPO Subsidiary 224874 (Notel) - - 224874 -
MAS The Company Parent company 122,230 8.99 - - 122230 -

Notel: Calculation of turnover rate is not applicable for accounts receivable arising from the construction of power plants.
Note2: The amount had been offset in the consolidated fi

ix. Trading in derivative instruments: None.

ial statements.

-162 -




MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

x. Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

Intercompany transactions, 2023
Nature of relationship
No. Name of counter-party Name of company (Note 2) . Percentage of the consolidated net
Account name Amount Trading terms
revenue or total assets
0 The Company MPO 1 Sale 341,087 90 days 8.39 %
0 The Company MPO 1 Notes and accounts receivable 222,779 90 days 2.59 %
0 The Company MPZ 1 Sale 172,487 90 days 424 %
1 MAS The Company 2 Sale 1,312,986 30 days 3229 %
I MAS The Company 2 Notes and accounts receivable 122,230 30 days 142 %
2 SNE The Company 2 Sale 583,727 | T/Tin advance 1436 %
Note 1: Company numbering is as follows:
Parent company 0
Subsidiary stars from 1
Note 2: ip with ion party is as follows:

Parent company to subsidiary 1

Subsidiary to parent company 2

Subsidiary to subsidiary 3

Note 3: The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Information on investees:
The following is the information on investees for the year 2023 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

Original investment amount

Highest balance during the year

Net income

Share of

and selling

ain businesses 2 shes
Name of investor Name of investee Location Main businesses and Comyne The highest Ofthe 1 losses)of | profitflosses of Note
products December 31, 2023 December 31,2022 | Shares/Units Percentage of ownership - periods investee investee
The Company Power Islands Samoa Holding Company 5,041,424 5,160,872 154,674,370 100.00 % 1,174,245 100 % 94,979 99,048 Note
The Company Inergy Technology Inc. Taiwan Product design 95,821 95,821 8,558,750 1872 % 205,722 1872 % 16,308 5,864
The Company Teco-Motech Taiwan :{::'"'g"“we' generation and 14,400 14,400 1,440,000 60.00 % 6,476 60.00 % 3455 2,073 Note
The Company MPO Taiwan i‘::?;;"we‘ generation and 928,000 928,000 92,800,000 100.00 % 828,154 100.00 % 17,128 17,228 Note
The Company | 1ECO Sun Enerey Company Taiwan Solar power generation and 28,000 28,000 2,800,000 40.00 % 31,240 40.00 % 6332 2,533
Limited selling
The Company MPG Taiwan i"l'l;“;g""“'“ generation and 33,000 33,000 3,300,000 100.00 % 25,171 100.00 % 1476 1.476 Note
The Company MPB Taiwan i‘:::‘"';wc' generation and 55,000 55,000 5,500,000 100.00 % 25,113 100.00 % (2.342) (2.342)] Note
The Company MPZ Taiwan i‘ﬁ:gp"w“ generation and 480,000 480,000 48,000,000 100.00 % 439,001 100.00 % (358) (358)| Note
Power Islands Cheer View British Virgin Islands [Holding Company 2,564,272 2,564,272 77,500,000 100.00 % 3 100.00 % - - Note
Cheer View AE United States |} lysilicon manufacturing 2,398,043 2,308,043 11,573,647 3711 % - 3701 % - -

Note : The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
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(c) Information on investment in mainland China:
i. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:

Accumulated Accumulated
- - . . . Accumulated
. Total amount of outflow of Investment flows outflow of Net income The highest Investment income .
. Main businesses and X Method of . . . . e . Book value remittance of
Name of investee roducts capital surplus investment investment from investment from (losses) of the [ F ge of p T of the (losses) (Note 4) carnines in current
P i (Note 7) ; Taiwan as of Taiwan as of December|  investee periods (Notes 3 and 4) glcriod
January 1, 2023 Outflow Inflow 31,2023 P

Manufacturing and
SNE processing, solar cells 1,220,170 (Note 1) 1,280,986 - 119,449 1,161,537 99,578 9539 % 95.39 % 94,987 1,186,732 -
and solar modules
(CNY250,229)
Manufacturing and
MAS processing, solar cells 2,392,731 (Note 2) - - - - 92,823 9539 % 95.39 % 88,544 1,072,909 -
and solar modules
(CNY531,500)
Manufacturing and
MASE processing, solar wafer 164,232 (Note 2) - - - - (408) 95.39 % 9539 % (389) (874) -
and solar cells
(CNY37,000)

Note : The amount had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

ii. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

1
Unit: USD dollars
lated Investment in Mainland China Investment Amounts Authorized by .
- U Limit on Investment (Note 6
as of December 31, 2023 (Note 5) Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 5) pper Limit on [nvestment (Note 6)
1,161,537 1,658,070
2,612,784
(USD34,779,553) (USD 54,000,000)
Note 1: The Company indirectly invested in the company in Mainland China through a third region (Power Islands).
Note 3: Amounts was recognized based on audited financial statements.
Note 4: The amount consist of investment gain or loss and carrying values as of December 31, 2023, recognized by the Company which indirectly invested through a third region.
Note 5: The investment in Mainland China, includis i was recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. The equity in the earnings (losses) was translated into NTD at the average rates prevailing at the transaction date.
The equity in the earnings (losses) was translated into NTD at the average rates during each period of the year. Other amounts on foreign currency financial assets was translated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, which was NTD30.705.
Note 6: Amount of upper limit on investment was the higher between sixty percentage of total equity or total consolidated equity.
Note 7: The amounts consist of investment in Mainland China were recorded at exchange rates into NTD.
iii. Significant transactions

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
"Information on significant transactions”.

(d) Major shareholders

As of December 31, 2023, there was no shareholder who held over 5% of the total non physical common stocks.
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(14) Segment information

(a)

(b)

General Information
The reporting segment in the Group is solar business. Solar business covers the manufacturing,
marketing, and sale of solar cells and solar modules.
Other operating segments of the Group are related to the manufacturing, marketing, and sales of
solar cells, solar modules, and photovoltaic investors, as well as the marketing, design, and
installation of solar electricity systems, and solar power generation. As these segments do not reach
the standard for disclosure, no separate disclosures were made thereon in 2023 and 2022.
Profit or loss data of the reporting segment, assets and liabilities of the segment, the basis of
measurement, and the related eliminations.
No tax expenses or non-operating income and expenses are allocated to the reporting segment. In
addition, the reporting segment does not include depreciation and amortization of significant non-
cash items. The reportable amount is similar to that in the report used by the chief operating decision
maker.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in note 4. The

Group evaluates performance of operating segment on the basis of operating income. The Group

treats intersegment sales and transfers as third-party transactions. They are measured at market price.

The Group’s operating segment information and reconciliation are as follows:

2023
Solar Other Elimination Total
Revenues:
Revenues from external customers $ 3,862,485 203,496 - 4,065,981
Revenues from parent and consolidated
subsidiaries 381,070 - (381,070) -

Interest income 45431 11,553 - 56,984
Total revenues S 4,288,986 215,049 (381,070) 4,122,965
Financial cost $ (41,322) (21,685) - (63,007)
Depreciation and amortization $ (169,065) (105,519) - (274,584)
Impairment loss of non-financial assets $ (100,476) - - (100,476)
Share of profit of associates accounted for using

equity method $ 8,397 - - 8,397
Segment income $ 294,251 29,166 - 323,417

(Continued)
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2022
Solar Other Elimination Total

Revenues:

Revenues from external customers $ 5,152,052 207,926 - 5,359,978

Revenues from parent and consolidated

subsidiaries 21,829 - (21,829) -

Interest income 44.154 4,251 - 48,405
Total revenues $ 5,218,035 212,177 (21,829) 5,408,383
Finance costs $ (40,778) (21,097) - (61,875)
Depreciation and amortization S (171,736) (106,185) - (277,921)
Reversal of impairment loss on non-financial

assets S (97,944) - - (97,944)
Share of profit of associates accounted for

using equity method S 21,609 - - 21,609
Segment income S 272,746 63,949 - 336,695

The material reconciling items of the above reportable segment are as below:

In 2023 and 2022, included in the total reportable segment revenue was elimination of intersegment
revenue of $381,070 and $21,829, respectively. The reconciling items of the reporting segment’s
income and earnings before tax were recognized as non-operating income and expenses. Please refer
to consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers

2023 2022
Revenue from external customers:
Taiwan $ 2,390,268 3,536,482
Singapore 1,642,754 1,758,710
Others 32.959 64,786
$ 4,065,981 5,359,978
December 31, December 31,
Geographical information 2023 2022
Other non-current assets:
Taiwan $ 3,595,760 2,917,433
China 142,147 116,287
Total $ 3,737,907 3,033,720

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use-assets, intangible assets, and
other assets, excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and pension fund assets.

(Continued)
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(d) Information about revenue from major customers

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts of sales to customers representing
greater than 10% were as follows:

2023
A company $ 1,642,754

2022
A company $ 1,758,710

B company 707,243

C company 567,355
$ 3,033,308
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5. Audited Parent Company Only Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2023
and 2022:

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Motech Industries Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Motech Industries Inc.(*the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit on
the current financial statements, whose context has been addressed as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the details described
below to be our key audit matter:

Revenue recognition for sales of solar modules

Please refer to note 4(0) “Revenue recognition” for accounting policy and note 6(u) “Revenue from contracts
with customers” for further information.

Description of key audit matter:

The Company is a listed company that involves public interests where investors pay high attention to its
operating performance. The Company’s revenues derived from the sales of its solar modules, wherein revenue
recognition is dependent on whether the specified sales terms in each individual contract are met. Therefore,
revenue recognition has been identified as our key audit matter.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: understanding and testing the design and implementation of internal
controls of sales and cash collection process for solar modules; analyzing top ten clients and compare their
related differences to evaluate significant outliers; selecting samples from sales of solar modules and evaluating
the external documents which can indicate the control transferred to buyer; as well as determining samples from
sales transactions for a period before and after the balance sheet date to ensure the accuracy of the document
related to revenue recognition.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Huang, Ming-Hung and
Tang, Chia-Chien.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 7, 2024

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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1100
1136
1170
1180
1200
1210
1220
130x
1410
1479

1535
1550
1600
1755
1780
1840
1980
1990

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(a))
Current financial assets at amortized cost (note 6(a))
Notes and accounts receivable, net (notes 6(c) and 6(u))
Accounts receivable —related parties (notes 6(c), 6(u) and 7)
Other receivables (note 6(d))
Other receivables — related parties (notes 6(d) and 7)
Current tax assets
Inventories (note 6(¢))
Prepayments (included related parties) (notes 6(j) and 7)
Other current assets (note 6(j))
Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Non-current financial assets at amortized cost (note 6(a))
Investments accounted for using equity method (notes 6(f) and 7)
Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(g), 7 and 8)
Right-of-use assets (note 6(h))
Intangible assets (note 6(i))
Deferred tax assets (note 6(q))
Other non-current financial assets (note 8)
Other non-current assets (notes 6(j) and 6(p))

Total non-current assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amount Y% Amount Y%
$ 841,532 13 976,453 14
158 - - -
396,951 6 710,343 10
244,453 4 53,058 1
215 - 2,382 -
4,558 - 14,727 -
729 - 531 -
798,631 12 868,029 13
28,707 - 15,211 -
29,642 _ 1 15378 -
2,345,576 _36 2,656,112 38
212 - 370 -
2,735,122 41 2,798,816 40
1,275,101 19 1,364,353 19
32,696 - 42,669 1
213 - 622 -
67,924 1 66,055 1
37,407 1 21,012 -
100913 _ 2 88,805 _ 1
4,249,588 64 4,382,702 62

$ 6,595,164

—
=3
=]

7,038,814 100
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2100
2110
2130
2170
2180
2200
2220
2250
2280
2320
2399

2540
2550
2570
2580
2600

2XXX

3100
3200
3310
3320
3350
3400

3XXX

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (note 6(1))

Short-term notes and bills payable (note 6(k))
Current contract liabilities (notes 6(u) and 7)
Notes and accounts payable

Accounts payable —related parties (note 7)
Other payables (note 6(v))

Other payables— related parties (note 7)
Current provisions (notes 6(0) and 7)

Current lease liabilities (note 6(n))
Long-term borrowings, current portion (notes 6(m) and 8)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-Current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings (notes 6(m) and 8)
Non-current provisions (note 6(0))
Deferred tax liabilities (note 6(q))
Non-current lease liabilities (note 6(n))
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity (notes 6(b), 6(f), 6(p), 6(q), 6(r) and 6(s)):

Ordinary share
Capital surplus
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings
Other equity interest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Amount % Amount %
$ 60,000 1 200,000 3
89,982 1 - -
57,950 1 70,079 1
139,628 2 366,561 5
122,050 2 168,200 3
263,876 4 294,907 4
12,061 - 16 -
29,793 1 23,318 1
10,073 - 9,896 -
121,165 2 1,422,989 20
17,354 - 3,776 -
923932 _14 2,559,742 37
1,215,682 19 44,964 1
81,763 1 76,384 1
70,092 1 67,603 1
23,945 - 34,067 -
402 _ - 649 _ -
1,391,884 21 224,167 _ 3
2,315,816 _35 2,783,909 _40
3,870,419 59 3,870,419 55
540,695 8 540,694 8
49,210 1 21,764 -
53,862 1 28,723 -
293,495 4 299,601 4
(528.333) _(8) (506,296) _(7)
4,279,348 65 4,254,905 _60
$ 6,595,164 100 7,038,814 100




(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2023 2022
_Amount % _Amount %
4000 Net operating revenue (notes 6(u) and 7) 4,401,293 100 5,274,388 100
5000 Operating costs (notes 6(e), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), 6(n), 6(0), 6(p), 6(s), 6(v) and 7) (3,867,341) (88) (4,784,052) (91)
5910 Realized or unrealized profit and loss from sales (14,405) - 1,759 _ -
5950 Net gross profit from operations 519,547 _ 12 492,095 _ 9
6000 Operating expenses (notes 6(c), 6(g), 6(h), 6(i), 6(n), 6(p), 6(s), 6(v) and 7):
6100 Selling expenses (40,013) (1) (46,434) (1)
6200 Administrative expenses (219,837)  (5) (221,081) (4
6300 Research and development expenses (49,565) (1) (48,060) (1)
6450 Expected credit (loss) gain (930) - 33,500 1
Total operating expenses (310,345) _ (O (282,075) _ (5
6900 Net operating profit 209,202 _ 5 210,020 _ 4
7000 Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(f), 6(g), 6(n), 6(w) and 7):
7100 Interest income 5,021 - 5,501 -
7010 Other income 5,983 - 5,539 -
7020 Other gains and losses (86,262) (2) (11,762) -
7050 Finance costs (41,298) (1) (40,302) (1)
7070 Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity method 125522 _ 3 98,077 _ 2
Total non-operating income and expenses 8,966 _ - 57,053 _ 1
7900 Profit before tax 218,168 5 267,073 5
7950 Tax benefit (expenses) (note 6(q)) - - 809 _ -
8200 Net profit 218,168 _ 5 267,882 _ 5
8300 Other comprehensive income (notes 6(b), 6(f), 6(p), 6(q) and 6(r)):
8310 Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
8311 Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 3,100 - 6,194 -
8316 Unrealized gains (losses) frorp inyestments in equity instruments measured at fair value ) ) (11,050) -
through other comprehensive income ?
8320 Share of other comprehensive income o.f associates acgounted for using equity method, 248) - (1,184) -
components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ’
8349 Inct(())rr;)ert (I%); (r)e;l;i(::;j to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified 620) - 1239) -
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2,232 _ - (7,279) _ -
8360 Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements 4,740 - 122,179 2
8370 Share of other comprehensive income of associates acgounted for gsing equity method, 57 ) 21 )
components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
8381 Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements of subsidiaries (26,581) - (105,985) 2)
8399 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to ) ) ) )
profit or loss -_  — —
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (21,789) _ - 16,215 _ -
8300 Other comprehensive income (19,557) _ - 8,936 _ -
8500 Total comprehensive income $ 198,611 _ 5 276,818 _ S
Earnings per share (expressed in New Taiwan Dollars) (note 6(t)) o o
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 0.56 0.73
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 0.56 0.73

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Balance at January 1, 2022
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2022
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Changes in equity of associates accounted for using equity method
Proceeds from issuing ordinary shares
Share-based payments
Disposal of investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2022
Net Profit for the year ended December 31, 2023
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Due to donated assets received
Balance at December 31, 2023

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Total other equity interest

Unrealized gains
Exchange (losses) on financial
differences on assets measured at
translation of fair value through

Ordinary Special Unappropriated ~ foreign financial other comprehensive  Total other
shares Capital surplus Legal reserve reserve retained earnings statements income equity interest Total equity
S 3,550,419 25,348 11,081 - 135,553 (521,327) 12,675 (508.652) 3,213,749
- - - - 267,882 - - - 267,882
- - - - 4,955 16,215 (12,234) 3,981 8,936
- - - - 272,837 16,215 (12,234) 3,981 276,818
- - 10,683 - (10,683) - - - -
- - - 28,723 (28,723) - - - -
- - - - (71,008) - - - (71,008)
- 107,795 - - - - - - 107,795
320,000 396,061 - - - - - - 716,061
- 11,490 - - - - - - 11,490
- - - - 1,625 - (1,625) (1,625) -
3,870,419 540,694 21,764 28,723 299,601 (505,112) (1,184) (506,296) 4,254,905
- - - - 218,168 - - - 218,168
- - - - 2,480 (21,789) (248) (22,037) (19,557)
- - - - 220,648 (21,789) (248) (22,037) 198,611
- - 27,446 - (27,446) - - - -
- - - 25,139 (25,139) - - - -
- - - - (174,169) - - - (174,169)
- 1 - - - - - - 1
$ 3,870,419 540,695 49,210 53,862 293,495 (526,901) (1,432) (528,333) 4,279,348
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss (gain)
Interest expense
Interest income
Share-based payments
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity method
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Unrealized profit and loss from sales
Gain on lease modifications
Total adjustments to reconcile profit
Changes in operating assets:
Notes and accounts receivable
Accounts receivable — related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables — related parties
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Prepayments to suppliers
Other current assets
Defined benefit assets
Total changes in operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities:
Contract liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable — related parties
Other payables
Other payables — related parties
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total changes in operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Cash inflow generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Decrease in refundable deposits
Decrease in other receivables due from related parties
Acquisition of intangible assets
Increase in other non-current financial assets
Increase in prepayments for business facilities
Interest received
Dividends received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term loans
Repayments of short-term loans
Increase in short-term notes and bills payable
Repayments of short-term notes and bills payable
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Increase in guarantee deposits received
Payment of lease liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Proceeds from issuing ordinary shares
Interest paid
Other financing activities
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-174 -

2023 2022
218.168 267,073
169,526 154,149

589 1,860
930 (33,500)
41,298 40,302
(5,021) (5,501)

. 11,490
(125,522) (98,077)
3,442 7,185
97,962 29,951
14,405 (1,759)
- (46)
197,609 106,054
312,462 (192,698)
(191,395) 21,777
2,085 18,446
10,169 (12,376)
66,578 (141,369)
(1,239) (1,252)
(12,257) 13,918
(14,264) (10,229)
(1,107) (319)
171,032 (304,102)
(12,129) (4,462)
(226,933) (21,314)
(46,150) 9,804
(26,415) 30,441
164 (43)

11,354 8,386
13,290 3,413
(286,819) 26,225
(115,787) (277.877)
299,990 95,250
(198) (151)
299.792 95,099

- 34,125
- 3,782
- (1,052,000)

119,449 -

(155,808) (188,628)
2,491 6,000
19,764 11,172

- 47,000
(180) (470)
(16,395) (648)
(35,963) (8,395)
5,103 5,451
33,325 49555
(28.214) (1,093,056)
170,000 854,612
(310,000) (784,612)
200,000 310,000
(110,000) (470,000)
1,350,000 50,400
(1,479,549) (300,682)
41 313
(9,945) (9,798)
(174,169) (71,008)

- 716,061
(42,878) (37,584)
1 -

(406,499) 257,702
(134,921) (740,255)
976,453 1,716,708
841,532 976,453




(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

MOTECH Industries Inc. (the Company) was incorporated on June 3, 1981, as a company limited by
shares and registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) of the Republic of China (R.O.C.).
The address of the Company’s registered office is 6F, No. 248, Sec. 3, Pei-Shen Rd., Shen-Keng Dist.,
New Taipei City 222, Taiwan. The Company’ s major operating activities are the manufacturing,
marketing, and sale of solar cells, solar modules, and photovoltaic inverters, the marketing, design, and
installation of solar electricity systems, and solar power generation.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the financial statements

The parent company only financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
March 7, 2024.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted

(a)

(b)

The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its financial statements, from January 1, 2023:

e Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
e Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

o Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The Company has initially adopted the new amendment, which do not have a significant impact on
its financial statements, from May 23, 2023:

o Amendments to IAS 12 “International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules”

The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual
period beginning on January 1, 2024, would not have a significant impact on its financial statements:

o Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
o Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
o Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Finance Arrangements”

o Amendments to [FRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”

(Continued)
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C))

(c)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The Company does not expect the following new and amended standards, which have yet to be

endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 ¢ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17  Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to [FRS 17 “Initial Application of [FRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information”

Amendments to IAS21 “Lack of Exchangeability”

Summary of material policies

The material accounting policies presented in the parent company only financial statements are
summarized below. The following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the periods
presented in the parent company only financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These individual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations™).

Basis of preparation

(@)

(i)

Basis of measurement

The individual financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
following material items in the balance sheets:

1)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

2)  The defined benefit assets are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The Company’s parent company only financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars (NTD), which is the Company’s functional
currency. Except for those specifically indicates, all financial information presented in NTD
has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(Continued)
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(c)

(d)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Foreign currencies

(@)

(i)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the

Company at the exchange rates of the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate of that date. The foreign currency gains or losses on monetary
items is the difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the year adjusted for the effective interest and the payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate of the date the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transactions.

Foreign currency differences arising from retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, expect
for an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income, which is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to New Taiwan Dollars (which was expressed in reporting
currency) at the exchange rates of the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to New Taiwan Dollars (which was expressed in reporting currency)
at average rate. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control
is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Company
disposes of any part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while
retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to
noncontrolling interest. When the Company disposes of only part of investment in an associate
of joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant or joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as noncurrent.

(@)
(i)

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it in its normal operating cycle;

It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) If the asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or

used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(Continued)
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(e)

()

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as noncurrent.

(1) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(i1) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii)) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issuance of equity instruments that do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash in bank. Cash equivalents are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term
commitments. Time deposits, in conformity with the aforementioned definition, that are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes, and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value are recognized as cash
equivalents.

Financial instruments

Accounts receivable is initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is an accounts receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. An accounts receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: financial assets measured
at amortized cost and Fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investment.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

(Continued)
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1)

2)

3)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
measured at amortized cost, notes and accounts receivable, other receivables, refundable
deposits and other financial assets) and contract assets.

Loss allowance for notes and accounts receivable and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both qualitative and quantitative information and analysis based on the
Company’ s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-
looking information.

(Continued)
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4)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 180 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.
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(i1) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a derivative.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(Continued)
- 181 -



€y

(h)

(1)

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over their financial and operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates includes goodwill arising
from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The parent company only financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align the accounting policies
with those of the Company, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date
on which significant influence ceases. The Company recognizes any changes of its proportionate
share in the investee within capital surplus, when an associate’s equity changes due to reasons other
than profit and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual
proportionate share.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are recognized
only to the extent of unrelated Company’s interests in the associate.

When the Company’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in associates, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,

additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investment in subsidiaries

When preparing the parent-company-only financial statements, investment in subsidiaries which are
controlled by the Company is accounted for the using the equity method. Under the equity method,
an investment in a subsidiary is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Company’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the subsidiary as well as the
distribution received. The Company also recognized its share in the changes in the equity of
subsidiaries.

Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for within equity.
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Property, plant and equipment

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs and the present value of decommissioning costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

1)  Buildings and structures: 11 to 51 years

2)  Machinery and equipment: 2 to 10 years

3)  Other equipment (Power station): 4 to 20 years
4)  Office and other equipment: 2 to 11 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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As a leasee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.
The lease liability is measured using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate;

— there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee;

— there is a change in the assessment on whether it will have the option to exercise a
purchase of the underlying asset;

— there is a change in the assessment on lease term as to whether it will be extended or
terminated; and

— the modifications of the lease underlying asset, scope or other terms.

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property and lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial
position.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets, including office and other equipment. The
Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i1)) Asalessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only
when it increases the future economic benefit embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

The amortization amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortization is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, from the date that they are available for
use. The estimated useful lives were 1 to 6 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provision

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

(i) Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

(i) Decommissioning

The Company follows the policy of Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs, accruing
the module recycle fee based on the size of the power station, and recognize as provision by
the present value of decommissioning costs.

(ii1)) Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
accounting policies for the Company’s main types of revenue are explained below.

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Goods sold

The Company recognizes revenue when control of the products has been transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’ s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Engineering contracts

The Company enters into contracts to build solar power station. Because its customer controls
the asset as it is constructed, the Company recognizes revenue over time on the basis of the
construction costs incurred to date as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the contract. If
the Company has recognized revenue, but not issued a bill, then the entitlement to
consideration is recognized as a contract asset. The contract asset is transferred to receivables
when the entitlement to payment becomes unconditional.

If the Company cannot reasonably measure its progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation of a construction contract, the Company shall recognize revenue only
to the extent of the costs expected to be recovered.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the Company expects the unavoidable
costs of performing the obligations under a construction contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under the contract.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

Financing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year.
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.
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Government grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in
return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the
entity. Government grants shall not be recognized until there is reasonable assurance.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented
in the balance sheets either by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in
arriving at the carrying amount of the asset. The Company recognizes government grants as deducts
the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful life of the asset.

Government grants related to income are presented as a credit in the statement of comprehensive
income, they are deducted in reporting the related expense. If there is no related expense, they are
recorded under a general heading such as ‘Other gain’.

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as the
related service is provided.

(i1)) Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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(iii)) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are accrued when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee.
A liability is recognized when the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment agreements granted to employees is
generally recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period
of the awards. The amount recognized as a remuneration cost is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related
service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are
settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the
period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the share
appreciation rights. Any changes in the liability are recognized in profit or loss.

Grant date of a share-based payment award is the date which the board of directors authorized the
price and reach employee stock options issued number of a new award.

Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits (losses) and (ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;
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(i1) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i) The Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(i1) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, such as
employee compensation.

Operating segment

The Company discloses the operating segment information in the consolidated financial statements.

Therefore, the Company does not disclose the operating segment information in the parent company
only financial statements.
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Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these parent-company-only financial statements, the management has made judgments,
estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management recognizes
any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting
estimates in the following period.

The Company likely to be facing economic uncertainties such as natural disasters, international political
uncertainties and inflation. Those events may have a significant impact in the next financial year on the
following accounting estimates, which depend on the future forecasts.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the parent-company-only financial statements is as follows:

(a) For the judgment regarding significant influence of investees, please refer to consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

(b) Judgment of whether the Company has significant influence on its investee

The associate determined that the Company only has significant influence on its investee due to the
following conditions:

The Company is not a majority shareholder, or it cannot obtain more than half of the voting rights at
the board and shareholders’ meeting, of its associate, resulting in the Company to only have
significant influence, but not control, over its investee.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that do not have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The accounting policy and disclosure of the Company include measuring the financial and non-financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The accounting department of the Company uses external
information to make the evaluation result agreeable to the market status and to ensure that the data
resources are independent, reliable and consistent with the other resources. The Company regularly revises
the inputs and any essential adjustments on the fair value to ensure the evaluation results are reasonable.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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For any impact of transfer within the fair value hierarchy, which has been recognized on the reporting
date, please refer to note 6(x) for assumptions used in measuring fair value.

(6) Explanation of significant accounts
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Cash $ 552 585
Demand deposits 578,334 767,008
Time deposits 147,646 208,860
Cash equivalents (investments in bonds sold under repurchase
agreement) 115,000 -
$ 841,532 976,453

Time deposits of the Company with a deposit period of more than three months, which were
recognized as financial assets measured at amortized cost were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current financial assets at amortized cost $ 158 -
Non-current financial assets at amortized cost 212 370
$ 370 370

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

These equity instrument investments held by the Company are long-term strategic investments and
are not held for trading purposes, so they have been designated to be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive gains and losses.

In June 2022, the Company has sold its shares held in the unlisted company as a result of an
investment strategy. The shares sold had a fair value of $34,125 and the Company recognized a gain
of $1,625, which is already included in other comprehensive income and the gain has been
transferred to retained earnings. There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31,
2023.

(¢) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Accounts receivable $ 397,881 710,343
Accounts receivable-related parties 244,453 53,058
Subtotal 642,334 763,401
Less: loss allowance (930) -
$ 641,404 763,401
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The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e., the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, notes
and accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due, as well as the incorporated forward-looking information. The loss allowance provision was

determined as follows:

Current

Past due 1~90 days

Past due 91~120 days

Past due 121~150 days

Past due 151~180 days

Past due more than 181 days

Current

Past due 1~90 days

Past due 91~120 days

Past due 121~150 days

Past due 151~180 days

Past due more than 181 days

The movements in the allowance for notes and accounts receivable were as follows:

Beginning balance
Impairment loss recognized (reversed)

Ending balance

December 31, 2023
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
$ 626,240 0% -
15,164 0% -
- 0% -
- 0% -
- 0%~74.62% -
930 100% 930
$ 642,334 930
December 31, 2022
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
$ 742,430 0% -
20,971 0% -
- 0% -
- 0% -
- 0%~24.15% -
- 100% -
$ 763,401 -
2023 2022
$ - 33,500
930 (33,500)
$ 930 -

There was no pledge for notes and accounts receivable. Please refer to note 6(x) for further credit

risk information.
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Other receivables

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Other receivables $ 215 2,382
Other receivables — related parties 4,558 14,727
Less: loss allowance - -
$ 4,773 17,109

There were no changes on the movements in the allowance for other receivables for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022.

There was no pledge for other receivables. Please refer to note 6(x) for further credit risk
information.

Inventories
(i) The components were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Finished goods $ 578,946 562,954
Work in progress 163,555 123,709
Raw materials and supplies 51,222 149,829
Raw materials in transit 4.908 31,537
$ 798,631 868,029

(i1)) Except for cost of goods sold and other remaining gains or losses which were included in
operating cost or deduction of operating cost were as follows:

2023 2022
Losses on (gains on reversal) valuation of inventories and ~ $ (19,836) 30,856
obsolescence
Unallocated production overheads 117,822 43,842
Scrap income (2,893) (2,331)
$ 95,093 72,367

The aforementioned gains on reversal valuation of inventories were due to inventories, which
had been recognized loss on valuation, had been sold or used.

The inventories were not pledged.
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Investments accounted for using equity method
The components were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Subsidiaries $ 2,498,160 2,551,305
Associates 236,962 247,511
$ 2,735,122 2,798.816

(i)  Subsidiaries

Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.
(i1) Associates

Associate which is material to the Company consisted of the followings:

Main operating

location/ Proportion of shareholding
Registered and voting rights
country of the December 31, December 31,
Name of associates Main operating items company 2023 2022
Inergy Technology The major operating activities are product Taiwan 18.72 % 18.72 %

Inc. designing and wholesale and retail sale of
electrical appliance, and wholesale and
retail sale of electronic materials, and
international trade

Inergy Technology Inc., which the Company invested in using equity method, issued new
shares by cash in the first quarter of 2022, wherein the Company failed to subscribe
proportionately, resulting in the Company’ s shareholding percentage in Inergy to decrease
from 21.06% to 18.72%, amounting to $107,795, recognized as capital surplus. There was no
such transaction for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The summarized financial information of the abovementioned associate which is material to
the Company is as follows. The financial information has been prepared in accordance with the
IFRS endorsed by the FSC. The amounts included in the IFRS financial statements of the
associate have been adjusted to reflect the adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method, such as fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments
for differences in accounting policies.
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The summarized financial information of Inergy Technology Inc. was listed as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Current assets $ 905,648 1,215,779
Non-current assets 619,256 607,022
Current liabilities (173,119) (351,035)
Non-current liabilities (252.,975) (296.835)
Net assets $ 1,098,810 1,174,931

2023 2022
Operating revenue $ 960,374 1,334,958
Net profit 16,308 111,697
Other comprehensive income (989) (6,206)
Comprehensive income $ 15,319 105,491

2023 2022
Carrying amount of associate equity as of January 1 $ 217,172 109,765
Profit attributed to the Company 5,864 19,795
Other comprehensive income attributed to the Company (196) (1,163)
Dividends received from the associate (17,118) (19,020)
Changes in capital surplus of associate - 107,795
Carrying amount of associate equity as of December 31 $ 205,722 217,172

Summary of financial information for the individually insignificant investments in associates
accounted for using the equity method were as follows. The aforementioned financial
information was included in the parent-company-only financial statements of the Company.

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Total equity of the individually insignificant investments
in associates $ 31,240 30,339
2023 2022
Attributable to the Company:
Net profit from continuing operations $ 2,533 1,814
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income $ 2,533 1,814

The investments accounted for using the equity method were not pledged.
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i) The movements were as follows:

Machinery Other Office and
Building and and equipment other
Land structure equipment  (Power station) _equipment Total
Cost or deemed cost:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 17,905 1,026,022 2,024,036 78,078 1,368,719 4,514,760
Additions - - 95,260 - 67,818 163,078
Reclassification - - 2,147 - 8,971 11,118
Disposals - - (247,509) - (79,487) (326,996)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 17,905 1,026,022 1,873,934 78,078 1,366,021 4,361,960
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 § 17,905 1,026,022 2,223,024 78,078 1,326,113 4,671,142
Additions - - 164,627 - 81,639 246,266
Reclassification - - 4,878 - 6,704 11,582
Disposals - - (368,493) - (45,737) (414,230)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 17,905 1,026,022 2,024,036 78,078 1,368,719 4,514,760
Depreciation and impairment loss:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ - 304,913 1,580,799 29,760 1,234,935 3,150,407
Depreciation expense - 20,230 98,532 3,715 37,076 159,553
Impairment loss - - 82,922 - 15,040 97,962
Disposals - - (245,285) - (75,778) (321,063)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ - 325,143 1,516,968 33,475 1,211,273 3,086,859
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 § - 284,485 1,825,342 25,154 1,242,508 3,377,489
Depreciation expense - 20,428 84,061 4,606 34917 144,012
Impairment loss - - 26,704 - 3,247 29,951
Disposals - - (355,308) - (45,737) (401,045)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - 304,913 1,580,799 29,760 1,234,935 3,150,407
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 17,905 700,879 356,966 44,603 154,748 1,275,101
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 17,905 741,537 397,682 52,924 83,605 1,293,653
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 17,905 721,109 443,237 48,318 133,784 1,364,353

(i1)) In response to the changes in the supply and demand of the market, the Company had decided
to adjust its device configuration and suspend some of its machinery and other equipment of
solar division in 2023 and 2022. The Company recognized the impairment loss of $97,962 and
$29,951, which was recorded under other gains and losses — impairment loss on non-financial
assets.
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(iii) The reclassification was mainly for the transfer of prepayments for business facility and
inventories.

(iv) As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the property, plant and equipment of the Company had
been pledged as collateral for long-term borrowings; please refer to note 8.

Right-of-use assets

The Company leases many assets, including land, buildings and structures, machinery and other
equipment. Information about leases for which the Company as a lessee was presented below:

Buildings and
Land structures Machinery Total
Cost:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 76,620 6,171 - 82,791
Additions - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 76,620 6,171 - 82,791
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 73,020 6,171 981 80,172
Additions 3,600 - - 3,600
Decreases - - (981) (981)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 76,620 6,171 - 82,791
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 38,823 1,299 - 40,122
Depreciation for the year 9,648 325 - 9,973
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 48,471 1,624 - 50,095
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 29,174 974 491 30,639
Depreciation for the year 9,649 325 163 10,137
Decreases - - (654) (654)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 38,823 1,299 - 40,122
Carrying amount:
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 28,149 4,547 - 32,696
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 43,846 5,197 490 49,533
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 37,797 4,872 - 42,669

The Company leases land and buildings for its office use, operation space and installation location of
PV power stations, with lease terms ranging from 6 to 20 years; the Company also lease machinery
and other equipment, with the lease term of 2 to 3 years.
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Intangible assets

(@)

(i)

(ii1)

The movements were as follows:

Costs:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023

Additions
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2023

Beginning balance at January 1, 2022

Additions
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2022

Amortization and impairment loss:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023

Amortization for the year
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2023

Beginning balance at January 1, 2022

Amortization for the year

Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2022
Carrying amounts:

Balance at December 31, 2023

Balance at January 1, 2022

Balance at December 31, 2022

Amortization expense

Computer
software

$ 9,979
180

(180)

$ 9,979
$ 9,709
470

(200)

S 9979

$ 9,357
589

(180)

$ 9,766
$ 7,697
1,860
(200)

S 9357

213

S 2,012

S 622

The amortization expenses of intangible assets were included in the statements of

comprehensive income as follows:

Operating costs

Operating expenses

Collateral

The intangible assets were not pledged.

2022

354
1,506

1,860
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Prepayments, other current and other non-current assets

(i) The components of prepayments were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Prepaid expenses $ 7,233 5,994
Prepayments to suppliers — current - 4,126
Prepayments to suppliers — current-related parties 5,753 5,091
Prepayments for construction 15,721 -
$ 28,707 15,211

(i1)) The components of other current assets and other non-current assets were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022

Excess business tax paid $ 28,908 10,396

Others 734 4,982

Other current assets $ 29,642 15,378

Prepayments for business facilities $ 36,060 8,395

Refundable deposits 1,389 21,153

Net defined benefit assets 63,464 59,257

Other non-current assets $ 100,913 88,805
(ii1)) The other current assets and other non-current assets were not pledged.
Short-term notes and bills payable

December 31, 2023
Guarantee or acceptance Range of annual
institution interest rates (%) Amount
Commercial paper payable Ta Ching Bills Finance 1.848%~1.858%  § 90,000
Corporation /Mega Bills
Finance Co., Ltd.

Less: discount on short-term

notes and bills payable (18)
Total $ 89,982
There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31, 2022.
(i)  There was no pledge for short-term notes and bills payable.
(i1) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.
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Short-term borrowings

Unsecured bank loans (in NTD)
Unused short-term credit lines

Range of annual interest rates

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
$ 60,000 200,000
$ 1,896,203 1,717,433

1.850%~2.105%

1.853%~2.425%

(i)  There was no pledge for short-term borrowings.

(i1) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.

Long-term borrowings

(i) The components were as follows:

December 31, 2023
Range of annual Maturity
Currency interest rate year Amount

Syndicated loan NTD 2.5093%~2.5297% 2026 $ 1,292,133
Financial loans for solar
power station projects NTD 2.1%~2.65% 2033 32,631
Financial long-term
borrowings NTD 2.275%~2.5% 2025 12,083

1,336,847
Less: current portion (121,165)
Total $ 1,215,682
Unused long-term credit lines $ 292,447

December 31, 2022
Range of annual Maturity
Currency interest rate year Amount

Syndicated loan NTD 2.5645%~2.5674% 2023 $ 1,409,490
Financial loans for solar
power station projects NTD 1.975%~2.525% 2033 36,130
Financial long-term
borrowings NTD 2.275%~2.375% 2024-2025 22,333

1,467,953
Less: current portion (1,422,989)

Total

Unused long-term credit lines
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(i1)) Pledge for loan
Assets had been pledged as collaterals for long-term borrowings, please refer to note 8.
(ii1)) Syndicated loan borrowings

In March 2023, the Company entered into a triennium syndicated loan agreement with a group
of banks to pay off the balance of its 2020 syndicated loan.

In accordance with the agreement, the Company can extend its credit term only once for two
more years, within 24 to 30 months starting from the initial drawdown, through written
application to leading bank, provided it does not breach the financial covenant within three
years starting from the initial drawdown date.

In accordance with the agreement, the Company shall submit annual consolidated financial
statements audited by the accountant and the second quarter consolidated financial statements
reviewed by the accountant approved by the management bank during the term of the credit
agreement, and maintain the agreed financial indicators, including current ratio, financial debt
ratio, interest coverage ratio and tangible net worth.

If the Company initially fails to comply with the aforementioned covenants, it would not be
regarded as breach of contract if it can provide the leading bank a financial improvement plan;
and consequently, its preceding consolidated financial statements audited by the accountant
and the second quarter consolidated financial statements reviewed by the accountant is in
conformity with the covenants; furthermore, a compensation has to be paid. If the Company
still fails to comply with the said covenant in its preceding consolidated financial statements,
all its credit facilities stated in the contract will be considered invalid. Also, the leading bank
can decide either to waive all or parts of the unused credit facilities without the approval of the
participating banks, or it can demand the Company for an immediate payment on its
obligations under this agreement.

The Company was in compliance with the aforementioned covenants.
(iv) Please refer to note 6(x) for liquidity and interest rate risk information.
Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Current $ 10,073 9,896
Non-current $ 23,945 34,067
For the maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(x).
(Continued)
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The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2023 2022

Interest expense on lease liabilities (recorded under finance

costs) $ 870 1,093
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities $ 131 131
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 15,695 15,326
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding

short-term leases of low-value assets $ 412 412

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows by the Company were as follows:

2023 2022

Total cash outflow for leases $ 27,053 26,760
(i) Real estate and buildings leases

The Company leases land and buildings for its office use, operating space and the installation

location of photovoltaic power stations, with leases terms ranging from 6 to 20 years. Some

leases included an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after

the end of the contract term. The extension option held are exercisable only by the Company

and not by the lessors. If the lessee is not reasonably certain to use an optional extended lease

term, the payments associated with the optional period will not be included with in lease

liabilities.
(i1) Other leases

The Company leases machinery and other equipment, with lease terms ranging from 2 to 3

years. In some cases, the Company has options to purchase the assets at the end of the contract

term. In other cases, it guarantees the residual value of the leased assets at the end of the

contract term.

The Company also leases IT equipment and other equipment with lease terms ranging from 1

to 3 years. These leases are short-term and leases of low-value items; therefore, the Company

has elected not to recognize its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.
Provisions

Onerous
Warranty  Decommissioning Contract Total

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023  $ 100,017 185 - 100,202
Provisions made 6,608 1 5,131 11,740
Provisions used (386) - - (386)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 106,239 186 5,131 111,556
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 91,631 183 - 91,814
Provisions made 9,127 2 - 9,129
Provisions used (741) - - (741)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 100,017 185 - 100,202
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The carrying amounts of provisions were as follow:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Current provisions $ 29,793 23,318
Non-current provisions 81,763 76,884
$ 111,556 100,202

(i)  Provision for warranties of the Company is related to solar modules and photovoltaic inverters
sold. It is based on estimates made from historical warranty data associated with similar goods
and services.

(i1) Provision for decommissioning of the Company is related to power station. It is recognized the
module recovery expense as provision, which is in accordance with the Regulation for
Installation and Management of the Renewable Energy Generation Equipment.

(iii)) The Company entered into a solar power construction agreement with Motech Power Zeta Co.,
Ltd, wherein a provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the Company expects the
unavoidable costs of performing the obligations under a construction contract exceeding the
economic benefits expected to be received under the contract.

Employee benefits

(i)  Defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were
as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 32,564 35,167
Fair value of plan assets (96,028) (94,424)
Net defined benefit assets (recorded under other non-
current assets) $ (63.464) (59.,257)

The Company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the
Labor Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years
of service.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Company allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds
are managed by the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee. Minimum earnings on
such funds shall be no less than the earnings attainable from two-year time deposits with
interest rates offered by local banks.
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The amount of the Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
was already higher than the defined benefit obligation, so the Company had applied for a
moratorium on the withdrawal of labor pension reserve account during to April 2020 to
March 2023. The Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance
amounted to $96,028 as of December 31, 2023. For information on utilization of the
labor pension fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please
refer to the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at January 1
Current service costs and interest
Actuarial gains or losses

Defined benefit obligations at December 31
Movements of defined benefit plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gains or losses

Fair value of plan assets at December 31

Expenses (reversal) recognized in profit or loss

Cost of services

Net interest on the net defined benefit assets

Operating expenses reversal

2023 2022

$ 35,167 34,452

721 332

(3.324) 383

$ 32,564 35,167
2023 2022

$ 94,424 87,196

1,828 651

(224) 6,577

$ 96,028 94,424
2023 2022

$ 78 77

(1,185) (396)

$ (1,107) (319

$ (1,107) (319

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset recognized in other comprehensive

income

Cumulative amount at January 1
Recognized during the period

Cumulative amount at December 31
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2023 2022
$ (15,236) (9,042)
(3,100) (6,194)
$ (18,336) (15,236)
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6)  Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Discount rate 1.875 % 2.000 %
Rate of salary increase 2.000 % 3.000 %

The expected allocation payment to be made by the Company to the defined benefit plans
for the one-year period after the reporting date is $0.

The weighted-average lifetime of the defined benefits plans for 2023 is 17.80 years.
7)  Sensitivity analysis

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the defined
benefit obligation shall be as follows:

Influences on defined benefit

obligations
Increased by Decreased by
0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2023

Discount rate $ (867) 908

Rate of salary increase 891 (855)
December 31, 2022

Discount rate (1,032) 1,079

Rate of salary increase 1,047 (1,019)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity
analysis is consistent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

The method and assumptions used on current sensitivity analysis are the same as those of
the prior year.

(i1) Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. The Company allocates a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance without
additional legal or constructive obligation.

The Company allocates $20,918 and $22,325 as pension costs under the defined contribution
plans in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Payment was made to the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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(@) Income taxes

(@)

Tax benefit (expense)

The components of tax benefit (expense) were as follows:

2023 2022
Current tax benefit (expenses)
Current period $ - -
Adjustment for prior periods - 809
- 809
Deferred tax benefit - -
Tax benefit $ - 809
The amounts of tax expenses recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:
2023 2022
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Actuarial gain of defined benefit plans $ (620) (1,239)
The Company did not recognize any amount of income tax directly in equity.
Reconciliation of tax benefit (expense) and profit before tax were as follows:
2023 2022
Profit before tax $ 218.168 267,073
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate $ (43,634) (53,415)
Non-deductible expense (769) (742)
Changes on unrecognized temporary differences 39,108 47,433
Change in provision in prior periods - 809
Investment gains and losses on domestic enterprises
which were not included in taxable income 5,295 6,724
$ - 809
(Continued)
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(i1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

1)

2)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Unrecognized deferred tax assets (tax):
Loss carryforwards $ 1,625,025 1,660,538
Aggregate amount of temporary differences 744,677 764,487
related to investments in subsidiaries
Deductible temporary differences 214,923 209,964
$ 2,584,625 2,634,989

Loss carryforwards
of unrecognized deferred

As of December 31, 2023, the information of the Company’s unused tax losses for which
no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

Year of loss tax assets Expiry year
2016 $ 297,997 2026
2017 2,538,046 2027
2018 3,255,134 2028
2019 1,568,955 2029
2020 289,843 2030
2021 175,149 2031

$ 8,125,124

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

There are no significant unrecognized deferred tax liabilities on December 31, 2023 and
2022.

Accumulated
impairment loss Others Total
Deferred tax assets:

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 66,055 - 66,055
Recognized in profit or loss (5,584) 7,453 1,869
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 60,471 7,453 67,924
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 62,702 - 62,702
Recognized in profit or loss 3,353 - 3,353
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 66,055 - 66,055

(Continued)
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Unrealized
foreign
Defined benefit exchange
plans gains Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities:
Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ 11,851 55,752 - 67,603
Recognized in profit or loss 222 (302) 1,949 1,869
Recognized in other comprehensive income 620 - - 620
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 12,693 55,450 1,949 70,092
Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ 10,549 52,462 - 63,011
Recognized in profit or loss 63 3,290 - 3,353
Recognized in other comprehensive income 1,239 - - 1,239
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 11,851 55,752 - 67,603

(iil) Assessment

The Company’s income tax returns for all years through 2021 were assessed by the tax
authorities.

Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s authorized ordinary share were both
$10,000,000, with par value of $10 (dollars) per share, and its issued and outstanding shares were

both 387,042 thousand shares. The Company has reserved 20,000 thousand authorized shares for
employee stock options, convertible preferred stock, and convertible bonds.

Reconciliations of shares outstanding were as follows:

(In thousands of shares)

2023 2022
Beginning shares at January 1 387,042 355,042
Issued for cash - 32,000
Ending shares at December 31 387,042 387,042

(i)  Ordinary share

A resolution was passed during the Board of Directors’ meeting held on May 5, 2022 for the
issuance of ordinary shares for cash subsequently, a resolution was passed for issuance of
32,000 thousand ordinary shares, with par value of $10 per share. The issue price of these
shares was $22.5 per share, and the Company received $716,061 (deducted issuance costs of
$3,939 thousand). The issuance of ordinary shares for cash subsequently had approved by
FSC, and the date of capital increase was set on August 26, 2022, and all related registration
procedures have been completed.

(Continued)
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(i1) Capital surplus

The components were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Premium on issued stock $ 402,464 402,464
Changes in equity of subsidiaries and associates
accounted for using equity method 126,651 126,651
Employee share options 11,490 11,490
Other 90 89
$ 540,695 540,694

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not

exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding.

(iii) Retained earnings

Under the Company’s articles of incorporation, the Company’s current-period earnings

are appropriated and distributed in the following order:
a)  pay all taxes and duties;

b)  cover prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any;

c¢) of the remaining balance, 10% is set aside as legal reserve; excluding when legal

reserve exceeds contributed capital;

d) set aside a special reserve in accordance with the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange

Act or as requested by the authorities in charge;

The balance, including the accumulated retained profits from the previous year, is the
profit to be distributed. The Board of Directors shall propose the earnings distribution
plan, in which the amount to be distributed cannot be less than 25% of the earnings

available for distribution, in the shareholders’ meeting for approval.
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The Company’s dividend policies are as follows:

a) Cash dividends and stock dividends are appropriated in consideration of the

Company’s budget for capital expenditures, financial condition, and future
operating cash flows.

b) No dividends are distributed if the Company has no unappropriated earnings.
Earnings can be distributed as cash or share dividends, but stock dividends shall not
exceed 50% of the total distribution.

¢) If there are no unappropriated earnings, or if there are unappropriated earnings but
they are very much less than the earnings distributed in the prior year, or in
consideration of financial, business, and operating requirements, then all of the
capital surplus or a portion of the legal reserve or capital surplus can be distributed
according to the law or government regulations.

Legal reserve

If a company has no accumulated deficit, it may, pursuant to a resolution approved by the
stockholders, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or distributing cash for the
portion in excess of 25% of the share capital.

Special reserve

In accordance with the FSC, a portion of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-
period earnings shall be reclassified as a special reserve during earnings distribution. The
amount to be reclassified should be equal to the current-period total net reduction of
other shareholders’ equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings
shall be reclassified as a special reserve (which does not qualify for earnings distribution)
to account for cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior
periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other
shareholders’ equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

Earnings distribution

On June 19, 2023 and June 21, 2022, the Company’s shareholders resolved to
appropriate the earnings for 2022 and 2021. These earnings were appropriated as
follows:

2022 2021
Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders
Cash $ 174,169 71,008
Amount per share (dollar) $ 0.45 0.20

(Continued)
-211 -



MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

On March 7, 2024, the Company’ s Board of Directors resolved to appropriate the
earnings for 2023 as follows:

2023
Amount per
share (dollar)  Total amount

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders
Cash $ 0328 123,853
(iv) Other comprehensive income accumulated in reserves, net of tax
Unrealized gains

(losses) from
financial assets

Exchange measured at fair
differences on value through
translation of other

foreign financial comprehensive
statements income

Beginning balance at January 1, 2023 $ (505,112) (1,184)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements 4,740 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements for subsidiaries (26,581) -
Exchange differences on associates accounted for using

equity method 52 -
Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income of

associates accounted for using equity method - (248)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ (526,901) (1,432)

(Continued)
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Exchange
differences on

Unrealized gains
(losses) from
financial assets
measured at fair
value through

translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income

Beginning balance at January 1, 2022 $ (521,327) 12,675
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements 122,179 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial

statements for subsidiaries (105,985) -
Exchange differences on associates accounted for using equity

method 21 -
Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income - (11,050)
Disposal of investments in equity instruments measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income - (1,625)
Unrealized gains and losses from financial assets measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income of

associates accounted for using equity method - (1,184)
Balance at December 31, 2022 (505,112) (1,184)

Share-based payment

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had the following share-based payment arrangement:

Grant date
Number of shares granted (thousand shares)

Recipients

Vesting conditions
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Equity-settled

Cash capital increase
reserved for employee
subscription

2022.07.28
3,200

Employees of the
Company

Immediately vested
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The Company adopted the Black-Scholes model to evaluate the fair value of the abovementioned
share-based payment at the grant date. The assumptions adopted in this valuation model were as

follows:

Cash capital

increase reserved

for employee

subscription
Fair value per share on grant date 27.8
Exercise price 22.5
Expected volatility 38.8492 %
Expected life 21 days
Dividend yield -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1677 %

Compensation costs of the Company arising from cash capital increase reserved for

employee

subscription were $11,490, which were recognized as operating cost and operating expense for the
year ended December 31, 2022. There was no such transaction for the year ended December 31,

2023.
Earnings per share (“EPS”)

(i) Basic EPS

2023 2022
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company  $ 218,168 267,882
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period (thousand shares) 387,042 368,375
Basic earnings per share (dollars) $ 0.56 0.73
(i1)) Diluted EPS
2023 2022
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company $ 218,168 267,882
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period (thousand shares) 387,042 368,375
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares —employees’
compensation (thousand shares) 609 644
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period (diluted) (thousand shares) 387,651 369,019
Diluted earnings per share (dollars) $ 0.56 0.73
(Continued)
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Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) The Company’s revenue was recognized from contracts with customers both 2023 and 2022.
(i1) Details of revenue were as follows:
2023 2022
Solar Others Total Solar Others Total
Primary
geographical
markets:
Taiwan $ 2,187,765 543,721 2,731,486 3,328,882 136,871 3,465,753
Singapore 1,642,754 - 1,642,754 1,758,710 - 1,758,710
Others 26,985 68 27,053 49,599 326 49,925
$_ 3,857,504 543,789 _ 4,401,293 _ 5,137,191 137,197 _ 5,274,388
Since disaggregation of revenue was based on major products, the basis for division of
operating segments, and their geographical regions, the revenue of major products and primary
geographical markets were included in the above information.
(iii) Balance of contracts

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022

Notes and accounts receivable

(including related parties) $ 642,334 763,401 625,980
Less: loss allowance (930) - (33.,500)
Total $ 641,404 763,401 592,480
Contract liabilities

Sales of products $ 41,846 69,060 74,541

Construction contract 16,104 1,019 -
Contract liabilities-current $ 57,950 70,079 74,541

For details on notes and accounts receivable and loss allowance for impairment, please refer to
note 6(c).

The amount of revenue recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 that was
included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period were $63,093 and
$72,498, respectively.

(Continued)
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Remuneration to employees and directors

In accordance with the articles of incorporation the Company should contribute no less than 1% of
the profit as employees’ remuneration and no more than 5% as directors’ remuneration when there is
profit for the year. However, if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved
to offset the deficit. The amount of remuneration to employees entitled to receive the
abovementioned employee remuneration is approved by the Board of Directors. The recipients of
shares and cash may include the employees of the Company’s affiliated companies who meet certain
conditions.

The Company estimated its remuneration to employees and directors were as follows:

2023 2022
Employees' remuneration $ 14,106 17,268
Directors' remuneration S 2,821 3,454

Above-mentioned amounts were calculated by using the Company’s pre-tax net profit for the period
before deducting the amounts of the remuneration to employees and directors, multiplied by the
distribution of ratio of the remuneration to employees and directors based on the Company’s articles
of incorporation, and expensed under operating costs or expenses. If there would be any changes
after the reporting date, the changes shall be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and
recognized as profit or lost in the following year. If, however, the shareholders determine that the
employees’ remuneration is to be distributed through stock dividends, the calculation, based on the
shares, shall be calculated using the stock price on the day before the board meeting. Related
information would be accessed at the Market Observation Post System website.

In 2023 and 2022, the actual amount of remuneration, which was same as the estimated amount.
Non-operating income and expenses

(i) Interest income

2023 2022
Interest income from bank deposits $ 5,021 5,322
Interest income from loans to other parties - 179
$ 5,021 5,501

(i1) Other income

2023 2022
Rent income $ 5,983 5,539
(Continued)
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(iii) Other gains and losses

2023 2022
Gains (losses) on disposals of property, plant and equipment (3,442) (7,185)
Foreign exchange gains or losses, net 7,128 1,804
Management income 17,038 14,449
Impairment loss on non-financial assets (97,962) (29,951)
Government grants 5,612 4,690
Others (14,636) 4,431
(86,262) (11,762)
(iv) Finance costs
2023 2022
Interest expense (40,320) (38,489)
Other finance costs (978) (1,813)
(41,298) (40,302)

(x) Financial instruments
(i)  Credit risk

1)  Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum

amount exposed to credit risk.

2)  Concentration of credit risk

3)

In order to reduce the credit risk on accounts receivable, the Company continuously
evaluate the financial status of these customers and request collateral when necessary.
The Company evaluates the possible loss on accounts receivable periodically and accrues
a loss allowance for impairment, if necessary. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
Company’ s accounts receivable were obviously concentrated on 4 and 5 customers,

whose accounts represented 90% and 89% of the total accounts receivable, respectively.
Credit risk of receivables

For credit risk exposure of notes and accounts receivable, please refer to note 6(c). Other
financial assets at amortized cost includes other receivables and time deposits, for credit
risk exposure of other receivables, please refer to notes 6(a) and 6(d).

(Continued)
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(i1) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual Over
amount cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years
December 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans $ 1,396,847 (1,477,968) (213,848) (143,570)  (1,104,677) (15,873)
Short-term notes and bills payable 89,982 (90,000) (90,000) - - -
Notes and accounts payable, other payables and
lease liabilities (including related parties) 571,633 (575,660) (548,851) (5,740) (17,219) (3,850)
Guarantee deposits received 690 (690) (288) (402) - -
$_ 2,059,152 (2,144,318) (852,987) (149,712) _ (1,121,896) (19,723)
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans $ 1,667,953 (1,710,419)  (1,523,676) (155,036) (12,017) (19,690)
Notes and accounts payable, other payables and
lease liabilities (including related parties) 873,647 (879,084) (840,969) (11,306) (17,219) (9,590)
Guarantee deposits received 649 (649) - (649) - -
$_ 2,542,249 (2,590,152)  (2,364,645) (166,991) (29,236) (29,280)

The Company does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

(iii)) Currency risk
1)  Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Company’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Foreign Foreign
currency currency
(in thousands) Exchange rate NTD (in thousands) Exchange rate NTD
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 7,125 30.705 218,773 13,966 30.71 428,896
CNY 22,282 4.3248 96,365 27,253 4.4132 120,273
Non-monetary
items
USD 38,661 30.705 1,187,079 40,162 30.71 1,233,389
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
UsSD 5,092 30.705 156,350 8,172 30.71 250,962
CNY 16,719 4.3248 72,306 39,995 4.4132 176,506
(Continued)
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2)  Sensitivity analysis

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the
foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other payables that are denominated in foreign
currency. A 1% of depreciation (appreciation) of the NTD against other foreign
currencies as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, would have increased (decreased) the net
profit as follows. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023 and 2022.

Impact on profit (loss)

Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
December 31, 2023 S 865 (865)

December 31, 2022 S 1,217 (1.,217)

3) Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items

Since the Company has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gains (losses) on monetary items was disclosed using the following total
amounts:

2023 2022
Foreign exchange gains $ 7,128 1,804

Interest rate risk

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk and interest rate exposure of the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to interest rate risk of derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. For variable-rate instruments,
the sensitivity analysis assumes the variable-rate liabilities are outstanding for the whole year
on the reporting date. The departments of the Group’s entities reported the increases/decreases
in the interest rates and the exposure to changes in interest rates to the Company’ s key
management so as to allow key management to assess the reasonableness of the changes in the
interest rates.

The interest rate risk is mainly due to the Company’s borrowing at floating rates. If the interest
rate increases (decreases) by 1% (with other factors remaining constant on the reporting date
and with analyses of the two periods on the same basis), the impaction on profit (loss) would
be as follows:

Impact on profit (loss)
Increase by 1%  Decreases by 1%

December 31, 2023 $ (13.968) 13,968
December 31, 2022 $ (16,680) 16,680
(Continued)
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(v) Fair value

1)

2)

3)

4)

Categories and fair value of financial instruments

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of the financial assets and
liabilities were reasonably close to their fair value; hence, the fair value information need
not disclosed.

Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The unlisted company’s stock, which the Company hold in 2022, not trade in active
markets. The Company takes the quote market prices and the price-book ratio of similar
publicly trade companies into consideration by using the market comparison approach.
The estimates had been adjusted by the depreciation from lack of market liquidity.

Transfer between the fair value hierarchy every level:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was no change on the fair value
hierarchy of every level financial asset and liabilities.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values - Fair value through other comprehensive income-
unquoted equity instruments

2023 2022
Beginning balance at January 1 $ - 45,175
Disposals - (32,500)
Recognized in other comprehensive income - (12,675)

Ending balance at December 31 $ - -

(y) Financial risk management

(@)

Overview

The Company have exposures to the following risks from its financial instruments:

1)
2)
3)

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market risk

The following likewise discusses the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing the above-mentioned risks. For more disclosures about the
quantitative effects of these risks' exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the
financial statements.

(Continued)
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Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. Each responsible division is responsible for developing and

monitoring the Company’ s risk management policies and reports regularly to the Board of
Directors on its activities.

The Company’ s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks

faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect

changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The
Company’s Supervisor is assisted in this oversight role by the internal auditor. The internal
auditor reviews the risk controls and procedures, and reports the results on a regular or
irregular basis to the Board of Directors.

The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how the management complies in monitoring the
Company’ s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to
financial instruments fails to meet it contractual obligations and arises principally from the

Company’s notes and receivables from the customers and investments in securities.

1)  Accounts receivable

According to the credit policy, the Company analyzes each new customer individually
for its credit worthiness before granting them credit lines (which is being reviewed
regularly), standard payment terms and delivery terms, by taking into account the
external ratings of their financial information and bank reference.

2)  Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits and equity instruments is measured and

monitored by the Company’s finance department. Since the Company’ s transactions
resulted from the bank with good credit standing, there are no incompliance issues and
therefore no significant credit risk.

3)  Guarantees

According to the Company’ s management policy, the Company can only provide
financial guarantees to certain entities which meet specific requirements. As of 2023 and

2022, the Company didn’t provide any guarantees or endorsements to other companies.

(Continued)
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(iv) Liquidity risk

™)

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial

asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’ s
reputation.

The Company uses activity-based costing to cost its products and services, which assists it in

monitoring cash flow requirements. The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and
cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of
expected cash flows on financial liabilities (other than payables) over the succeeding 60 to 90

days. The Company also monitors the level of expected cash outflows on trade and other
payables. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably

be predicted, such as natural disasters. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had
unused bank facilities for $2,188,650 and $1,815,613, respectively.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and

interest rates that will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

In order to manage market risk, all transactions of the Company are carried out within the
guidelines set by the management. Generally, hedge accounting is not applied in these

circumstances, and the Company charges the changes in value to profit or loss.

1)  Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in

a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Company entities,
primarily the NTD. These transactions are denominated in NTD, CNY and USD.

At any point in time, the Company hedges its estimated foreign currency exposure with
respect to its forecast sales and purchases over the following six months.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the

Company ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalance.

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are not hedged as those currency positions
are considered to be long-term in nature.

(Continued)
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2)  Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate on borrowings was at a floating rate. The Company did not
enter into and designate interest rate swaps as hedges of the variability in cash flows
attributable to interest rate risk.

In response to changes in interest rates, the Company assesses each currency lending rate
of financial institutions and maintains good relationships with them, in order to obtain
lower financing costs. This also strengthens the management of working capital, reduces
dependence on bank borrowings, and lowers the risk of changes in interest rates.

3)  Other market price risk

The Company monitors the risk arising from its available-for-sale security instruments,
which are held for monitoring cash flow requirements and unused capital. The
management of the Company monitors the combination of investment portfolio based on
cash flow requirement. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an
individual basis, and all buy-and-sell decisions are approved by the Board of Directors.

Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain the confidence of
investors, creditors, and the market and to sustain future development of the business.

The Company uses the debt-to-equity ratio to manage its capital. This ratio uses the total net debt to
be divided by the total capital. The total net debt from the balance sheet is derived from the total
liabilities, less, cash and cash equivalent. The total capital and equity include share capital, capital
surplus, retained earnings, other equity. As of December 31, 2023, there were no changes in the
Company’s approach to capital management.

The Company’s debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Total liabilities $ 2,315,816 2,783,909
Less: cash and cash equivalents (841,532) (976,453)
Net liabilities $ 1,474,284 1,807,456
Total equity $ 4,279,348 4,254,905
Debt-to-equity ratio 3445 % 42.48 %
(Continued)
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The Company’s investing and financing activities which did not affect the current cash flow for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, were as follows:

(i)  For right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6(h).

(i1)) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities was as follows:

Long term borrowings (including current portion) $

December 31,

Short-term notes and bills payable

Lease liabilities (current and non-current)

Total liabilities from financing activity

Long term borrowings (including current portion) $
Short-term notes and bills payable
Lease liabilities (current and non-current)

Total liabilities from financing activity $

(7) Related-party transactions

January 1, 2023 Cash flows Non-cash chang 2023
1,467,953 (129,549) (1,557) 1,336,847
90,000 (18) 89,982
43,963 (9,945) 34,018
$ 1,511,916 (49,494) 1,575) 1,460,847

December 31,

January 1, 2022 Cash flows Non-cash chang 2022

1,715,715 (250,282) 2,520 1,467,953
159,954 (160,000) 46

50,534 (9,798) 3,227 43,963
1,926,203 (420,080) 5,793 1,511,916

(a) Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered
in the financial statements.

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

Power Islands Limited (Power Islands)

Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (SNE)
Motech (Ma Anshan) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. (MAS)
Cheer View Investment Limited (Cheer View)

Motech (Maansgan) Energy Technologies Co. (MASE)
Teco-Motech Co., Ltd. (Teco-Motech)

Motech Power One Co., Ltd. (MPO)

Motech Power Gamma Co., Ltd (MPG)

Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd (MPB)

Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd (MPZ)

TECO Sun Energy Co., Ltd. (TECO Sun Energy)

Inergy Technology Inc.
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(b) Significant transactions with related parties

(@)

(i)

Operating revenue and accounts receivable

Operating revenue

2023 2022
Subsidiary —MPO $ 341,087 47,520
Subsidiary — MPZ 172,487 55,976
Subsidiary — Others 14,783 6,161
Subsidiary —MAS 18 6,556
Associates—TECO Sun Energy - 7,021
$ 528,375 123,234

Accounts receivable due from
related parties

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Accounts receivable:
Subsidiary —MPZ $ 21,674 15,920
Subsidiary —MPO 222,779 35,553
Subsidiary — Others - 1,585
$ 244,453 53,058

The sales to related parties shall be based on the routine sales transactions. No accounts
receivable from related parties were pledged as collateral since the provision for expected
credit impairment is not required.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company received the construction fee, recognized as current
contract liability, in advance from MPZ. Please refer to note 6(u).

Purchases and operating costs

Purchases

2023 2022
Subsidiary —MAS $ 1,312,227 1,693,479
Subsidiary —SNE 523,803 1,057,860
$ 1,836,030 2,751,339
Accounts payable to related parties

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

Subsidiary —MAS $ 122,050 168,200

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company prepaid SNE amounting to $5,753 and
$5,091, respectively, which was recognized as prepayments.

(Continued)
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The Company entered into a solar power construction agreement with MPZ, wherein a
provision for onerous contracts was recognized as operating costs and current provisions.
Please refer to note 6(0).

Since the items purchased from related parties are not the same with those of other vendors,
the purchase price could not be compared; however, the payment terms are not significantly
different from those offered by other vendors.

Management income

The Company provided services to its subsidiaries, including human resources wherein the
revenues are recognized as management income under other gains and losses. The transaction
amount and outstanding balance were listed as follows:

Amounts

2023 2022
Subsidiary —MPO $ 7,795 6,722
Subsidiary — MPZ 4,396 3,780
Subsidiary —MPB 2,791 2,228
Subsidiary —MPG 2.056 1,719
S 17,038 14,449
Other receivables due from related

parties
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Subsidiary —MPO $ 2,095 1,790
Subsidiary — MPZ 1,180 1,097
Subsidiary — MPB 765 705
Subsidiary —MPG 518 512
$ 4,558 4,104

Research and development expenses

The research and development expenses for materials purchased from related parties and

outstanding balance were listed as follows:

Subsidiary —MAS

Amounts
2023 2022
S 759 137

Other payables to related parties

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Subsidiary —MAS $ 180 16
(Continued)
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(v) Property transactions

1)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Equipment (including unfinished construction) purchased from related parties of the
Company were as follows:

Purchase price
2023 2022
Subsidiary —SNE $ 59.924 4,495

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the related payables due from the above transaction
amounted to $11,881 and $0, respectively.

(vi) Loans to other parties

Loans to related parties and outstanding balance were listed as follows:

2023
Actual usage  Range of
amount interest Other
Ending credit  during the annual Interest receivables-
lines period rates income interest
Subsidiary —MPO $ 100,000 - 2~5% - -
Subsidiary —MPZ 100,000 - 2~5% - -
Subsidiary —MPB 100,000 - 2~5% - -
$ 300,000 - - -
2022
Actual usage  Range of
amount interest Other
Ending credit  during the annual Interest receivables-
lines period rates income interest
Subsidiary —MPO $ 100,000 - 2~5% - -
Subsidiary —MPZ 100,000 - 2~5% 179 -
$ 200,000 - 179 -

(vii) Other receivables — others

The Company paid the leases expense on behalf of related parties. The outstanding balance
were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Subsidiary —MPZ $ - 10,623
(Continued)
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(viii) Other receivables from related parties and other payables to related parties were listed as

follows:
Other receivables —related parties:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Other receivables — management income $ 4,558 4,104
Other receivables — others - 10,623
$ 4,558 14,727

Other payables —related parties:

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
Other payables —research and development expenses $ 180 16
Other payables —equipment 11,881 -
$ 12,061 16

(ix) Equity transaction

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Subsidiary —MPO $ -
Subsidiary — MPZ -

678,000
374,000

1,052,000

(x) Dividends received

In 2023 and 2022, the Company received dividends from its subsidiaries and associates

amounting to $33,325 and $49,555, respectively.
Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 30,531 27,540
Post-employment benefits 324 324
Share-based payments - 1,246
$ 30,855 29.110
Please refer to note 6(s) for information on share-based payment.
(Continued)
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(8) Pledged assets

The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Pledged assets Object 2023 2022
Deposits (recorded under other non- Guarantees for leased
current financial assets) dormitory $ 5,308 2,710
Deposit (recorded under other non-  Guarantees for lands
current financial assets) 21,340 7,537
Deposits (recorded under other non- Long-term borrowings
current financial assets) (including current portion) 10,759 10,765
Other non-current financial
assets 37,407 21,012
Property, plant and equipment Long-term borrowings
(including current portion) 758,682 781,821
$ 796,089 802,833

(9) Commitments and contingencies

(a)

(b)

The Company has contracts involving significant unrecognized commitments as follows:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Unused letters of credit for the Company’ s purchases of raw materials, machinery and
equipment were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Unused letters of credit S 4,421 88,086

Bank performance guarantees for the customs and others were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Bank guarantees S 64,270 59,270

The status of agreements for the Company’ s expansion of the plant and purchases of
machinery and other equipment was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Total contract price $ 2,089,153 1,557,844
Unexecuted amount $ 1,298,182 1,258,230

The Company entered into long-term purchase contracts with suppliers to purchase nitrogen in bulk
volume. Starting from the contract, if the actual consumed volume is less than basic volume usage,

the Company should pay for the cost of the basic volume usage instead.

(Continued)
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(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.

(11) Subsequent events: None.

(12) Other

(a)

(b)

A summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as follows:

By function| 2023 2022
Operating Operating Operating Operating

By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefits

Salary 298,875 142,050 440,925 336,742 147,389 484,131

Labor and health insurance 35,419 12,674 48,093 35,760 12,213 47,973

Pension 14,387 5,424 19,811 15,982 6,024 22,006

Director’s remuneration - 17,639 17,639 - 17,445 17,445

Others 12,593 3,308 15,901 12,486 3,110 15,596
Depreciation 147,762 21,764 169,526 129,000 25,149 154,149
JAmortization 319 270 589 354 1,506 1,860

Additional information on the number of employees and employee benefits of the Company in 2023
and 2022 were as follows:

Number of employees

Number of directors who were not employees

Average employee benefit expense

Average employee salary expense

Adjustment of average employee salaries

Supervisor’s remuneration

2023 2022
621 646
7 7
$ 855 892
$ 718 758
(5.28)% 4.41 %
$ - -

The Company’s salary and remuneration policy (including directors, managers and employees) were

as follows:

(i) The wages of the employees of the Company are in accordance with related regulations and are
paid based on the professional skills and knowledge required, the complexity of their work and
performance integrated with the Company’s operating goals, and been determined by reference
to industry salary levels. Employees’ overall wages include their basic salary, meal allowances
and additional allowances. In addition, merit program would be provided based on the
Company’s operating performance and individual performance. According to the Company’s
articles of incorporation, if the Company incurred profit for the year, the Company should
appropriate a minimum of 1% of the profit as employee remuneration, which will be granted
after being approved by the Board and reported in the shareholders’ meeting.
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The remuneration to managers is based on their involvement in the Company’s operation,
seniority and performance, and determined by reference to the Company’s business strategy,
future risks, profitability and industry salary level. According to the Company’s articles of
incorporation, if the Company incurred profit for the year, the Company should appropriate a
minimum of 1% of the profit as employee remuneration, which shall be reviewed by the Salary
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

The remuneration to directors is based on their involvement and contribution to the Company,
and determined by reference to the Company’s future risks, development trends of the industry
and industry salary level. The remuneration to directors included fixed remuneration and
business execution expenses. According to the Company’s articles of incorporation, if the
Company incurred profit for the year, the Company should appropriate a maximum of 5% of
the profit as directors’ remuneration, which shall be reviewed by the Salary and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
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(13)Other disclosures

(a) Information on significant transactions
The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023:
i. Loans to other parties:

Notes to the Parent C

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.

yO

nly Fi

St

Highest balance of financing Actual Range of interest | P frnd | Transacti " y Maximum limit of
to other parties during the Ending balance cualusage | Range of interes urposes of fund - Transaction amount ) Loss Collateral Individual funding loan fimits| 2™ 100
Nurnber Narme of lender Narme of borrower Account name e e ) amount during the | rates during the | financing for the forbusiness | Reasons for shortterm financing | 0% Note fund financing
P period period borrower (Note 2)  [between two parties : (Notes 3)
(Note 1) Ttem Value
0 The Company MPO Other receivables - 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 Operating turnover None 427934 855,869
related parties
0 The Company MPZ Other receivables - 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 - Operating turnover - None R 427,934 855,869
related parties
0 The Company MPB Other recivables - 100,000 100,000 - 2%~5% 2 - Operating tunover - None - 427934 855,869
related parties
Note I: Highest balance of financing to other parties during the period was the highest credit lines approved by the Board of Directors. The ending balance was the same as that of the credit lines approved by the Board of Directors.
Note 2: Purposes of fund financing for the borrower as follows:
1. For entries the Company has business transactions with.
2. For entries with short-term financing needs.
Note 3: For entities with short-term financing needs, which provides by the Company, the amount available for financing shall not exceed 10% of net worth of the Company.
Total amount of short-term financing shall not exceed 20% of net worth of the Company.
ii. Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None.
iii. Securities held as of December 31, 2023 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures): None.
iv. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
v. Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
vi. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of TWD300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.
vii. Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of TWD100 million or 20% of the capital stock:
Transaction details Transactions with terms different from others Notes/ Trade receivables (payables)
Name of company Related party Nature of relationship Note
Purchase/Sal Amount Percentage of total purchases/sal Payment t Unit Payment terms Ending - Percentage of total
urchase/Sale mount ercentage of total purchases/sales ayment terms nit price ayment terms e nemables (payables
] . ] <o Non-significant B
MAS The Company Parent company Sale 1,312,986 99.55 % 30 days difference 30 days 122,230 98.52 %
The Company MAS Subsidiary Purchase 1312.986 29.63% 30 days Non-significant 30 days (122.230) 44.65 %
difference
SNE The Company Parent company Sale 583,727 100% T/T in advance Non-significant T/T in advance 11,881 9821 %
difference
The Company SNE Subsidiary Purchase 583,727 13.17% T/T in advance Non-significant T/T in advance (11,881) 434 %
difference
' . ' Non-significant )
The Company MPO Subsidiary Sale 341,087 7.75% 90 days difference 90 days 222,779 34.44 %
MPO The Company Parent company Purchase 341,087 100% 90 days [Non-significant 90 days (222,779 99.07 %
difference
., - . o [Non-significant .
The Company MPZ Subsidiary Sale 172,487 3.92% 90 days iforence 90 days 21,674 335 %
MPZ The Company Parent company Purchase 172,487 100% 90 days :""’:':‘5‘:?‘”‘“‘ 90 days (21,674) 94.84 %
viii. Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of capital stock:
Overd v
Name of company Related party Nature of relationship Ending balance Tumover days e Amounts receivedin |y o oyjorance
Amount Action taken subsequent period
The Company MPO Subsidiary 224,874 (Note) - - 224,874 -
MAS The Company Parent company 122,230 8.99 - - 122,230 -

Note: Calculation of tumnover rate i not applicable for accounts receivable arising from the construction of power plants.

ix. Trading in derivative instruments: None.
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(b) Information on investees:

The following is the information on investees for the year 2023 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

—-

MOTECH INDUSTRIES INC.

Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Main t d Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2023 Share of
Name of investor Name of investee Location an an Carrying Net income (losses) of investee profits/losses of Note
products December 31, 2023 [ December 31,2022 |  Shares/Units Percentage of ownership i
3 4 value investee
The Company Power Islands Samoa Holding Company 5,041,424 5,160,872 | 154,674,370 100.00 % 1,174,245 94,979 99,048
The Company Inergy Technology Inc. Taiwan Product design 95,821 95,821 8,558,750 1872 % 205,722 16,308 5,864
The Company Teco-Motech Taiwan ssslll?;;"‘”“ge“e”’"““ and 14,400 14,400 1,440,000 60.00 % 6,476 3455 2,073
The Company MPO Taiwan fc‘;'l?r";"’w" generation and 928,000 928,000 92,800,000 100.00 % 828,154 17,128 17,228
The Company | 12C0 S“"f"i'gdy Company Taiwan S"lllf" power generation and 28,000 28,000 2,800,000 40.00 % 31,240 6,332 2,533
1mites selling
The Company MPG Taiwan f;ll?;:"w“ generation and 33,000 33,000 3,300,000 100.00 % 25,171 1,476 1,476
The Company MPB Taiwan Sc"lll'f" power generation and 55,000 55,000 5,500,000 100.00 % 25,113 (2,342) (2,342)
selling
The Company MPZ Taiwan :’:lll?;;"“’“ generation and 480,000 480,000 48,000,000 100.00 % 439,001 (358) (358)
Power Islands Cheer View British Virgin Islands [Holding Company 2,564,272 2,564,272 77,500,000 100.00 % 3 - -
Cheer View AE United States || C1¥Silicon manufacturing 2,398,043 2,398,043 11,573,647 3711 % - - -
and selling
(c) Information on investment in Mainland China:
. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:
Accumulated Accumulated
. outflow of . Accumulated
Total amount of capital outflow of Investment flows . Net income . B
. . . . . investment from . Investment income (losses) Book value remittance of
Name of investee | Main businesses and products surplus Method of investment investment from ° (losses) of the | Percentage of ownership e
Note 7) Taiwan as of Taiwan as of invest (Notes 3 and 4) (Note 4) earnings in
oo Ja mary d;;23 December 31, estes current period
anuary & Outflow Inflow 2023
Manufacturing and processing,|
SNE 1,220,170 (Note 1) 1,280,986 - 119,449 1,161,537 99,578 9539 % 94,987 1,186,732 -
solar cells and solar modules
(CN'Y250,229)
A ing and
MAS e 2,392,731 (Note 2) - - - - 92,823 9539 % 88,544 1,072,909 -
(CNY531,500)
Manufacturing and processing,|
MASE I 164,232 (Note 2) - - - - (408) 9539 % (389) (874) -
(CNY37,000)
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ii. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Unit: USD
Accumulated Investment in Mainland China Investment Amounts Authorized by Upper Limit on Investment (Note 6)
as of December 31, 2023 (Note 5) Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 5) ppe o cestmel ¢
1,161,537 1,658,070
2,612,784
(USD34,779,553) (USD 54,000,000)

Note 1: The Company indirectly invested in the company in Mainland China through a third region (Power Islands).
Note 2: The Company indirectly invested in the company in Mainland China through a third region in the company in Mainland China.
Note 3: Amounts was recognized based on audited financial statements.
Note 4: The amount consist of investment gain or loss and carrying values as of December 31, 2023, recognized by the Company which indirectly invested through a third region.
Note 5: The investment in Mainland China, including equipment, was recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. The equity in the earnings (losses) was translated into TWD at the average rates prevailing at the transaction date.
The equity in the earnings (losses) was translated into TWD at the average rates during each period of the year. Other amounts on foreign currency financial assets was translated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, which was TWD30.705.
Note 6: Amount of upper limit on investment was the higher between sixty percentage of total equity or total consolidated equity.

Note 7: The amounts consist of investment in Mainland China were recorded at exchange rates into TWD.

iii. Significant transactions

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in “Information on significant transactions”.

(d) Major shareholders

As of December 31, 2023, there was no shareholder who held over 5% of the total non physical common stocks.
(14) Segment information

Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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6.

Financial Difficulties Experienced by the Company ad Its Affiliates in the Most Recent
Year and as of the Date of this Annual Report, andrheir Impact on the Company’s
Financial Position: None.
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VI.Review and Analysis of Financial Position and P#ormance and
Associated Risks

1. Financial Position: Reasons and Impact of Significant Changes in Assahijlity and Equity in
the Past Two Fiscal Years

Financial Position (Consolidated) - Internationaddfcial Reporting Standards

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Changes i
Yeal 50221231 | 2023.12.31 2 Analysis on

Item Amount % Changes (Note
Current assets 6,064,792 4,374,777 (1,690,015 (27.87 1
Investments accounted

for under the equity 247,511 236,962 (10,549 (4.26

method
Property, plant and 2,668,184 3,327,448 659,264 24.71 2

equipment
Intangible assets 622 213 (409 (65.76
Other assets 588,128 650,775 62,647 10.65
Total assets 9,569,237 8,590,175 (979,062 (10.23
Current liabilities 3,945,116 1,861,258 (2,083,858 (52.82 3
Non-current liabilities 1,292,081 2,374,277 1,082,196 83.76 4
Total liabilities 5,237,197 4,235,535 (1,001,662 (19.13
Total capital 3,870,419 3,870,419 0 0.00
Capital surplus 540,694 540,695 1 0.00
Retained earnings 350,088 396,567 46,479 13.28
Other components of (506,296 (528,333 (22,037 4.35

equity
Non-controlling 77,135 75,292 (1,843 (2.39

interests
Total equity 4,332,040 4,354,640 22,600 0.52

Analysis on changes (Chges in percentage and dollar amount exceeding 20% NT$10 million

respectively):

1. Current assets decreased mainly due to the adgoisihd installation oPV systems, which led to
decrease in cash. Also, inventories and other filahassets decreased compared to 2022.

2. Property, plant and equipment increased mainlytdwa increase in PV systems and installations.

3. Current liabilities decreased mainly duehe repayment of syndicated loan, which led to @elese in th
current portion of long-term liabilities. Also, lsland accounts payable also decreased.

4. Non-current liabilities increased mainly due toi@erease in syndicated loan.

- 236 -



2. Financial Performance

(1) Reasons for significant changes in revenue, opgraticome and income before income tax
in the Past Two Fiscal Years

Financial Performance (Consolidated) - Internati¢maancial Reporting Standards

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Yeal Increase 0 Analysis on
Item 2022 2023 (Decrease) Change (%) Changes (Note
Net revenue 5,359,978 4,065,981 (1,293,997 (24.14 1
Cost of revenue (4,666,071) (3,388,557 1,277,514 (27.38 1
Gross profit 693,907 677,424 (16,483 (2.38
Operating expenses (357,212) (354,007 3,205 (0.90
Operating income 336,695 323,417 (13,278 (3.94
Non-operating income (60,761 (93,832 (33,071 54.43 2
and expenses
"ggme before income 275,934 229,585 (46,349 (16.80
Income tax expense (3,617) (5,268 (1,651 45.65
Net income 272,317 224,317 (48,000 (17.63
Other Comprehensive 10,376 (20,872 (31,248 (301.16 3
Income, Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive 282,693 203,445 (79,248 (28.03 1,2,3
Income

Analysis on changes (Changes in percentagd dollar amount exceeding 20% and NT$10 mil

respectively):

1. Net revenue and cost of revenue: Mainly due to glwevdown in installations at the enmdarket an
increased competitions from Southeast Asian moiduyperts, which led to a decline in sales.

2. Non-operating income and expenses: Mainly due to aedserin foreign exchange gains and log
guarantees from litigation settlements.

3. Other comprehensive income: Mainly dueatdecrease in exchange differences on transldtajrtancial
statemeni of foreign operation

(2) Expected sales volume and its basis

The annual sales target is determined by asseggnghanges in external environment and
solar markets as well as taking into account then@my’s technologies and capacities on a
consolidated basis.
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3. Cash Flows
(1) Variance analysis of cash flows in the most regeat

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

Increase (Decrease
tem Yeal 2022 2023 — ( ” )
Operating activities 455,131 468,010 12,879 2.83%
Investing activities (136,743) (746,960) (610,217) 446.25%
Financing activities 211,762 (425,008) (636,770) (300.70)%

Explanations on significant changes:
1 Net cash generated by operating activities: Maghlg to the collection of accounts receivables
and a decrease in inventories.
2 Net cash used in investing activities: Mainly due @n increase in capital expendityres
associated with power station construction and ia@tqpn of equipment for cell production.
3 Net cash used in financing activities: Mainly duwe & repayment of long-term loans gnd
distribution of cash dividends.

(2) Improvement schemes for liquidity shortfall: The mgmany and its subsidiaries did not
experience liquidity shortfall.

(3) Liquidity analysis for 2024 - consolidated

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash Net Cash | Net Cash Used Remedies for
Som Provided by |in Investing an{ Cash Surplus Cash Shortage
Beginning of . : . h
Year Op(_er_a_tlng Flngnglng (Shortage) | Investment Financing Plan§
Activities Activities Plans
2,408,531 308,000 (708,000) 2,008,531 N/A N/A

Analysis on expected cash flows in 2024

1. Operating activities: Cash inflows mainly due towth in revenue.

2. Investing and financing activities: Capital expauadis for power plant investmeand expansid
of large-sized cell and module production linesi&t cash outflows.

4. Major Capital Expenditures in the Most Recent Yearand Their Impacts on the Company’s
Finance and Operation

Consolidated capital expenditures were mainly foe tonstruction of power stations and

enhancement on capacities. All decisions were glyaeviewed by the Board and beneficial to

the Company’s finance and operation. The main soaféunds for capital expenditures was cash
flows generated from operations and bank loans.

5. Reinvestment Policies in the Most Recent Year, MaifReasons for Investment Gains or
Losses, Improvement Plans, and Investment Plans tife Next Year

(1) Reinvestment policies in the most recent year:vestment policies of the company and its
subsidiaries were all long-term strategic investisien
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(2) Main reasons for investment gains or losses andavgment plans in the most recent year:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Investmen .
. Main Reasons
. . Gain . Improvement
Investee Main Business .| for Investment Gains o
(Loss) in L0SSes Plans
2023
Power Islands Limited| Holding company 99,04I§ecogn|t_|on of income None
from reinvestments
inergy Technology Inc/Product design 5,864Recogn|t_|on of income None
from reinvestments
Generation and selling of Recognition of revenue
Teco-Motech Co., Ltd.| solar power with PV 2,073 | from selling of solar  |None
systems power
Motech Power One C(Generatlon and_ selling of Recognm(_)n of revenue
Ltd solar power with PV 17,228 | from selling of solar  |[None
' systems power
Generation and selling of Recognition of revenue
TESO Sun Energy Co, solar power with PV 2,533 | from selling of solar  |[None
' systems power
Motech Power Gamm,iGeneration and selling of Recognition of revenue
T solar power with PV 1,476 | from selling of solar  |None

Co., Ltd.

systems

power

Motech Power Beta
Co., Ltd.

Generation and selling of
solar power with PV
systems

(2,342)

As the transfer of feeder
lines to the new project
was delayed, revenue
from the new project
failed to be recognized
as scheduled

Performance wil

improve after
the transfer

Motech Power Zeta
Co., Ltd.

Generation and selling of
solar power with PV
systems

(358)

Profitability affected
during the construction
period

Performance wi

improve once
the constructio
is completed

Cheer View Investmen
Limited

holding company

Impairment loss was fully
recognized for its

was no investment gains
or losses

investee, AE. Thus, theNone

Impairment loss was fully

AE Polysilicon Manufacturing and selling recognized for AE. ThuiLiquidation

Corporation of polysilicon " | there was no investment underway
gains or losses

Motech (Suzhou) Processing and Recognition of income
Renewable Energy | manufacturing of solar 94,987 | from reinvestments None
Co., Ltd. cells and modules

Motech (Maanshan) |Processing and Recognition of revenue
Renewable Energy | manufacturing of solar 88,544

Co., Ltd.

cells and modules

from cells and modules

None

Motech (Maanshan)
Energy Technologies
Co., Ltd.

Processing and
manufacturing of solar
wafers and cells

(389)

Basic maintenance fees.

Streamline plan

executed

vJ

- 239 -



(3) Investment plans of the next year

A. Continue to actively explore the downstream systemarket in response to
government’s advocacy of green energy as well asrais for our cells and modules.

B. Integrate Group resources, adjust the productiatesnd personnel allocation in China
and Taiwan, and optimize as well as enhance prmduciapacities to improve our
production competitiveness and generate more lisriefithe Group.

C. In line with the government’s promotion of energgnsformation policy, we expand
the composite model of fishery and electricity syosls, where the diverse and
composite uses of solar energy are promoted throtags-industry collaboration. With
prudence and considerations of external environraedtcompany resources, we will
adopt long-term sound strategies to expand ounbkssiin the area.

6. Risk Items to be Analyzed and Assessed in the MoBecent Year and as of the Date of this
Annual Report

(1) Risk management organization
A. Risk management policies

Risk management is an essential part of businestaisability. To reduce the
occurrence and losses of incidents, the Companytadpreventive measures to
reinforce the risk management system in hope tdegehsustainable operation and
protect stakeholders’ rights.

To ensure continuous operations under major hazardsmergencies, we develop
business continuity plans and emergency drills ugho business strategy planning,
business continuity risk assessment, impact arsalysnd adoption of recovery
strategies to mitigate potential risk from natuliglasters and management deficiencies.

B. Structure of risk management organization

Board of Directors: The Company’s Board of Direst@s the highest-ranking unit in
terms of risk management. Its objectives includgul&ory compliance and the
promotion and implementation of company-wide riskanagement. It clearly
understands the risks of operations, ensures thetigeness of risk management and
takes on the ultimate responsibility for risk masagnt.

Finance unit: It is the fund management unit of @menmpany, responsible for managing
the use and flows of funds. It has emergency prresdin place when the demand for
funds rises due to incidents in the market.

Internal audit department: The Company’s Internaidié Office is an independent
department which reports directly to the Boardntinitors and provides methods and
procedures of internal controls and internal audits ensure an effective risk
management operation.

Legal department: It is responsible for the Comfmmggulatory compliance and
legality reviews of contracts. To assist with cotling the legal risk, internal policies
and regulations are reviewed constantly for immediasponses to impacts on business
due to changes in laws and regulations made bydhegetent authorities. It also has
comprehensive review procedures in place to seberexhaustiveness and legality of
all transactions of the Company.
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(2)

Impacts of fluctuations in interest rates and fgmeexchange rates and inflation on the
Company’s profitability and associated action plans

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2023
Year % to % to

0, 0,
ltem Amount | 20 o Net Operating| Amount /6 to Net Operating

Revenue Revenue

Income Income

Interest Income 48,40% 0.90% 14.38% 56,984 1.40% 17.62%
Interest Expense (58,53p) (1.09)% | (17.39)% | (64,217) (1.58)% | (19.86)%
Net exchange gain 18,881 0.35% 5.61% 8,643 0.21% 2.67%

3)

Source: Audited financial reports

A. Impacts of interest rate fluctuations and assodiat¢ion plans:

Measures taken in response to interest rate ridlided regular assessments on bank
borrowing rates, adjustments on short-term borrgwiand the maintenance of a good
relationship with banks to obtain a lower financowst. In addition, the Company and
its subsidiaries strengthened working capital mansnt and used fund raising
instruments in the capital market to lower theipeledence on bank borrowings and
thus diversify the risk of changes in borrowingesat

B. Impacts of foreign exchange rate fluctuations sssbeiated action plans:

Expenses and revenues of the Company and its safssdfrom operations were
mostly dominated in foreign currencies and the migjoof them were covered by
natural hedges. In addition to monitoring our Uddllar position, the Company
engaged in forward foreign exchange contracts wihenneed arises to reduce our
foreign currency exposure. In 2023, the consoldiaiechange gains amounted to about
NT$8,643 thousand. The Company will continue tdemtlinternational finance and
exchange rate data to have a better understandiogroency movements and adopt the
most appropriate and low-risk hedging instrumeatmittigate the impact of exchange
rate fluctuations on the Company’s operations.

Impacts of inflation and associated action plans:

Due to industry characteristics, inflation did rwve any significant impact on the
profitability of the Company and its subsidiariesthe most recent year and as of the
date of this annual report.

The policies, main reasons for gains or lossesamsciated action plans with respect to
high-risk, highly-leveraged investments, lendingnda to other parties, endorsement and
guarantee and derivative trading

The Company and its subsidiaries did not engadpgim-risk, highly-leveraged investments.
Derivative transactions were not entered into lier purpose of trading and they were mostly
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge exaharade risk from operations. The
Company’s hedging strategy focused on hedgingafsthanges in the fair value of assets
due to exchange rate fluctuations with counterpsrtbeing qualified banks. Thus, no
significant credit risk was expected. Moreover, gasns and losses from exchange rate
movements could be offset by the hedged itemsetivas no significant market risk. The
Company conducted transactions pursuant to poliniése “Procedures for Acquisition or
Disposal of Assets”, “Procedures for Lending FumndsOther Parties”, “Procedures for
Endorsement and Guarantee” and “Procedures fon€igeDerivative Transactions”.
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(4) Future research and development plans and estiregpehses:
Trial
Project Progress R&D Expenses Production| Deciding Factors
to be Invested
Schedule
Mass production of |Small-scale trial Tool, wafers, pastes Mass |Yield and
N-type TOPCon M10 production and screens production| efficiency of mass
cell in the third| production
quarter of
2024
Development of Improve efficiency by |Wafers, pastes and| Fourth [Impact of process
N-type TOPCon with 0.2% screens required fgr quarter of | adoption on costs
selective emitter experiments 2024
technology
Development of Process validation Wafers, paste, and Second [Material
auxiliary sintering screens for quarter of| combination and
process for N-type experiments 2024 | process integratidn
TOPCon
Fine line electrode |Testing on paste and |Wafers, paste, and Fourth |[Optimal
screens. Expect to screens for quarter of | combination of
improve efficiency by | experiments 2024 printing machine,
0.1% paste and screenp
Process developmentPlanning on platform fofAdjustments in Second |Yield of M10 cells
of modules with M1(Q mass production of M] module materials f¢ quarter of | in module mass
cells (182mm) modules M10 cells 2024 production

()

(6)

R&D expenses for 2024 will account for about 2%h&f net revenue.

Impacts of changes in major domestic and overselasgs and regulations on Company’s
finance and business and associated action plans:

The Company and its subsidiaries constantly mosdtohne trends of changes in the political
and economic environment in Taiwan and overseasedisas the changes in policies and
regulations, and prepared appropriate action pldhanges in major domestic and overseas
policies and regulations did not have significathtexse impacts on the finance and business
of the Company and its subsidiaries in the mostnegear and as of the date of this annual
report.

Impacts of changes in technology (including cybecusity risk) and industry on the
Company’s finance and business and associatechgitios:

There has been an evolution in silicon PV produetently, with manufacturers designing

cells and modules of different sizes which leathmissue of a wide range of specifications.
Starting with M10, wafers for cells branch out iMarious rectangular wafers, resulting in
increasing length of corresponding modules. Addaity, the wafer thickness gradually

decreases from 16f to below 13(m, increasing the risk of breakage during produnctio

The Company continues to upgrade cell and modwdyation equipment to ensure that
product yields remain unaffected by the thinning wéfers and the equipment can
accommodate M10, G12, and even rectangular watlews, adapting to changes in wafer
specifications at the supply end. Moreover, thexe Ibeen a rapid transition in mainstream
cell technology from P-type PERC to N-type TOPConhe market. The Company has five
years of experience in producing TOPCon cells aitidcantinue to enhance related product
technology. We plan to increase cell efficiency2®2% and module efficiency to 23%

within this year.
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(7)

(8)

(9)

Impacts of changes in corporate image on corpeaisitenanagement and associated action
plans

The Company was committed to maintain its corponatage and comply with laws and

regulations. Adhering to the principles of professilism and integrity, incident that might

affect the Company’s corporate image did not ogouthe most recent year and as of the
date of this annual report.

Expected benefits and risks relating to mergeraaplisition and associated action plans:

In 2023 and as of the date of this annual repbd,Gompany and its subsidiaries did not
have plans to acquire other companies. For plamsesfers and acquisitions in the future,
we will be prudent in our assessments and fullysmer the synergy of combination to
protect our shareholders’ rights.

Expected benefits and risks relating to plant egpmanand associated action plans

The deterioration of global warming, increased amass on environmental protection and
decreased reserves of major energy all contribtdettie expected growth of PV industry.

The plant expansion plans of the Company and lsidiaries were all reviewed carefully;

thus, the potential risks associated were extretogly

(10) Risks of concentrated sources of purchases or aatbassociated action plans

The Company and its subsidiaries aggressively egplew markets and customers. We had
a substantial number of customers; thus, therenwasustomer concentration risk. Key raw

materials of the Company were mostly provided by bw more suppliers. Hence, there was
no supplier concentration risk.

(11) Impact and risk of sale or transfer of significamimber of shares by the Directors,

Supervisors or shareholders with over 10% of sleddéing and associated action plans:
None.

(12) Impact and risk of change in management and agedc&tion plans

In 2023 and as of the date of this annual repadh sncident did not occur in the Company
nor its subsidiaries.

(13) Major litigations and non-litigations

A. Major litigations, non-litigations, or administre#i disputes in the most recent year and
as of the date of this annual report that have lweecluded by means of a final and
unappealable judgment, or are still under litigatiand have significant impacts on the
interests of shareholders or share prices, the,fachount of money at stake in the
dispute, commencement date, major parties involaed, the status as of the date of
this annual report:

(&) The Company’s customer, Green Energy Technology(fBreen Energy), signed
an agreement with the Company for its overdue paynon purchases of
US$2,851,521.47 on March 11, 2019 and notarizeddcement. However, Green
Energy failed to repay the Company in accordancth whe agreement. The
Company applied to the court for compulsory enforest on the property of
Green Energy at the Taiwan Taipei District CourAimgust, 2019. However, the
Company received notification where the Taiwan @ripistrict Court declared
bankruptcy of Green Energy on April 14, 2020. Trenpany had filed creditors’
rights on May 6, 2020.

(b) As Greenrock Energy co., Ltd. and Yan An Renewd&rlergy Co., Ltd. failed to
perform their obligations stipulated in the outsog contract as well as the
purchase agreement concerning the installation\ofsistems in Pingtung, the
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Company sought compensation in accordance withicgigé laws for a total of
NT$51,620,804 plus interests on October 19, 202k dase is currently tried at

the Taiwan Tainan District Court.

B. Major litigations, non-litigations, or administraéi disputes in the most recent year and
as of the date of this annual report which haveolved the Directors, Supervisors,
President, de facto responsible person, major kbklters with over 10% of
shareholding and affiliates; have been concludedhbgins of a final and unappealable
judgment, or are still under litigation; and havgngficant impacts on the interests of
shareholders or share prices: None.

(14) Other significant risks and associated action plhioge.

7. Other Significant Matters: None.
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1. Affiliates

(1) Chart of affiliates

VII. Special Notes

Motech Industries Inc.

As of December 31, 2023

Motech Power

Motech Power

Motech Power Motech Power

Teco-Motech Power Islands

Investment Ltd.

One Co., Ltd. Beta Co., Ltd. Gamma Co., Ltd, Zeta Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Limited
100% 100% 100% 100% 60% 100%
I
[ |
Cheer View Motech (Suzhou) Renewabld

Energy Co., Ltd.

100%

95.39%

Motech (Maanshan)

Motech (Maanshan) Energy

Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.

Technologies Co., Ltd.

100%

100%

(2) Basic information on affiliates

As of December 31, 2023 (In Thousands of New TailRaltars)

Co., Ltd.

DevelopmenZone, Anhui Proving

P.R.C.

Name Date Of. Address Pa|d_-|n Main Business / Produdts
Incorporation Capital
Motech Power On 6F., No. 248, Sec. 3, Beishen H Generation and selling {f
2017.04 |ShenkengDist., New Taipei City 223 928,000solar power with PV
Co., Ltd. .
Taiwan (R.O.C.) systems
Motech Power Bef 6F., No. 248, Sec. 3, Beishen H Generation and selling df
2018.11 |Shenkeng Dist., New Taipei City 2} 55,000solar power with PV
Co., Ltd. .
Taiwan (R.O.C.) systems
Motech Power Gamn 6F., No. 248, Sec. 3, Beishen H Generation and selling df
2018.12 |Shenkeng Dist., New Taipei City 2} 33,000solar power with PV
Co., Ltd. .
Taiwan (R.0.C.) systems
Motech Power Zef 6F., No. 248, Sec. 3, Beishen H Generation and selling qf
2019.02 |Shenkeng Dist., New Taipei City 2} 480,000solar power with PV
Co., Ltd. .
Taiwan (R.0.C.) systems
6F., No. 248, Sec. 3, Beishen H Generation and selling qf
Teco-Motech Co., Ltd| 2017.02 |ShenkengDist., New Taipei City 221 24,000solar power with PV
Taiwan (R.0.C.) systems
- Portcullis (Samoa) Ltd, Portcul .
Power Islands Limited 2002.01 Chambers, P.O. Box 1225, Apia Sanoa 5,041,424Holding company
Motech (Suzhou No. 17, Podium Level 1, No0.288t2, Processing and
Renewable Energy C( 2006.12 [Dengyun Road, High Tech Zone, 1,220,170manufacturing of solar
Ltd. Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province P.R.C. cells and modules
Motech  (Maansha fﬂtganf’hl; Eclggélnl]ig ar;](;mﬁrzrc]:hnc?lg Processing and
Renewable Energy C{ 2015.12 . . 2,392,73Imanufacturing of solar
DevelopmenZone, Anhui Proving
Ltd. cells and modules
P.R.C.
Motech  (Maansha Il\\lA(;.;:Sr?arEconon}]ilg _S:r?(;] Technz(ljc') Processing and
Energy Technologiq 2017.11 164,232manufacturing of solar

wafers and cells
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Name Date Of. Address Pa|q-|n Main Business / Produdts
Incorporation Capital
Portcullis  (BVI) Ltd, Portculli
Chambers, 4th Floor, Ellen Skel
2006.09 Building, 3076 Sir Francis Dra 2,564,27MHolding company
Highway, Road Town, Tortola, Briti

Virgin Islands VG1110

Cheer View Investme
Limited

(3) Shareholders in common of Motech and its affiliates deemed control and subordination:
None.

(4) Industries in which the affiliates operate:

Businesses engaged by Motech and its affiliatdsdiec
A. The research, design, manufacturing and sellirtgefollowing products:
(a) Processing and manufacturing of solar cells andutesd
(b) Design and installation of PV system
(c) Generation and selling of solar power with PV syste
B. Technical services for the integration and instalfaof aforementioned power systems
C. Import and export of Company-related businesses

(5) Names and shareholding of Directors, SupervisadsPaasidents of the Affiliates:
As of December 31, 2023 (In Thousands of Shares)

Shareholding

Company Title Name or Representative

Shares Shares
. Motech Industries Inc.
Motech Power One Co., Ltd. Chawmarh o 92,80( 1009
epresentative: Fred Yeh
Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd. Chairma'vmtech Industries Inc. 5,50(0 1009

rIﬁepresentative: Fred Yeh

Motech Power Gamma Co., Ltd. Chairman Motech Indu_strl.es Inc. 3,300 1009
Representative: Fred Yeh

Motech Industries Inc.

Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd. Chairmarﬂzepresentative' Fred Yeh

48,00( 1009

Director |Motech Industries Inc.
Representative: Fred Yeh

Director |TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Representative: Chien-Cheng Chen
Director |Motech Industries Inc.
Representative: Ting-Chao Wang
Director |Motech Industries Inc.
Representative: Yen-Chieh Wang
Director |TECO Capital Investment Co., Ltd.
Representative: Chun-Chih Chiu
Supervisor|Li-Yu Huang

Supervisor|Alan Wu

Teco-Motech Co., Ltd. 1,44(Q 60%

Director |Motech Industries Inc.
Representative: Yung-Hui Tseng
Director |Motech Industries Inc.
Representative: Chih-Kaou Lee

Power Islands Limited 154,674 100%

Director |Power Islands Ltd.
Representative: Fred Yeh
Director |Power Islands Ltd.

Motech (Suzhou) Renewal Representative: Ting-Chao Wang CO'T‘F"."‘”V
. not limited 95.399
Energy Co., Ltd. Director |Power Islands Ltd.
by shares

Representative: Chih-Kaou Lee
Supervisor|Power Islands Ltd.
Representative: Ming-Shiaw Lu
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Shareholdin
Company Title Name or Representative g
Shares Shares
Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.
Representative: Fred Yeh
Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.Com an
Motech (Maanshan) Renewa Representative: Ting-Chao Wang not Iirﬁitez 95.399
Energy Co., Ltd. Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Lid. '
L by shares
Representative: Chih-Kaou Lee
Supervisor|Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ld.
Representative: Ming-Shiaw Lu
Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.
Representative: Fred Yeh
Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.Com an
Motech  (Maanshan) Ener| Representative: Ting-Chao Wang not Iirlraliteé/ 95.399
Technologies Co., Ltd. Director |Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. '
A by shares
Representative: Chih-Kaou Lee
Supervisor|Motech (Suzhou) Renewable Energy Co., Ltd.
Representative: Ming-Shiaw Lu
Director |Power Islands Ltd.
Cheer View Investment Limited . Representative: Yung-Hui Tseng 77,50( 1009
Director |Power Islands Ltd.
Representative: Chih-Kaou Lee

(6) Operational highlights of Affiliates:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Compan Caoital Total Total Net Net Operating Net Earnings per

pany P Assets | Liabilites | Worth Revenue| Income Income | Share (NT$)
Motech Power One Co., Ltd. 928,00@,999,353 1,045,714 953,639 114,978 27,752 17,129 0.18
Motech Power Beta Co., Ltd. 55,000 149,860 105,616 44,244 12,858 (712 (2,342 (0.43)
Mfttgc“ PowerGammaCo.. | 33000 1175071 82,244 35353 14341 3,521 1,476 0.45
Motech Power Zeta Co., Ltd. 480,000 722,807 245,814 476,997 33,924 519 (358 (0.01)
Teco-Motech Co., Ltd. 24,000 73,439 44,325 29,114 11,038 5,061 3,455 1.44
Power Islands Limited 5,041,4241,187,079 0| 1,187,079 0 0 94,979 0.61

Company nof
1,220,17Q 1,403,569 152,569 1,250,994 583,727 (2,703 99,578 limited by
shares

Motech (Suzhou) Renewable
Energy Co., Ltd.

Company nof
Motech (Maanshan) Renewallle, oo, 721 1 706534 601,778 1,124,760 131891 59,916 92,824 limited by
Energy Co., Ltd.

shares

Motech (Maanshan) Energy Company not

Technologies Co., Ltd. 164,232 55418 56,334 (016 0 (524 (408)  limited by
shares
Cheer View Investment Limited 2,564,274 3 0 3 0 0 0 0.00
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Private Placement of Securities in the Most Recentear and as of the Date of this Annual
Report: None.

The Company’s Shares Held or Disposed of by Subsaties in the Most Recent Year and as
of the Date of this Annual Report:None.

Other Necessary SupplementNone.

Any Events in the Most Recent Year and as of the Da of this Annual Report that had
Significant Impacts on Shareholders’ Rights or Seaity Prices as Stated in Subparagraph 2,
Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the Securities and Exchage Act: None.
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